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About Appalachian Bancshares, Inc.

Appalachian Bancshares, Inc,, based in Ellijay, Ga., is the holding company of Appalachian Community Bank, a state-chartered bank organized
under the laws of the State of Georgia. Appalachian Community Bank also operates under the trade name of Gilmer County Bank. Appalachian
Bancshares, Inc., has assets of $592.6 million and through Appalachian Community Bank provides a full range of community banking services
to individuals, small and medium-sized businesses, real estate developers, contractors and farmers, through its North Georgia banking offices
located in Ellijay, East Ellijay, Blue Ridge and Blairsville.
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Reaching New Heights

The theme of our 2005 annual report, “Reaching New Heights,” is both a reference to the famed Georgia-to-Maine Appalachian Trail and
an apt analogy for the continued upward growth of our company. The trail’s beginning, only miles from our headquarters, is marked by
the plaque above.
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Consolidated Statement of Income Data (in thousands)
Years Ended December 31, 2005 and 2004

$5,122 Y

{dollars in thousands)

2005 2004
Total Interest Income $34,750 525,735 $0.75 $0.76
Total Interest Expense 11,880 7,558 =1 (7
Net Interest Income 22,870 18177
Provision for Loan Losses 2,211 1,235
Total Noninterest Income 3,303 2,830
Total Noninterest Expense 16,338 13,840 |
Income Tax Expense 2,502 1,885 ___J
Net Income 5122 4,047 01 ‘02 03 '04 ‘05

Per Share Data
Years Ended December 31, 2005 and 2004

(dollars in thousands, except per-share amounts)

Assets Loans
2005 2004 (in millions) (in millions)
Earnings Per Common Share
Basic $1.24 $1.09 $3774
Diluted 1.21 1.04 53323 (T4
Cash Dividends Declared $298.1 =3
Per Common Share 0 0 fv_
Shareholders' Equity 59,825 36,083 ‘
Shareholder's Equity (Book Value)
at Period End 1162 9.58
Weighted Average Shares Outstanding
Basic 4,123,403 3,724,095 NN N
Diluted 4,247,334 3885490 ‘02 03 ‘04
Consolidated Statement of Financial Condition Data
December 31, 2005 and 2004
(doliars in thousands) . .
2005 2004 8\?{;?:5 Net Interest Margin
Net Loans $451,359  $373,003 24.77%
Total Deposits 473,310 381,498 442% 4
Average Equity 42,065 33102 aome 41 2% e
Average Assets 518,899 446074 3[25.32/" (—r
Total Assets 592,606 472,811
Ratios
Years Ended December 31, 2005 and 2004 l
2005 2004
Return on Average Assets 0.99% 091% i
Return on Average Equity 12.18% 12.23% L 7L L L |

‘01 02 03 04 05
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A Letter From The CEO

Dear Shareholders,

The theme of this annual report — Reaching
New Heights - is an appropriate analogy for
Appalachian Bancshares. We reached a new
level as a company and as an investment in
2005.

This is an exciting time in the history of Ap-
palachian Bancshares. Not only did we reach
many significant milestones in 2005, we also
positioned our company to take advantage of
the numerous growth-opportunities that lie
ahead of us.

Our accomplishments in 2005, and over the
past 11 years, are evidence that our long-term
strategy for profitability and shareholder value
has been successful and continues to lead us
in the right direction for future growth.

This strategy — building lasting relationships
with our customers in high-growth markets - is being fueled by the
burgeoning metro Atlanta area and its increasing economic impact on
our market.

Strong Financial Performance
Financially, we made great strides in 2005, including:
w Diluted earnings per share (EPS) of $1.21, an increase
of 16 percent from 2004.
= Netincome totaling $5.1 million, a 27 percent increase.
= Total assets exceading $590 million, up 25 percent
from 2004.
w Deposit growth of 24 percent, and a 21 percent
increase in total loans.
= Net interest margin equaling 4.77 percent, a rise of 35
basis points.

I'want to highlight the fact that we were able to meet our annual goal
of increasing EPS by 13-15 percent, despite the fact that our earnings
were spread over mare shares in 2005 than in 2004, due to the stock
offering we completed in October, as well as stock options exercised
and additions to 401(k) plans.

Our financial results in 2005 are a continuation of the strong com-
pounded annual growth rates we have achieved over the past five
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years — an increase in net income of 26 per-
cent annually and 19 percent in diluted EPS.
Annual growth rates in total assets (17 per-
cent), total loans (16 percent) and total de-
posits (17 percent) all reached double digits
during the same period.

Reflecting this performance was the price of
our stock, which increased 13 percent from
October 6 - the ifirst day we began trading
on Nasdaq - to December 31.

Growing the Right Way

Qur long-term business strategy has re-
sulted not only in an increase in the guan-
tity of our growth, but also in the quality of
our growth. This is an important distinction

to make when understanding how we are
building for the future.

Our aim is to grow through the addition of
new customers, the continued develop-
ment of existing customer relationships, and taking full advantage of
the enormous increase in economic development in our market and
surrounding areas. To do this, we strengthened the executive man-
agement team in 2005, welcoming Joseph T. Moss Jr. as President and
Chief Operating Officer.

An Atlanta-area resident since 1972, Joe had a two-year consulting/
advisory relationship with our company before joining us. He brings
a wealth of banking experience to Appalachian Bancshares, having
served as a founding Director of Ceto and Associates, a national con-
sulting firm for financial institutions, and as a Senior Manager at KPMG
Peat Marwick, a major international accounting and consulting firm.
He also was Chief Operating Officer of a $500 million-asset commu-
nity bankin Dania, Fla.

He is in charge of managing the day-to-day operations of the bank
and holding company and identifying ways to continue to enhance
shareholder value, His addition to our team has freed me up to focus
more intently on refining our strategic vision of where we are taking
this company over the next months and years — and working toward
achieving that vision.

We also tock a major step in 2005 to handle the increase in investor
interest in our stock. Appalachian Bancshares became the first Gilmer




BERE& ([ A Letter From The CEO

We have a magnificent view from our present
overlook of the valley from where we first began
our joumney. However, our attention is focused
squarely on the path ahead - as there is sfill
much terrain to climb.

Despite our fast-paced growth, we have held firm
to the core values upon which we were founded
- serving our customers and our communities.

County-based bank to trade on the Nasdag National Market. Trading
on Nasdaq has given us a higher visibility in the financial community
and better access to the capital markets than we had when trading on
the smaller OTC Bulletin Board. Investors now can buy and sell shares
in our company more quickly and easily, thanks to greater liquidity and
improved pricing efficiencies.

The Nasdag listing coincided with our first large-scale stock offering,
in which we raised more than $18 million in net proceeds. This capital
infusion enables us to further invest in our company and our people,
ensuring that we have the ability to grow along with our market.

Our Nasdagq listing and stock offering reflect the tremendous growth of
a company that 11 years ago had only 15 full-time staff members and
$5.6 million in assets. It also is a testament to the fact that, despite our
fast-paced growth, we have held firm to the core values upon which
we were founded - serving our customers and our communities,

Reaching New Heights

Returning to the theme of Reaching New Heights, we have a magnifi-
cent view from our present overlook of the valley from where we first
began our journey. However, our attention is focused squarely on the
path ahead - as there is still much terrain to climb. This is why the steps
we took in 2005 were so important in positioning us to reach new lev-
els of growth in the coming years.

I am confident in our abilities to continue reaching new heights. Every-
one at Appalachian Bancshares feels a sense of pride and accomplish-
ment in what we have achieved, yet there is still a great deal of motiva-
tion and determination to make our company even better,

As always, we thank you for your support.

Sincerely,

ey L by

Tracy R. Newton
Chief Executive Officer

Appalachian Bancshares, inc. [}



CIRvVViny, st
Nerth @@@ﬁgﬁ@m@fk@ﬁ @@@ﬂ the E@uﬂtﬁ@@@mm@

COMMUNItIAs Wa SErva,




North Georgia Market Overview

Located only 80 miles north of downtown Atlanta, our market area
includes Gilmer, Fannin and Union counties. Each is among the 100
fastest growing counties in the United States, according to the US.
Census Bureau, based on housing unit estimates frorn 2000 to 2004.
The populations of Gilmer, Fannin and Union counties grew 64 pet-
cent on a combined basis between 1990 and 2004.

During the past five years the number of households in our market
area increased 20 percent, compared to the national average of 7 per-
cent. As defined by the US. Census Bureau, a household includes all
the people who occupy a housing unit as their usual place of resi-
dence. By 2010, total households in our market are projected to grow
another 17 percent, compared to just 7 percent growth nationally.

Total bank deposits in Gilmer, Fannin and Union counties have climbed
more than $800 million over the past five years, from $971 million at
June 30, 2000, to $1.79 billion at June 30, 2005, accorcing to the FDIC.

The reasons behind this upsurge in population and economic activity
are clear. Qur market lies in the beautiful foothills of the Blue Ridge
Mountains. The ever-expanding Atlanta Metropolitan Statistical Area
(MSA) now reaches all the way to our doorstep, bordering Gilmer
County.

Our market area is directly adjacent to more than 4 million people liv-
ing in the Atlanta MSA — over half of Georgia’s total population. By
2012, metro Atlanta’s population is expected to grow to more than 5
million people, while creating 1.8 million new jobs by 2025.

WALKER

CHATTOOGA ;

FLOYD

BARTOW

o

s
"

o on {
r'“ '
N
el
BINTAY s wauren The Aflanta MSA (in blug)
b_

J!_ . comprises 28 counties and
.ﬁ‘%

carRoLL d reaches cll the way to our North
ﬁ Georgia market area (in gold) -
aw

only 80 miles north of downtown
PR Aflanta. A four-lane highway
links the MSA to our doorstep.
From our Ellijay headqguarters,
drive time to Atlanta’s Hartsfield-
Jackson International Airport is
only 80 minutes.

Customer Profile

Cruthis Sanford and his son Brent are successful
builders in North Georgia. Each runs his own "Mom
& Pop"small business (as Brent refers to them),
similarly focusing on housing construction and
land development.

Cruthis began building houses 25 years ago. Brent
has been in the business for 15 years. They build
most types of houses, but specialize in large log
cabins and craftsman-style homes,

Cruthis and Brent have lived in Gilmer County all
their lives and enjoy the friendliness and values
that run deep in their hometown. They were im-
mediately attracted to the prompt and personal
service that is the hallmark of Gilmer County Bank,

developing a strong relationship with Patsy Daven-
port, vice president of Lending. “It is the personal
relationship and minimizing the red tape' that
make banking with Patsy and Gilmer County Bank a
pleasure,” say Cruthis and Brent.

Support from the bank enabled Cruthis and Brent
to purchase and begin development of Turkey
Knob Estates, an upscale gated community featur-
ing panoramic mountain views. The initial phase
of the subdivision has 70 lots. Over half the lots
have been sold to individuals wishing to build
homes now or in the near future, with 10 currently
under construction,

Both Cruthis and Brent view their banking relation-
ship with Gilmer County Bank as a partnership.
Just as they have received great value and service
from the bank, they have in turn done their best
to return the favor. "It has been my pleasure to
work with Cruthis and Brent for many years, Patsy
Davenport says. “Both have referred many new and
repeat customers to the bank, which makes our
relationship a win-win!

"There’s no other bank like Gilmer County Bank,"
says Brent."They may trade on Nasdag, but they
still provide a hometown atmosphere. They treat
me very well - just like family.”

The relationship the bank has with the Sanfords is a
prime example of how Appalachian Bancshares has
grown and plans to continue growing: providing
vatued services with a smile to happy, loyal cus-
tomers who refer new customers to the bank.

Appalachian Bancshares, Inc. [
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The compelling combination of
abundant recreational opportunities
and affordability have made Fannin
County the preferred North Georgia
location for second homes and
vacation homes.

Just as metro Atlanta is booming, so is our market

- and cur growth opportunities.

All of the counties in which we operate are benefiting from the proxim-
ity to Atlanta, as well as affordability. However, each county has its own
particular growth drivers as well.

Gilmer County, where our headquarters are located, continues to expe-
rience more organic growth — in permanent residences, industrial and
commercial development, and retail and health services - in addition
to the "new” growth related to the ongoing residential development
and population influx.

Retirees have found North Georgia to be an ideal place to settle. Resi-
dents over the age of 55 in Gilmer, Fannin and Union counties grew by
an average of 27 percent from 2000 to 2005, with Union County lead-
ing the way as a retirement destination.

Natural beauty and recreation are also powerful draws to people from
Atlanta and other nearby metro areas. Mountains, lakes and waterfalls
are prominent features of the North Georgia landscape. The compel-
ling combination of abundant recreational opportunities and afford-
ability have made Fannin County the preferred North Georgia location
for second homes and vacation homes.

Infact, Smart Money magazine in 2002 named Blue Ridge (Fannin County)
as one of the top five locales for affordable vacation homes in the United
States. Indeed, while median home values have escalated in Gilmer (by
69 percent), Fannin (80 percent) and Union (91 percent) counties from
1990 to 2000, they remain below state and national averages.
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Population Growth 1990-2004**

100%
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63% 64%

35%

Y

Union Co. Fannin Co. North Ga.* State of Ga.

Gilmer Co.

Projected Household Growth 2005-2010
17%

11%

7%

North Ga.* State of Ga. ‘ Us.

Increase In Median Home Values 1990-2000
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Gilmer Co. Fannin Co. Union Co.

Source: U.S. Census Bureau
*Gilmer, Fannin and Union Counties
**Estimates for 2004
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Customer Profile

Jouko J. Rissanen has a vision for a better Gilmer
County. Appalachian Bancshares is working with him
to make it a reality.

With a proven track record of success in various busi-
ness and development projects, the Helsinki, Finland,
native decided to relocate to North Georgia after a
visit from Atlanta to the area on his Harley-Davidson.
He was attracted by the region’s natural beauty as
well as its economic potential.

Sensing that the region was ripe for economic
expansion due to its scenic landscape and proximity
to metro Atlanta, Jouko purchased a large tract of
land bordering Highway 515 where timber was once
harvested. Understanding from previous experience
that development can be both a blessing and a curse
for a community, Jouko carefully developed a master
plan for the site,

His plan concentrates on commercial development,
including retail stores, restaurants, banking, health
services and a 70-acre lake along the highly traveled
Highway 515, while preserving as much of the area's
natural landscape as possible for future single- and
multifamily residential development,

G_iln%

County Bank (

Such national stalwarts as Wal-Mart, Lowe's and
Longhorn Steakhouse, along with regional anchor
and local retail businesses, have built in The
Highlands at East Eltijay. In addition, Gilmer County
Bank has purchased a site in the development for a
proposed full-service branch to serve the needs of
this growing area.

To date, businesses in The Highlands at East Ellijay
are contributing an estimated $12 million in yearly
tax revenue to the State of Georgia — much of which
is earmarked for Gilmer County — white employ-

ing 1,200 people. Jouko predicts the employment
number could climb as high as 2,500 when the
development is completed.

“I'have a good relationship with Appalachian
Bancshares thatis built on trust, says Jouko, who has
several significant community developments being
financed by Gilmer County Bank."They are like a large
family with whom | feel welcome and comfortable.
l'am fortunate that they have put their trust in me
and my vision for Gilmer County, and have no doubt
that Gilmer County and Appalachian Bancshares are
positioned for a future of tremendous growth.”

Appalachian Bancshares, Inc.




A Letter From The COO

It certainly was a momentous year for Appalachian
Bancshares - one that positions us for the future
and allows us to continue to expand our successful

brand of community banking.

Over the last decade, some people have said that consolidation would
make community banks a thing of the past, ultimately leaving consum-
ers with only a handful of large banks, Those futurists clearly do not
understand why people bank where they do.

People bank where they can be taken care of, where they are treated
well and made to feel special and unigue. We recognize this fact and
have made it a fundamental principle of how we operate our bank.

For those who think small banks cannot compete with the big boys,
technological advances enable progressive community banks to offer
the same products to customers that the mega banks offer. The dif-
ference is that community banks such as ours can do it much mare
efficiently and with a smile.

Balancing Stakeholder Interests
We view community banking as a delicate balancing act among sev-
eral stakeholder groups, including:

o Our People. Their hard work and commitment are responsible for
the continued growth of this company. We make every effort to
properly reward them, which is why we are proud that our 407(k)
plan is our largest single shareholder.

© Our Customers. We would be nowhere without our customers.
They are the reason for our existence. It is our job to understand
their financial needs, to counsel them on the best products and
services that will help them accomplish their goals, and to provide
those services in a timely and efficient manner.

o Our Shareholders. Shareholders provide the capital - the fuel -
that allows us to grow. We understand that our shareholders have
many other investment opportunities vying for their capital. It
is our mission to ensure that they continue to benefit from their
commitment to us.

= Our Communities. We have a responsibility to be a good steward
to the communities we serve. They rely on us to provide important
services through our talents and resources.

o Our Regulators. Customers enjoy insurance from the FDIC that
protects their deposits in banks in case of economic downturns or
poor management. As such, we must view requlators as partners and
make sure that we comply with all applicable rules and regulations.

2005 Annual Report

On March 3, 2006,
Appalachian
Bancshares cut
the ribbon on ifs
new 39,000-square-
foot Operations &
Corporate Center.

We believe we have achieved the right balance for all of our stakehold-
ers. Our shareholders have enjoyed significant returns. Our customers
have benefited from our investments in a wide array of products and
services. Our employees continue to work diligently to make this bank
the best it can be every day. Our communities have expressed their
appreciation for our local support. And ourregulators have been com-
plimentary of our organization.

Commitment to Core Values

To continue fulfilling our commitment to these stakeholders in the fu-
ture, we have developed a set of bedrock principles with which we
govern ourselves and our company. Though they are lofty ideals, we
are committed to observing them, and we insist that each employee
embrace these core values:

2 It's not about me or you; it's about helping others be successful,

o Superior customer service and sound, quick decisions are the
rule — not the exception.

© We do what we say we're going to do.

o We should expect to be paid for providing value to the customer.

o We want to be the bank of choice for people to work for, invest in
and do business with.




Above and right:
the Appalachian Trail

Our bedrock
principles serve

as guideposts ¢s
we progress along
the frail foward
meeting all of our

Our Focus: Delivering Service

Appalachian Bancshares faces some significant challenges over
the next several years. The most important is continuing to expand
geographically and financially while still providing the unique brand of
service that our customers value, .

In an effort to continue growing without sacrificing the high level of
service we provide to our customers, we have strengthened our inter-
nal organization in the past year:

o We created an internal Management Team consisting of representa-
tives of the major functions of the bank. This group meets weekly
to discuss issues and decisions that affect the entire company. We
understand that each person and operating group has an impact on
the greater good of the bank.

& We developed a Product Management function focused on de-
posits and loans. Product managers are responsible for developing,
pricing, marketing and delivering our various products to all cus-
tomers in a profitable and efficient manner. They assist the relation-
ship managers based in each of our markets. We also will continue
to build our loan and deposit product lines to ensure that we can
meet the financial needs of our customers.

stakeholders’ needs.

oo A Letter From The COO

People bank where they can be taken care of, where
they are treated well and made to feel special and
unique. We recognize this fact and have made it a

fundamental principle of how we operate our bank.

o We created a Credit Underwriting group. Sound credit decisions
are the most critical component of our day-to-day business, We
must be right in our credit decisions 99.5% of the time - an indus-
try rule of thumb and a staggering requirement. Our Credit Under-
writing group assists relationship managers with making proper
credit decisions through ongoing training and by reviewing spe-
cific decisions before approval. This function is organizationally
separate from the Credit Administration group, which reviews all
transactions after the fact.

8 We now have a Sales Ambassador team that acts as an outside sales
force, marketing our various products and referring potential cus-
tomers to our relationship managers. The significant influx of new
people into our communities has led to increased competition
from other banks. No longer can a community bank wait for the
business to come to them.

8]

We are relocating our operational and administrative functions into
our new 39,000-square-foot Appalachian Bancshares Operations &
Corporate Center. Housing these functions under one roof is vital
to managing the ongoing rise in customer activity across our bank-
ing franchise. Increasing our back office capabilities should help us
better coordinate resources among our branch locations, expand
our ability to deliver the products and services our customers want,
further streamline decision-making and reduce redundant costs.

= Moreover, we continue to push the decision process as close to the
customer as possible in order to facilitate superior customer service
and quick decision-making.

These are exciting times for Appalachian Bancshares and our custom-
ers. North Georgia is booming. Our bank is growing. And we're doing
everything we can to prepare our people, customers and operations
to take full advantage of the seemingly endless opportunities that
lie ahead.

We are fortunate to tive and work in a beautiful area that is on the rise. My
family and I are very excited to be part of this wonderful community.

;,?L’V Aoss %

Joseph T. Moss Jr.
Chief Operating Officer

Appalachian Bancshares, Inc. [0



A Letter From The Chairman

I am proud to say that not only have we
stayed true to our bedrock principles

of service and soundness, these values
are the very reason we have continued

to grow and prosper. It is especially
rewarding to know that we have achieved
success by doing things the right way.
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Dear Fellow Shareholders,

As a founding director of Appalachian Bancshares, | am gratified to see
first-hand our company’s continued strong financial performance and
exciting initiatives such as our Nasdaq listing. However, as a shareholder
and customer myself, | am even more pleased that we have been able
to reach these heights without compromising our founding values as a
customer-focused bank.

Itis easy to lose focus in the bright lights of Wall Street, where so often
the only concern is meeting quarterly estimates. It is a dangerous al-
lure that causes many companies to become more concerned about
numbers than people. To continue our success, it is imperative that we
do not lose sight of our vital constituents — our customers, employees,
shareholders and the communities we serve.

| am proud to say that not only have we stayed true to our bedrock
principles of service and soundnass, these values are the very reason
we have continued to grow and prosper. It is especially rewarding to
know that we have achieved success by doing things the right way.
Qurs continues to be quality growth, not just growth for growth's sake.

To understand how we have been able to remain grounded in the face
of our rapid growth, you need look no further than the nine founding
professionals who were with the bank the day we opened 11 years ago
- and are still with us today. They are the very roots from which this
company has grown.

These professionals deserve special recognition not only because of
their loyalty and hard work in building the foundation for our present
and future success, but also because they continue to serve as a daily
example to us all by "living the values” that underscore everything
we do.

As we continue to grow our banking franchise across North Georgia,
our profile on Wall Street likely will become greater. We understand,
though, that no matter how big we may become, our commitment to
our founding principles cannot — and will not — waiver,

Sincerely,

4) Bl Zici P

J. Ronald Knight
Chairman
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To understand how we have been abie to remain
grounded in the face of our rapid growth, you need
look no further than the nine founding professionals
who were with the bank the day we opened 11 years
ago - and are still with us today. They are the very
roots from which this company has grown.




Board of Directors
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Back Row: Frank Jones, Roger Futch, Charles Edmondson, Tracy Newton, Kenneth Warren
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Front Row: Joseph Hensley, Ronald Knight, Alan Dover

J. Ronald Knight, Chairman

J. Ronald Knight, age 63, has been
a director of the Company since
1996 and a director of the Bank
since 1994. He currently serves as
Chairman of the Board of Direc-
tors of the Company, Chairman of
the Company's Corporate Gover-
nance/Executive  Compensation
Committee and a member of both
the Company’s Directors Loan
Committee and Audit Committee.
Mr. Knight is President and part
owner of Twin City Motors, Inc.

Charles A. Edmondson,

Vice Chairman

Charles A, Edmondson, age
58, has been a director of the
Company since 1996 and a
director of the Bank since 1994,
He currently serves as the
Vice Chairman of the Board of
Directors of the Company and a
member of both the Company’s
Community Board Committee
and ALCO Committee.  Mr.
Edmondson is an Agent with
State Farm Insurance.




Alan S. Dover

Alan S. Dover, age 49, has been
a director of the Company since
1996 and a director of the Bank
since 1994. He currently serves
as a member of the Company’s
Directors Loan Committee. Mr.
Dover is the Chiaf Executive Offi-
cer and owner of AS. Dover Con-
struction, Inc.

Joseph C. Hensley

Joseph C. Hensley, age 48, has
been a director of the Company
since 1996 and a director of the
Bank since 1994, He currently
serves as the Corporate Secre-
tary of the Board of Directors of
the Company, Chairman of the
Company's  Audit  Committee
‘and a member of the Company’s
401(k) Committee, Information
Technology Committee  and
ALCO Committes. Mr. Hensley is
a CPA and is Vice President of AS.
Daover Construction, Inc.

Tracy R. Newton

Tracy R. Newton, age 49, has been
a director of the Company since
1996 and a director of the Bank
since 1994, Mr. Newton is Chief
Executive Officer of Appalachian
Bancshares, Inc, and Appalachian
Community Bank.

Roger E. Futch

Roger E. Futch, age 60, has been
a director of the Company since
1996 and a director of the Bank
since 1994, He currently serves as
the Assistant Corporate Secretary
of the Board of Directars of the
Company, Chairman of the Com-
pany’s Directors Loan Committee
and a member of both the Com-
pany's 401(k) Committee and
Corporate Governance/Executive
Compensation Committee. Mr.
Futch is Chief Operations Officer
and Executive Vice President of
ETC, Inc.

Frank E. Jones

Frank E. Jones, age 53, has been
a director of the Company since
1996 and a director of the Bank
since 1994, He currently serves
as the Chairman of the Com-
pany's ALCO Committee and a
member of both the Company’s
Community Board Committee
and Audit Committee. Mr. Janes
is the minister of the Elljay
Church of Christ.

Kenneth D. Warren

Kenneth D. Warren, age 56, has
been a director of the Company
since 1996 and a director of the
Bank since 1994. He cumently
serves as Chairman of the Com-
munity Board Committee and a
member of both the Company’s
Corporate  Governance/Execu-
tive’ Compensation Committee
and Directors Loan Committee.
Mr. Warren is the President and
owner of Warren's Auto Sales, Inc.

Appalachian Bancshares, Inc. [




Executive Management
Tracy Newton (seated)
Joe Moss

Senior Management Team

Back Row: Keith Hales, Adam Teague, Linda Burnette, Rob Kaser,
Kyle Ray, Ken Castle, Pat Skinner, Alan May

Front Row: Virginia Cochran, Ruth Jordan, Joe Moss, Tracy Newton,
Cathy Hillebert, Regina Todd

Finance & Operations Team
Back Row: Regina Hill, Brian Abercrombie,
Dennis Vinson, Keith Hales, Pat Skinner, Trina Penland

Front Row: Lisa Hoyle, Brenda Smith, Jim Sitton,
Elaine Cantreli, Joyce Byers

2005 Annual Report




Gilmer County Bank
Management and

Community Directors

Back Row: Wally Stover, John Harrison,
Kyle Ray, Virginia Cochran,

Alan May, Kenneth Warren

Front Row: Adam Teague, Jessie Wimpey,
Dorothy Logan, Darrell Jones

Appalachian Community Bank
Blue Ridge Management and
Community Directors

Back Row: Charles Edmondson, Jim Sisson,
Morgan Arp, Frank Shinpaugh

Front Row: Melissa Lillard, Ruth Jordan,
Bill Haommond
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PARTI
ITEM 1. BUSINESS

This Report contains “forward-looking statements” within the meaning of the Private Securities Litigation
Reform Act of 1995, such as statements relating to future plans and expectations, and are thus prospective. These
statements are based on many assumptions and estimates and are not guarantees of future performance. Our actual
results may differ materially from those projected in any forward-looking statements, as they will depend on many
factors about which we are unsure, including many factors which are beyond our control. The words “may,”
“would,” “could,” “will,” “expect,” “anticipate,” “believe,” “intend,” “plan,” and “estimate,” as well as similar
expressions, are meant to identify such forward-looking statements. Potential risks and uncertainties include, but are

not limited to, those described below under Item 1A, entitled “Risk Factors.”
General Overview

We are a Georgia corporation organized in 1996 to serve as the bank holding company for Appalachian
Community Bank (formerly Gilmer County Bank), a state-chartered bank located in the foothills of the Blue Ridge
Mountains in North Georgia. We are headquartered in Ellijay, Georgia, and, in March 2006, we opened our new
headquarters and operations center, also located in Ellijay. In 1995, Gilmer County Bank opened its first branch
office in Elljjay, Georgia. In November 1998, we acquired a bank with one location in Blairsville, Georgia, and
changed its name to Appalachian Community Bank to reflect our strategy to build a community bank franchise in
our geographic market area. In May 2000, we opened a branch office in East Ellijay, Georgia, and in August 2001,
we opened a loan production office in Blue Ridge, Georgia, which we converted to a full-service branch in February
2002. In August 2001, we merged Appalachian Community Bank into Gilmer County Bank, although we continue
to operate our branches in Ellijay and East Ellijay under the trade name “Gilmer County Bank.”

We provide a fuil range of retail and commercial banking products and services to individuals and small- to
medium- sized businesses through our community banking relationship model. Such products and services include
the receipt of demand and time deposit accounts, the extension of personal and commercial loans and the furnishing
of personal and commercial checking accounts. As of December 31, 2005, we had total assets of approximately
$592.6 million, total loans of approximately $457.4 million, total deposits of approximately $473.3 million and total
shareholders’ equity of approximately $59.8 million. Our website is located at www.acbanks.net.

During the fourth quarter of 2005, we closed the sale of 1,265,000 shares of our common stock at $16.00
per share in a firm commitment underwritten offering. We received net proceeds of approximately $18.4 million
from the offering, after deducting underwriting discounts and expenses. Net proceeds from the offering are being
used for general corporate purposes, including, among other things, providing additional capital to our subsidiary,
Appalachian Community Bank, to support asset growth.

Our Market Area

Our market area is located approximately 80 miles north of Atlanta and is primarily comprised of Gilmer,
Fannin and Union counties. We refer to our market area, which borders Tennessee and North Carolina, as “North
Georgia”. North Georgia provides a number of outdoor recreational activities, including hiking, canoeing, fishing,
swimming, rafting, hunting and mountain biking. We believe that the natural resources of our market area and its
proximity to metropolitan Atlanta are two of the main reasons that our market area has recently experienced
significant population growth. North Georgia’s abundant outdoor and recreational activities has made it a popular
area for second-home buyers and retirees. We believe that the demographic trends and growth characteristics of our
market area will continue to provide us with significant growth opportunities in the future.

Operating and Growth Strategy

Our strategy is to build a community bank franchise servicing real estate developers, small business owners
and primary and second home buyers in the North Georgia mountains and surrounding fast-growing communities.
We believe we can execute this strategy and grow our business by building personal relationships with our
customers, emphasizing superior customer service and communicating a consistent set of operating principles to our
employees. Further, we believe that the continued growth in our market area offers us the opportunity for growth at
our current branches and the potential for new branches in our existing markets. We also have plans to expand our
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market presence, either through acquisition or de novo branching, to other areas of North Georgia and possibly
North Carolina and Tennessee.

Lending Activities

General. We offer a variety of loans, including real estate, construction, commercial and consumer loans
to individuals and small- to mid-size businesses that are located or conduct a substantial portion of their business in
our market area. Although we offer a variety of types of loans, we emphasize the use of real estate as collateral and
our underwriting standards vary for each type of loan, as described below. As of December 31, 2005, 86.8% of the
loans in our loan portfolio were secured by real estate. At December 31, 2005, we had total loans of $457.4 million,
representing 77.2% of our total assets. We have focused our lending activities primarily on small business owners
and residential real estate developers. At December 31, 2005, loans to the construction industry amounted to $203.5
million, or approximately 44.5% of our total loan portfolio, loans to the poultry industry amounted to $21.4 million,
or approximately 4.7% of our total loan portfolio and loans to the hospitality (hotel/motel) industry amounted to
$21.4 million, or approximately 4.7% of our total loan portfolio.

Our underwriting standards vary for each type of loan. In underwriting all of our real estate related loans,
we seek to minimize our risks by giving careful consideration to the property’s operating history, future operating
projections, current and projected occupancy, location and physical condition. Our underwriting analysis also
includes credit checks, reviews of appraisals and environmental hazards and a review of the financial condition of
the borrower. We attempt to limit our risk by analyzing our borrowers’ cash flow and collateral value on a regular
basis. After a loan is approved, our credit administration group focuses on the loan portfolio, including regularly
monitoring the quality of the loan portfolio. Further, we also engage outside firms to evaluate our loan portfolio on
a quarterly basis for credit quality and compliance issues.

In addition, we engage in secondary-market mortgage activities by obtaining commitments from secondary
mortgage purchasers for loans originated by our bank. Based on these commitments, we originate mortgage loans
on comparable terms and generate commissions to supplement our interest income. We do not hold any of these
mortgage loans for resale and do not service the mortgages.

Real Estate Loans. Loans secured by real estate are the primary component of our loan portfolio. To
increase the likelihood of the ultimate repayment of the loan, we obtain a security interest in the real estate whenever
possible, in addition to the other available collateral. At December 31, 2005, loans secured by real estate amounted
to $397.2 million, or 86.8%, of our total loan portfolio.

These loans consist primarily of construction and development loans, commercial real estate loans and
residential real estate loans. Interest rates for all categories may be fixed or adjustable. We generally charge an
origination fee for each loan and may collect renewal and late charge fees. Real estate loans are subject to the same
general risks as other loans and are particularly sensitive to fluctuations in the value of real estate. Fluctuations in
the value of real estate, as well as other factors arising after a loan has been made, could negatively affect a
borrower's cash flow, creditworthiness and ability to repay the loan.

o Construction and Development Real Estate Loans. We offer adjustable and fixed rate residential and
commercial construction loans to builders and developers and to consumers wishing to build their own
homes. The duration of our construction and development loans generally is limited to 12 months,
although payments may be structured on a longer amortization basis. Construction and development
loans generally carry a higher degree of risk than long-term financing of existing properties because
repayment depends on the ultimate completion of the project and usually on the sale of the property.
Specitfic risks include:

O  costoverruns;

o mismanaged construction;

o inferior or improper construction techniques;

o economic changes or downturns during construction;
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o adownturn in the real estate market;
o rising interest rates which may prevent sale of the property; and
o failure to sell completed projects in a timely manner.

We attempt to reduce the risk associated with construction and development loans by obtaining
personal guarantees where possible and by keeping the loan-to-value ratio of the completed project at
or below 80%. At December 31, 20085, total construction and development loans amounted to $203.5
million, or 44.5% of our loan portfolio. Of this amount, commercial construction loans represented
$37.9 million, or 8.3% of our loan portfolio, and residential construction loans totaled $165.6 million,
or 36.2% of our loan portfolio.

s Commercial Real Estate Loans. Our commercial real estate loans generally have terms of five years or
less, although payments can be structured over a longer amortization period. We evaluate each
borrower on an individual basis and attempt to determine the business risks and credit profile of each
borrower. We attempt to reduce credit risk in the commercial real estate portfolio by emphasizing
loans on owner-occupied properties where the loan-to-value ratio, established by independent
appraisals, does not exceed 80%. We also generally require that a borrower’s cash flow exceeds 110%
of monthly debt service obligations. In order to ensure secondary sources of payment and liquidity, we
typically review all of the personal financial statements of the principal owners and require their
personal guarantees. These commercial real estate loans include various types of business purpose
loans secured by farmland and nonresidential commercial real estate. At December 31, 2005,
commercial real estate loans (other than commercial construction loans) amounted to $109.3 million,
or approximately 23.9% of our loan portfolio.

e  Residential Real Estate Loans. At December 31, 2005, our residential real estate loans consisted
primarily of loans secured by one- to- four family residences and multi-family (five or more)
residences. These loans are generally secured by residential real estate. At December 31, 2003, total
residential real estate loans amounted to $84.4 million, or 18.5% of our loan portfolio. Of this amount,
loans secured by one-to-four family residences totaled $74.6 million, or 16.3% of our loan portfolio,
and loans secured by multi-family residences totaled $9.9 million, or 2.2% of our loan portfolio.

Commercial Business Loans. We make loans for commercial purposes to various lines of businesses.
Commercial loans are generally considered to have greater risk than first or second mortgages on real estate because
commercial leans may be unsecured or, if they are secured, the value of the collateral may be difficult to assess and
more likely to decrease than real estate. At December 31, 2005, commercial business loans amounted to $33.8
million, or 7.4% of our total loan portfolio, excluding for these purposes commercial loans secured by real estate
which are included in the real estate category above.

Consumer Loans. We make a variety of loans to individuals for personal and household purposes,
including secured and unsecured installment and term loans, home equity loans and lines of credit and revolving
lines of credit such as credit cards. Consumer loans are underwritten based on the individual borrower's income,
current debt level, past credit history and value of any available collateral. Consumer loan rates are both fixed and
variable, with negotiable terms. Our instaliment loans typically amortize over periods up to 60 months. We will
offer consumer loans with a single maturity date when a specific source of repayment is available. We typically
require monthly payments of interest and a portion of the principal on our revolving loan products. Consumer loans
are generally considered to have greater risk than first or second mortgages on real estate because they may be
unsecured or, if they are secured, the value of the collateral may be difficult to assess and more likely to decrease in
value than real estate. At December 31, 2005, consumer loans amounted to $21.1 million, or 4.6% of our loan
portfolio.

Loan Approval. Certain credit risks are inherent in making loans. These include prepayment risks, risks
resulting from uncertainties in the future value of collateral, risks resulting from changes in economic and industry
conditions and risks inherent in dealing with individual borrowers. We attempt to mitigate these risks by adhering to
internal credit policies and procedures. Our policies and procedures include officer and client lending limits, a
multi-layered approval process for larger loans, documentation examination and follow-up procedures for any
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exceptions to credit policies. Our loan approval policies provide for various levels of officer lending authority.
When the amount of aggregate loans to a single borrower exceeds an individual officer's lending authority, which
ranges from $5,000 to $500,000, the loan request will be considered by an officer with a higher lending limit or by
the officers’ loan committee. The members of our officers’ loan committee can approve loans up to $1.0 million. If
a loan exceeds $1.0 million, then the board of directors’ loan committee may approve the loan. On a monthly basts,
any actions of the board of directors’ loan committee are further ratified by the bank’s entire board of directors. We
do not make any loans to directors or executive officers of the bank unless the loan is approved by the board of
directors of the bank and is on terms not more favorable to such person than would be available to a person not
affiliated with the bank.

Credit Administration and Loan Review. We maintain a continuous loan review system and use an
independent consultant to review the loan files on a quarterly basis. Each loan officer is responsible for rating each
loan he or she makes and for reviewing those loans on a periodic basis. Our credit underwriting and credit
administration groups assist us in strengthening our credit review processes and establishing performance
benchmarks in the areas of nonperforming assets, charge-offs, past dues and loan documentation. The credit
administration group also supervises loan and processing functions.

Lending Limits. Our lending activities are subject to a variety of lending limits imposed by state and
federal law. In general, the bank is subject to a legal limit on loans to a single borrower equal to 15% of the bank’s
capital and unimpaired surplus for unsecured loans and 25% of the bank’s capital and unimpaired surplus for
secured loans. This limit will increase or decrease as the bank’s capital increases or decreases. Based on the
capitalization of the bank at December 31, 2005, our legal lending limits were approximately $7.3 million for
secured loans and $4.4 million for unsecured loans. We sell participations in our larger loans to other financial
institutions, which allows us to manage the risk involved in these loans and to meet the lending needs of our
customers requiring extensions of credit in excess of this limit. At December 31, 2005, we had participations
totaling $22.2 million.

Deposit Services

Our principal source of funding is core deposits, supplemented by brokered deposits, Federal Home Loan
Bank (“FHLB”) advances, federal funds purchased and securities sold under agreements to repurchase. We offer a
full range of deposit services, including checking accounts, commercial accounts, savings accounts and other time
deposits of various types, ranging from daily money market accounts to long-term certificates of deposit. All
deposit accounts are insured by the FDIC up to the maximum amount allowed by law.

Other Products and Services

We provide a full range of additional retail and commercial banking products and services, including
checking, savings and money market accounts; certificates of deposit; internet banking and bill payment; credit
cards; safe-deposit boxes; money orders; electronic funds transfer services; travelers’ checks and automatic teller
machine access. We are also a member of the STAR ATM network, which permits our customers to perform certain
banking transactions, both within and outside of our market area. We currently do not offer trust or fiduciary
services.

We are committed to modifying existing, or developing new, products and services that are responsive to
the banking demands of our customers. For example, we have recently begun offering an internet-based cash
management system for small businesses, as well as an enhancement to personal checking accounts that improves
the overdraft process. In the future we intend to upgrade and expand our services to ensure that we remain
competitive in our product offerings.

Competition

The banking business is highly competitive, and we experience competition in our market from many other
financial institutions. Competition among financial institutions is based upon interest rates offered on deposit
accounts, interest rates charged on loans, other credit and service charges relating to loans, the quality and scope of
the services offered, the convenience of banking facilities and, in the case of loans to commercial borrowers, relative
lending limits. We compete with commercial banks, credit unions, savings and loan associations, mortgage banking
firms, consumer finance companies, securities brokerage firms, insurance companies, money market funds and other
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mutual funds, as well as super-regional, national and international financial institutions that operate offices within
our market area and beyond.

As of June 30, 2005, the most recent date for deposit data complied by the Federal Deposit Insurance
Corporation (“FDIC”), one locally owned bank and three non-locally-owned banks had offices in Gilmer County,
two locally-owned banks and one non-locally-owned bank had offices in Union County, and five non-locally-owned
banks had offices in Fannin County. Many of our competitors, such as BB&T and United Community Bank, are
well-established, larger financial institutions which have substantially greater resources and lending limits. These
institutions offer some services, such as extensive and established branch networks and trust services, that we do not
provide. We also compete with small banks and thrifts in our markets. In addition, many of our non-bank
competitors are not subject to the same extensive federal regulations that govern bank holding companies and
federally insured banks.

Market Share

As of June 30, 2005, according to the most recent data compiled by the FDIC, our market area had total
deposits of approximately $1.79 billion, which represented a 5% deposit increase from 2004. As of June 30, 2005,
we had over 55% market share in Gilmer County, a 15% share in Fannin County and an 8% share in Union County.

Employees
As of December 31, 2005, we had 157 full-time employees and 15 part-time employees.

Monetary Policies

The operations of the bank are significantly affected by the credit policies of monetary authorities,
particularly the Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve System (the “Federal Reserve”). The instruments of
monetary policy employed by the Federal Reserve include open market operations in U.S. government securities,
changes in discount rates on member bank borrowings, and changes in reserve requirements against bank deposits.
In view of changing conditions in the national economy and in the money markets, as well as the effect of action by
monetary and fiscal authorities, including the Federal Reserve, no prediction can be made as to possible future
changes in interest rates, deposit levels, loan demand, or the business and eamnings of the bank.

SUPERVISION AND REGULATION

Both the company and the bank are subject to extensive state and federal banking laws and regulations that
impose specific requirements or restrictions on, and provide for general regulatory oversight of, virtually all aspects
of our operations. These laws and regulations are generally intended to protect depositors, not shareholders. The
following summary is qualified by reference to the statutory and regulatory provisions discussed. Changes in
applicable laws or regulations may have a material effect on our business and prospects. Beginning with the
enactment of the Financial Institutions Reform Recovery and Enforcement Act in 1989 and followed by the FDIC
Improvement Act in 1991, the Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act in 1999, and including the USA PATRIOT act of 2002,
numerous additional regulatory requirements have been placed on the banking industry in the past several years, and
additional changes have been proposed. Our operations may be affected by legislative changes and the policies of
various regulatory authorities. We cannot predict the effect that fiscal or monetary policies, economic control, or
new federal or state legislation may have on our business and earnings in the future.

The following discussion is not intended to be a complete list of all the activities regulated by the banking
laws and regulations or of the impact of such laws and regulations on our operations. It is intended only to briefly
summarize some material provisions.




Appalachian Baneshares, Inc.

We own 100% of the outstanding capital stock of the bank, and therefore we are considered to be a bank
holding company under the federal Bank Holding Company Act of 1956. As a bank holding company registered
with the Federal Reserve under the Bank Holding Company Act and the Georgia Department of Banking and
Finance under the Financial Institutions Code of Georgia, we are subject to supervision, examination and reporting
by the Federal Reserve and the Georgia Department of Banking and Finance. The Federal Reserve and Georgia
Department of Banking and Finance will also regularly examine us and may examine our bank or other subsidiaries.

The Bank Holding Company Act. Under the Bank Holding Company Act, we are subject to periodic
examination by the Federal Reserve and are required to file periodic reports of our operations and any additional
information that the Federal Reserve may require. Qur activities at the bank and holding company levels are limited
to:

e  banking and managing or controlling banks;

s fumnishing services to or performing services for our subsidiaries; and
engaging in other activities that the Federal Reserve determines to be so closely related to banking and
managing or controlling banks as to be a proper incident thereto.

With certain limited exceptions, the Bank Holding Company Act requires every bank holding company to
obtain the prior approval of the Federal Reserve before:

s acquiring substantially all the assets of any bank;

* acquiring direct or indirect ownership or control of any voting shares of any bank if after the
acquisition it would own or control more than 5% of the voting shares of such bank (unless it already
owns or controls the majority of such shares); or

e merging or consolidating with another bank holding company.

In addition, and subject to certain exceptions, the Bank Holding Company Act and the Change in Bank
Control Act, together with regulations promulgated thereunder, require Federal Reserve approval prior to any person
or company acquiring “control” of a bank holding company. Control is conclusively presumed to exist if an
individual or company acquires 25% or more of any class of voting securities of a bank holding company. Control is
rebuttably presumed to exist if a person acquires 10% or more, but less than 25%, of any class of voting securities
and either the company has registered securities under Section 12 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 or no other
person owns a greater percentage of that class of voting securities immediately after the transaction. Our common
stock is registered under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. The regulations provide a procedure for rebutting
control when ownership of any class of voting securities is below 25%.

Under the Bank Holding Company Act, a bank holding company is generally prohibited from engaging in,
or acquiring direct or indirect control of more than 5% of the voting shares of any company engaged in, nonbanking
activities unless the Federal Reserve, by order or regulation, has found those activities to be so closely related to
banking or managing or controlling banks as to be a proper incident thereto. Some of the activities that the Federal
Reserve has determined by regulation to be proper incidents to the business of a bank holding company include:

¢ making or servicing loans and certain types of leases;

e engaging in certain insurance and discount brokerage activities;

performing certain data processing services;

acting in certain circumstances as a fiduciary or investment or financial adviser;

owning savings associations; and

making investments in certain corporations or projects designed primarily to promote community
welfare.

The Federal Reserve imposes certain capital requirements on the company under the Bank Holding.
Company Act, including a minimum leverage ratio and a minimum ratio of “qualifying” capital to risk-weighted
assets. These requirements are described below under “—Appalachian Community Bank—Capital Regulations.” .
Subject to our capital requirements and certain other restrictions, we are able to borrow money to make a capital
contribution to the bank, and these loans may be repaid from dividends paid from the bank-to the company. Our
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ability to pay dividends will be subject to regulatory restrictions as described below in “—Appalachian Bancshares,
Inc. —Subsidiary Dividends.” We are also able to raise capital for contribution to the bank by issuing securities
without having to receive regulatory approval, subject to compliance with federal and state securities laws.

Interstate Banking and Branching. The Riegle-Neal Interstate Banking and Branching Efficiency Act of
1994 permits nationwide interstate banking and branching under certain circumstances. As a result, the company,
and any other bank holding company located in Georgia, is able 10 acquire a bank located in any other state, and a
bank holding company located outside of Georgia can acquire any Georgia-based bank, in either case subject to
certain deposit percentage and other restrictions. De novo branching by an out-of-state bank is permitted only if it is
expressly permitted by the laws of the host state. Georgia law generally authorizes the acquisition of an in-state
bank by an out-of-state bank by merger with a Georgia financial institution that has been in existence for at least 3
years prior to the acquisition. With regard to interstate bank branching, out-of-state banks that do not already
operate a branch in Georgia may not establish de novo branches in Georgia.

Source of Strength; Cross-Guarantee. In accordance with Federal Reserve policy, we are expected to act
as a source of financial strength to the bank and to commit resources to support the bank in circumstances in which
we might not otherwise do so. Under the Bank Holding Company Act, the Federal Reserve may require a bank
holding company to terminate any activity or relinquish control of a nonbank subsidiary, other than a:nonbank
subsidiary of a bank, upon the Federal Reserve’s Board determination that such activity or control constitutes a
serious risk to the financial soundness or stability of any depository institution subsidiary of the bank holding
company. Further, federal bank regulatory authorities have additional discretion to require a bank holding company
to divest itself of any bank or nonbank subsidiaries if the agency determines that divestiture may aid the depository
institution’s financial condition.

Transactions with Affiliates. The company and the bank are deemed to be “affiliates” within the meaning
of the Federal Reserve Act, and transactions between affiliates are subject to certain restrictions. Generally, the
Federal Reserve Act limits the extent to which a financial institution or its subsidiaries may engage in “covered
transactions” with an affiliate. Section 23A of the Federal Reserve Act defines “covered transactions,” which
include extensions of credit, and limits a bank’s covered transactions with any affiliate to 10% of such bank’s capital
and surplus and with all affiliates to 20% of such bank’s capital and surplus. All covered and exempt transactions
between a bank and its affiliates must be on terms and conditions consistent with safe and sound banking practices,
and banks and their subsidiaries are prohibited from purchasing low-quality assets from the bank’s affiliates. Finally,
Section 23 A requires that all of a bank’s extensions of credit to an affiliate be appropriately secured by acceptable
collateral, generally United States government or agency securities. The company and the bank are also subject to
Section 23B of the Federal Reserve Act, which generally limits covered and other transactions between a bank and
its affiliates to terms and under circumstances, including credit standards, that are substantially the same or at least
as favorable to the bank as prevailing at the time for transactions with unaffiliated companies.

The Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act. The Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act was signed into law on November 12,
1999. Among other things, the Act repealed the restrictions on banks affiliating with securities firms contained in
sections 20 and 32 of the Glass-Steagall Act. The Act also permits bank holding companies that become financial
holding companies to engage in a statutorily provided list of financial activities, including insurance and securities
underwriting and agency activities, merchant banking and insurance company portfolio investment activities. The
Act also authorizes activities that are “complementary” to financial activities. We have not elected to become a
financial holding company.

The Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act is intended, in part, to grant to community banks certain powers as a matter
of right that larger institutions have accumulated on an ad hoc basis. Nevertheless, the Act may have the result of
increasing the amount of competition that we face from larger institutions and other types of companies. In fact, it is
not possible to predict the full effect that the Act will have on us.

Subsidiary Dividends. We are a legal entity separate and distinct from the bank. A major portion of our
revenue results from amounts paid as dividends to us by the bank. The approval of the Georgia Department of
Banking and Finance must be obtained before the bank may pay cash dividends out of retained earnings if (i) the
total classified assets at the most recent examination of the bank exceeded 80% of the equity capital, (ii) the
aggregate amount of dividends declared or anticipated to be declared in the calendar year exceeds 50% of the net
profits, after taxes but before dividends for the previous calendar year, or (iii) the ratio of equity capital to adjusted
assets is less than 6%.
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In addition, we are subject to various general regulatory policies and requirements relating to the payment
of dividends, including requirements to maintain adequate capital above regulatory minimums. The appropriate
federal regulatory authority 1s authorized to determine under certain circumstances relating to the financial condition
of a bank or bank holding company that the payment of dividends would be an unsafe or unsound practice and to
prohibit payment thereof. The appropriate federal regulatory authorities have indicated that paying dividends that
deplete a bank’s capital base to an inadequate level would be an unsound and unsafe banking practice and that
banking organizations should generally pay dividends only out of current operating earnings.

Georgia State Regulation. As a Georgia bank holding company under the Financial Institutions Code of
Georgia, we are subject to limitations on sale or merger and to regulation by the Georgia Department of Banking
and Finance. We must obtain approval by the Department prior to engaging in the acquisition of other banks and
financial institutions. Further, as a Georgia corporation, we may be subject to certain limitations and restrictions
under applicable Georgia corporate law.

Appalachian Community Bank

General. The bank, as a Georgia state-chartered bank, is subject to regulation and examination by the
Georgia Department of Banking and Finance, as well as the FDIC. Georgia state laws regulate, among other things,
the scope of the bank’s business, its investments, its payment of dividends to the company, its required legal
reserves and the nature, lending limit, maximum interest charged and amount of and collateral for loans. The laws
and regulations governing the bank generally have been promulgated by Georgia to protect depositors and not to
protect shareholders of the company or the bank.

Deposit Insurance. The FDIC has adopted a risk-based assessment system for determining an insured
depository institutions’ insurance assessrnent rate. The system takes into account the risks attributable to different
categories and concentrations of assets and liabilities. An institution is placed into one of three capital categories: (1)
well capitalized; (2) adequately capitalized; or (3) undercapitalized. The FDIC also assigns an institution to one of
three supervisory subgroups, based on the FDIC’s determination of the institution’s financial condition and the risk
posed to the deposit insurance funds. Assessments range from 0 to 27 cents per $100 of deposits, depending on the
Institution’s capital group and supervisory subgroup. Our risk-based assessment rate is currently [1A] or 0.00330%
per million of insured deposits, but may change in the future. The FDIC may increase or decrease the assessment
rate schedule on a semiannual basis. An increase in the assessment rate could have a material adverse effect on our
earnings, depending on the amount of the increase. In early 2006, Congress passed the Federal Deposit Insurance
Reform Act of 2005, which made certain changes to the Federal deposit insurance program. These changes included
increasing retirement account coverage to $250,000 and providing for inflationary adjustments to general coverage
beginning in 2010, providing the FDIC with authority to set the fund’s reserve ratio within a specified range, and
requiring dividends to banks if the reserve ratio exceeds certain levels.

Community Reinvestment Act. The Community Reinvestment Act requires that, in connection with
examinations of financial institutions within their respective jurisdictions, the FDIC shall evaluate the record of each
financial institution in meeting the credit needs of its local community, including low and moderate income
neighborhoods. These factors are also considered in evaluating mergers, acquisitions, and applications to open a
branch or facility. Failure to adequately meet these criteria could impose additional requirements and limitations on
our bank.

The Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act. Under the Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act, subject to certain conditions
imposed by their respective banking regulators, state-chartered banks are permitted to form “financial subsidiaries™
that may conduct financial or incidental activities, thereby permitting bank subsidiaries to engage in certain
activities that previously were impermissible. The Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act imposes several safeguards and
restrictions on financial subsidiaries, including that the parent bank’s equity investment in the financial subsidiary be
deducted from the bank’s assets and tangible equity for purposes of calculating the bank’s capital adequacy. In
addition, the Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act imposes new restrictions on transactions between a bank and its financial
subsidiaries similar to restrictions applicable to transactions between banks and nonbank affiliates.

The Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act also contains provisions regarding consumer privacy. These provisions
require financial institutions to disclose their policy for collecting and protecting confidential information.
Customers generally may prevent financial institutions from sharing personal financial information with
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nonaffiliated third parties except for third parties that market an institution’s own products and services.
Additionally, financial institutions generally may not disclose consumer account numbers to any nonaffiliated third
party for use in telemarketing, direct mail marketing or other marketing to the consumer.

Other Regulations. Interest and other charges collected or contracted for by the bank are subject to state
usury laws and certain federal laws concerning interest rates. The bank’s loan operations are also subject to federal
laws applicable to credit transactions, such as:

o the federal Truth-In-Lending Act, governing disclosures of credit terms to consumer borrowers;

+ the Home Mortgage Disclosure Act of 1975, requiring financial institutions to provide information
to enable the public and public officials to determine whether a financial institution is fulfilling its
obligation to help meet the housing needs of the community it serves;

¢ the Equal Credit Opportunity Act, prohibiting discrimination on the basis of race, creed or other
prohibited factors in extending credit;

e the Fair Credit Reporting Act of 1978, governing the use and provision of information to credit
reporting agencies;

e the Fair Debt Collection Act, governing the manner in which consumer debts may be collected by
collection agencies; and

o the rules and regulations of the various federal agencies charged with the responsibility of
implementing such federal laws.

In addition, the deposit operations of the bank are subject to:

¢ the Right to Financial Privacy Act, which imposes a duty to maintain confidentiality of consumer
financial records and prescribes procedures for complying with administrative subpoenas of
financial records;

o the Electronic Funds Transfer Act and Regulation E issued by the Federal Reserve Board to
implement that Act, which govern automatic deposits to and withdrawals from deposit accounts
and customers’ rights and liabilities arising from the use of automated teller machines and other
electronic banking services; and

e the Check Clearing for the 21st Century Act, also known as Check 21, which gives “substitute
checks,” such as a digital image of a check and copies made from that image, the same legal
standing as the original paper check.

Capital Regulations. The federal bank regulatory authorities have adopted risk-based capital guidelines
for banks and bank holding companies that are designed to make regulatory capital requirements more sensitive to
differences in risk profiles among banks and bank holding companies and account for off-balance sheet items. The
guidelines are minimums, and the federal regulators have noted that banks and bank holding companies
contemplating significant expansion programs should not allow expansion to diminish their capital ratios and should
maintain ratios in excess of the minimums. We have not received any notice indicating that either the company or
the bank is subject to higher capital requirements. The current guidelines require all bank holding companies and
federally-regulated banks to maintain a minimum risk-based total capital ratio equal to 8%, of which at least 4%
must be Tier 1 capital. Tier 1 capital includes common shareholders’ equity, qualifying perpetual preferred stock,
and minority interests in equity accounts of consolidated subsidiaries, but excludes goodwill and most other
intangibles and excludes the allowance for loan and lease losses. Tier 2 capital includes the excess of any preferred
stock not included in Tier 1 capital, mandatory convertible securities, hybrid capital instruments, subordinated debt
and intermediate term-preferred stock, and general reserves for loan and lease losses up to 1.25% of risk-weighted
assets.

Under these guidelines, banks’ and bank holding companies’ assets are given risk-weights of 0%, 20%,
50% or 100%. In addition, certain off-balance sheet items are given credit conversion factors to convert them to
asset equivalent amounts to which an appropriate risk-weight applies. These computations result in the total risk-
weighted assets. Most loans are assigned to the 100% risk category, except for first mortgage loans fully secured by
residential property and, under certain circumstances, residential construction loans, both of which carry a 50%
rating. Most investment securities are assigned to the 20% category, except for municipal or state revenue bonds,
which have a 50% rating, and direct obligations of or obligations guaranteed by the United States Treasury or United
States Government agencies, which have a 0% rating.




The federal bank regulatory authorities have also implemented a leverage ratio, which is equal to Tier 1
capital as a percentage of average total assets less intangibles, to be used as a supplement to the risk-based
guidelines. The principal objective of the leverage ratio is to place a constraint on the maximum degree to which a
bank holding company may leverage its equity capital base. The minimum required leverage ratio for top-rated
institutions 1s 3%, but most institutions are required to maintain an additional cushion of at least 100 to 200 basis
points.

In addition, the FDIC Improvement Act established a new capital-based regulatory scheme designed to
promote early intervention for troubled banks, which requires the FDIC to choose the least expensive resolution of
bank failures. The new capital-based regulatory framework contains five categories of compliance with regulatory
capital requirements, including “well capitalized,” “adequately capitalized,” “undercapitalized,” “significantly
undercapitalized” and “critically undercapitalized.” To qualify as a “well capitalized” institution, a bank must have a
leverage ratio of no less than 5%, a Tier 1 risk-based ratio of no less than 6% and a total risk-based capital ratio of
no less than 10%, and the bank must not be under any order or directive from the appropriate regulatory agency to
meet and maintain a specific capital level. At December 31, 2005, based on our calculations, we qualified as “well
capitalized.”

Under the FDIC Improvement Act regulations, the applicable agency can treat an institution as if it were in
the next lower category if the agency determines (after notice and an opportunity for hearing) that the institution is
in an unsafe or unsound condition or is engaging in an unsafe or unsound practice. The degree of regulatory scrutiny
of a financial institution increases, and the permissible activities of the institution decreases, as it moves downward
through the capital categories. Institutions that fall into one of the three undercapitalized categories may be required
to do some or all of the following:

submit a capital restoration plan;

raise additional capital;

restrict their growth, deposit interest rates and other activities;
improve their management;

eliminate management fees; or

divest themselves of all or a part of their operations.

These capital guidelines can affect us in several ways. If we grow at a rapid pace, our capital may be
depleted too quickly, and a capital infusion from the holding company may be necessary, which could impact our
ability to pay dividends. Our capital levels currently are more than adequate; however, rapid growth, poor loan
portfolio performance, poor earnings performance or a combination of these factors could change our capital
position in a relatively short period of tire.

Failure to meet these capital requirements would mean that a bank would be required to develop and file a
plan with its primary federal banking regulator describing the means and a schedule for achieving the minimum
capital requirements. In addition, such a bank would generally not receive regulatory approval of any application
that requires the consideration of capital adequacy, such as a branch or merger application, unless the bank could
demonstrate a reasonable plan to meet the capital requirement within a reasonable period of time. A bank that is not
“well capitalized” is also subject to certain limitations relating to so-called “brokered” deposits. Bank holding
companies controlling financial institutions can be called upon to boost the institutions’ capital and to partially
guarantee the institutions’ performance under their capital restoration plans.

Enforcement Powers. The Financial Institutions Reform Recovery and Enforcement Act expanded and
increased civil and criminal penalties available for use by the federal regulatory agencies against depository
institutions and certain “institution-affiliated parties.” Institution-affiliated parties primarily include management,
employees and agents of a financial institution, as well as independent contractors and consultants such as attorneys
and accountants and others who participate in the conduct of the financial institution’s affairs. These practices can
include the failure of an institution to timely file required reports or the filing of false or misleading information or
the submission of inaccurate reports. Civil penalties may be as high as $1,000,000 a day for such violations.
Criminal penalties for some financial institution crimes have been increased to 20 years. In addition, regulators are
provided with greater flexibility to commence enforcement actions against institutions and institution-affiliated
parties. Possible enforcement actions include the termination of deposit insurance. Furthermore, banking agencies’
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power to issue cease-and-desist orders were expanded. Such orders may, among other things, require affirmative
action to correct any harm resulting from a violation or practice, including restitution, reimbursement,
indemnification or guarantees against loss, A financial institution may also be ordered to restrict its growth, dispose
of certain assets, rescind agreements or contracts, or take other actions as determined by the ordering agency to be
appropriate.

Effect of Governmental Monetary Policies. Our earnings are affected by domestic economic conditions
and the monetary and fiscal policies of the United States government and its agencies. The Federal Reserve’s
monetary policies have had, and are likely to continue to have, an important impact on the operating resuits of
commercial banks through its power to implement national monetary policy in order, among other things, to curb
inflation or combat a recession. The monetary policies of the Federal Reserve have major effects upon the levels of
bank loans, investments and deposits through its open market operations in United States government securities and
through its regulation of the discount rate on borrowings of member banks and the reserve requirements against
member bank deposits. It is not possible to predict the nature or impact of future changes in monetary and fiscal
policies.

USA PATRIOT Act of 2002. In October 2002, the USA PATRIOT Act of 2002 was enacted in response
to the terrorist attacks in New York, Pennsylvania, and Washington D.C. that occurred on September 11, 2001. The
PATRIOT Act is intended to strengthen U.S. law enforcement’s and the intelligence communities’ abilities to work
cohesively to combat terrorism on a variety of fronts. The potential impact of the PATRIOT Act on financial
institutions is significant and wide ranging. The PATRIOT Act contains sweeping anti-money laundering and
financial transparency laws and imposes various regulations, including standards for verifying client identification at
account opening, and rules to promote cooperation among financial institutions, regulators and law enforcement
entities in identifying parties who may be involved in terrorism or money laundering.

Proposed Legislation and Regulatory Action. New regulations and statutes are regularly proposed that
contain wide-ranging proposals for altering the structures, regulations, and competitive relationships of the nation’s
financial institutions. We cannot predict whether or in what form any proposed regulation or statute will be adopted
or the extent to which our business may be affected by any new regulation or statute.

ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS

The following are certain risks that management believes are specific to our business. This should not be
viewed as an all inclusive list or in any particular order.

An economic downturn, especially one affecting Gilmer, Union and Fannin counties, could adversely affect our
business.

Our success significantly depends upon the growth in population, income levels, deposits and housing
starts in our primary market area of Gilmer, Union and Fannin counties. If these communities do not grow or if
prevailing local or national economic conditions are unfavorable, our business may not succeed. An economic
downturn would likely harm the quality of our loan portfolio and reduce the level of our deposits, which in turmn
would hurt our business. If an economic downtumn occurs, borrowers may be less likely to repay their loans as
scheduled. Unlike many larger institutions, we are not able to spread the risks of unfavorable local economic
conditions across a large number of diversified economies. An economic downturn could, therefore, result in losses
that materially and adversely affect our business.

If real estate values in our market decline or become stagnant, our business could be adversely affected.

Real estate values in our market area have risen substantially over the last several years. There continues to
be a significant amount of speculation that the United States, or at least certain parts of the country, is in the midst of
a real estate “bubble”, meaning that current real estate prices exceed the true values of the properties. If this is the
case, or if the market generally perceives that this is the case, then real estate prices could become stagnant or
decline, and there could be a significant reduction in real estate construction and housing starts. In addition, the
value and liquidity of the real estate or other collateral securing our loans could be impaired. Given our heavy
reliance on real estate lending, this could have a significant adverse affect on our business.
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Qur loan portfolio includes a substantial amount of commercial real estate and construction and development
loans, which may have more risks than residential or consumer loans.

Our commercial real estate loans and construction and development loans account for a substantial portion
of our total loan portfolio. These loans generally carry larger loan balances and involve a greater degree of financial
and credit risk than home equity, residential or consumer loans. The increased financial and credit risk associated
with these types of loans is a result of several factors, including the concentration of principal in a limited number of
loans and to borrowers in similar lines of business, the size of loan balances, the effects of general economic
conditions on income-producing properties and the increased difficulty of evaluating and monitoring these types of
loans.

Furthermore, the repayment of loans secured by commercial real estate in some cases is dependent upon the
successful operation, development or sale of the related real estate or commercial project. If the cash flow from the
project is reduced, the borrower’s ability to repay the loan may be impaired. This cash flow shortage may result in
the failure to make loan payments. In these cases, we may be compelled to modify the terms of the loan. Asa
result, repayment of these loans may, to a greater extent than other types of loans, be subject to adverse conditions in
the real estate market or economy.

Many of our borrowers have more than one loan or credit relationship with us.

Many of our borrowers have more than one commercial real estate or commercial business loan
outstanding with us. Consequently, an adverse development with respect to one loan or one credit relationship can
expose us to a significantly greater risk of loss compared to an adverse development with respect to, for example, a
one- to- four-family residential mortgage loan.

Our decisions regarding credit risk and reserves for loan losses may materially and adversely affect our business.

Making loans and other extensions of credit is an essential element of our business. Although we seek to
mitigate risks inherent in lending by adhering to specific underwriting practices, our loans and other extensions of
credit may not be repaid. The risk of nonpayment is affected by a number of factors, including:

e the duration of the credit;

e  credit risks of a particular customer;

¢ changes in economic and industry conditions; and

* in the case of a collateralized loan, risks resulting from uncertainties about the future value of the
collateral.

We attempt to maintain an appropriate allowance for loan losses to provide for potential losses in our loan
portfolio. However, there is no precise method of predicting credit losses, since any estimate of loan losses is
necessarily subjective and the accuracy depends on the outcome of future events. Therefore, we face the risk that
charge-offs in future periods will exceed our allowance for loan losses and that additional increases in the allowance
for loan losses will be required. Additions to the allowance for loan losses would result in a decrease of our net
income, and possibly our capital.

We face strong competition for customers, which could prevent us from obtaining customers and may cause us to
pay higher interest rates to attract deposits.

The banking business is highly competitive and we experience competition in each of our markets from
many other financial institutions. We compete with commercial banks, credit unions, savings and loan associations,
mortgage banking firms, consumer finance companies, securities brokerage firms, insurance companies, money
market funds and other mutual funds, as well as super-regional, national and international financial institutions that
operate offices in our primary market areas and elsewhere. We compete with these institutions both in attracting
deposits and in making loans. In addition, we have to attract our customer base from other existing financial
institutions and from new residents. Many of our competitors are well-established, larger financial institutions.
These institutions offer some services, such as extensive and established branch networks and trust services, that we
currently do not provide. There is a risk that we will not be able to compete successfully with other financial
institutions in our markets, and that we may have to pay higher interest rates to attract deposits, resulting in reduced
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profitability. Competitors that are not depository institutions are generally not subject to the extensive regulations
that apply to us. In new markets that we may enter, we will also compete against well-established community banks
that have developed relationships within the community.

Changes in interest rates may reduce our profitability.

Our profitability depends in large part on our net interest income, which is the difference between interest
earned from interest-earning assets, such as loans and mortgage-backed securities, and interest paid on interest-
bearing liabilities, such as deposits and borrowings. Our net interest income will be adversely affected if market
interest rates change such that the interest we pay on deposits and borrowings increases faster than the interest we
earn on loans and investments. Many factors cause changes in interest rates, including governmental monetary
policies and domestic and international economic and political conditions. While we intend to manage the effects of
changes in interest rates by adjusting the terms, maturities, and pricing of our assets and liabilities, our efforts may
not be effective and our financial condition and results of operations may suffer.

Our recent operating results may not be indicative of our future operating resullts.

We may not be able to sustain our historical rate of growth and may not even be able to grow our business
at all. If we continue to expand, it will be difficult for us to generate similar earnings growth. Consequently, our
historical results of operations are not necessarily indicative of our future operations. Various factors, such as
economic conditions, regulatory and legislative considerations and competition may also impede our ability to
expand our market presence. If we experience a significant decrease in our rate of growth, our results of operations
and financial condition may be adversely affected because a high percentage of our operating costs are fixed
expenses.

We could be adversely affected by the loss of one or more key personnel or by an inability to attract and retain
employees.

We believe that our growth and future success will depend in large part on the skills of our executive
officers. The loss of the services of one or more of these officers could impair our ability to continue to implement
our business strategy. In particular, Tracy R. Newton, our chief executive officer, has extensive and long-standing
ties within our primary market area and substantial experience with our operations, and has contributed significantly
to our growth. If we lose the services of Mr. Newton, he would be difficult to replace and our business and
development could be materially and adversely affected.

Our success also depends, in part, on our continued ability to attract and retain experienced and qualified
employees. The competition for such employees is intense, and our inability to continue to attract, retain and
motivate employees could adversely affect our business. On December 6, 2005, Darren M. Cantlay, our chief
financial officer, resigned from the company and the bank. Currently, Joseph T. Moss Jr., our president and chief
operating officer, is serving as the interim principal financial officer of the company and the bank until such time as
we identify a successor chief financial officer.

The success of our growth strategy depends on our ability to identify and recruit individuals with experience and
relationships in the markets in which we intend to expand,

We intend to expand our banking network over the next several years in the North Georgia mountains and
other surrounding fast-growing communities. We believe that to expand into new markets successfully, we must
identify and recruit experienced key management members with local expertise and relationships in these markets.
We expect that competition for qualified management in the markets in which we expand will be intense and that
there will be a limited number of qualified persons with knowledge of and experience in the community banking
industry in these markets. Even if we identify individuals that we believe could assist us in establishing a presence
in a new market, we may be unable to recruit these individuals away from more established banks. In addition, the
process of identifying and recruiting individuals with the combination of skills and attributes required to carry out
our strategy is often lengthy. Our inability to identify, recruit and retain talented personnel to manage new offices
effectively and in a timely manner would limit our growth and could materially adversely affect our business,
financial condition and results of operations. We may fail to open any additional offices and, if we open these
offices, they may not be profitable.
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We will face risks with respect to future expansion and acquisitions or mergers.

We may expand into new lines of business or offer new products or services. Any expansion plans we
undertake may also divert the attention of our management from the operation of our business, which would have an
adverse effect on our results of operations. We may also seek to acquire other financial institutions or parts of those
institutions. Any of these activities would involve a number of risks such as the time and expense associated with
evaluating new lines of business or new markets for expansion, hiring or retaining local management and integrating
new acquisitions. Even if we identify new lines of business or new products or services, they may not be profitable.
Nor can we say with certainty that we will be able to consummate, or if consummated, successfully integrate, future
acquisitions, if any, or that we will not incur disruptions or unexpected expense in integrating such acquisitions.
Any given acquisition, if and when consummated, may adversely affect our results of operations and financial
condition.

Our growth may require us to raise additional capital that may not be available when it is needed or may not be
available on terms acceptable to us.

We are required by regulatory authorities to maintain adequate levels of capital to support our operations.
To support our continued growth, we may need to raise additional capital. Our ability to raise additional capital, if
needed, will depend in part on conditions in the capital markets at that time, which are outside our control.
Accordingly, we cannot assure you of our ability to raise additional capital, if needed, on terms acceptable to us. If
we cannot raise additional capital when needed, our ability to further expand our operations through internal growth
and acquisitions could be materially impaired.

We are subject to extensive regulation that could limit or restrict our activities.

We operate in a highly regulated industry and are subject to examination, supervision and comprehensive
regulation by various regulatory agencies. Our compliance with these regulations is costly and restricts certain of
our activities, including payment of dividends, mergers and acquisitions, investments, loans and interest rates
charged, interest rates paid on deposits and locations of offices. We are also subject to regulatory capital
requirements established by our regulators, which require us to maintain adequate capital to support our growth. If
we fail to meet these capital and other regulatory requirements, our ability to grow, our cost of funds and FDIC
insurance, our ability to pay dividends on common stock, and our ability to make acquisitions could be materially
and adversely affected.

The laws and regulations applicable to the banking industry could change at any time, and we cannot
predict the effects of these changes on our business and profitability. Because government regulation greatly affects
the business and financial results of all banks and bank holding companies, our cost of compliance could adversely
affect our ability to operate profitably.

Efforts to comply with the Sarbanes-Oxley Act will involve significant expenditures, and non-compliance with the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act may adversely affect us.

The Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, and the related rules and regulations promulgated by the Securities and
Exchange Commission that are now applicable to us, have increased the scope, complexity and cost of corporate
governance, reporting and disclosure practices. We have experienced, and we expect to continue to experience,
greater compliance costs, including costs related to internal controls, as a result of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act. For
example, by December 31, 2007, we will be required to comply with Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act and
issue a report on our internal controls. We expect these new rules and regulations to continue to increase our
accounting, legal and other costs, and to make some activities more difficult, time consuming and costly. In the
event that we are unable to maintain or achieve compliance with the Sarbanes-Oxley Act and related rules, we may
be adversely affected.

We are evaluating our internal control systems in order to allow management to report on, and our
independent registered public accounting firm to attest to, our internal control over financial reporting, as required
by Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act. If we identify significant deficiencies or material weaknesses in our
internal control over financial reporting that we cannot remediate in a timely manner, or if we are unable to receive a
positive attestation from our independent registered public accounting firm with respect to our internal control over
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financial reporting, the trading price of our common stock could decline, our ability to obtain any necessary equity
or debt financing could suffer and the trading market for our common stock could be materially impaired.

ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS
Not applicable.
ITEM 2. PROPERTIES

Our principal headquarters and the operations center for the company and the bank is located at 822
Industrial Boulevard, Ellijay, Georgia, between the business districts of Ellijay and East Ellijay. The office and
operations center is located on approximately 6.3 acres of land that we purchased in 2004 for $752,000. We
constructed a 39,000 square foot building on this site, as well as a maintenance building and a community building
to use as a meeting area for our employees and for our customers. We incurred construction costs of approximately
$4.8 million as of December 31, 2005 and we expect to incur another $1.5 million prior to completion. These costs
include furniture, fixtures and equipment, and were paid out of earnings and from the proceeds of our public stock
offering. ,

The bank’s main office, which we own, is located at 829 Industrial Boulevard, Ellijay, directly across the
street from our headquarters and operations center. This office operates under the tradename “Gilmer County
Bank.” Adjacent to this location, we have constructed a community building on property that we lease from the
United States Postal Service. We use this building for meeting space and allow our customers to use it for various
community functions. We pay annual rent of $600 for this adjacent property under a lease that is up for renewal in
2006. We plan to renew this lease.

In addition to our main bank office, we operate three branches. Our Union County branch is located on
Highway 515 in Blairsville, Georgia. The building is owned by the bank. The second floor of this location is vacant
and may be used by the bank for future expansion. Our branch in East Ellijay, Georgia, which is located at 696 First
Avenue, operates under the trade name “Gilmer County Bank”. We have a long-term lease for this location in
which the rent increases 2% annually. In 2005, we paid $32,485 in annual rent. Qur Fannin County branch, which
we own, is located at 150 Orvin Lance Connector, in Blue Ridge, Georgia. There is also a community building at
this location that is available for the bank to use as a meeting area, as well as for our customers to use for various
community functions. The buildings sit on approximately 2.6 acres that we also own.

We also own a building located at 9 Russell Drive, Ellijay, Georgia, which previously housed our
operations center. This building is approximately 14,200 square feet, including approximately 8,000 square feet of
commercial space that we have leased to various third parties in the past. At this time, we are seeking new tenants
until the building can be sold. In addition, we lease a building directly behind the old operations building, which
was previously used to house additional operations staff members. We have a two-year lease for this space and pay
annual rent of $16,800. This lease expires in August 2007 and we are currently seeking suitable tenants to sublease
this space.

We own additional property in East Ellijay that will be used for a new branch office. An ATM has been
placed at this location. The property consists of approximately 2 acres located on Highway 515 South in the new
Highland Crossing Shopping Center, which has a Super Wal-Mart, Lowe’s Home Improvement Warehouse and an
additional 90,000 square feet of shops and restaurants.

We believe that all of our properties are adequately covered by insurance.
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ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

In the ordinary course of operations, we are a party to various legal proceedings from time to time. We do
not believe that there is any pending or threatened proceeding against us, which, if determined adversely, would
have a material effect on our business, results of operations or financial condition.

ITEM 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS

No matters were submitted to a vote of shareholders during the fourth quarter of the fiscal year covered by
this report.

PART I

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR THE REGISTRANT’S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER
MATTERS AND ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

On October 6, 2005, our common stock commenced trading on the Nasdaq National Market under the
symbal “APAB”. Prior to such listing, our common stock was quoted on the OTC Bulletin Board under the symbol
“APAB.OB” and quoted in the Pink Sheets under the symbol “APAB.PK”. During such time, trading had been
limited and had not created an active public trading market for our common stock. As of March 3, 2006, we had
approximately 1,364 shareholders of record.

The following table shows the reported high and low sales prices reported by management for 2004 and the
first two quarters of 2003, the reported high and low bid information reported on the OTC Bulletin Board for the
second quarter of 2005, and the high and low sales prices reported by the Nasdaq National Market for the third and
fourth quarters of 200S. The prices listed by the OTC Bulletin Board are quotations, which reflect inter-dealer
prices, without retail mark-up, mark-down, or commission, and may not represent actual transactions. The prices
provided by management are to the best of management’s knowledge, and should not be viewed as indicative of the
actual or market value of our common stock during the periods indicated.

Estimated Price
Range Per Share

High Low

Year End 2005:

FrSt QUATTET ....vevveieieei ettt es e st et bbb sr s $16.50 $15.00

SeCONA QUATTET ..ottt bttt aa et raeesneenareeree e 16.78 15.50

Third QUATTET.....coiiieieii ettt sttt seee e 17.50 16.00

Fourth QUATEr......coiueeieieere e e v 18.50 16.00
Year End 2004:

FIST QUATTET ..oooviiieeeecie ettt ettt et b et ettt sen e e $ 15.00 $14.50

SECONA QUATTET......iiuiiirieireeteeeieetreieir et et e et e e esbesaesaesrassaesserssesssesbeeseancanneaneanns 15.00 15.00

TRIEA QUATTET ...ttt st sssesere st ssasea st essesaesaeseareesasensnaesnssaasen 16.00 16.00

FOUTth QUATTRT ....eveieit ettt ettt ne e 17.00 16.00

To date, we have not paid cash dividends on our common stock. For the foreseeable future we do not
intend to declare cash dividends. We intend to retain earnings to grow our business and strengthen our capital base.
Our ability to pay cash dividends is dependent upon receiving cash dividends from our bank. In addition, Georgia
and federal banking regulations restrict the amount of cash dividends that can be paid to the company from the bank.
See “Subsidiary Dividends” in the section entitled “Supervision and Regulation.”
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The following table provides information as of December 31, 2005 regarding our three equity
compensation plans: the 1997 Employee Stock Incentive Plan, the 1997 Directors’ Non-Qualified Stock Option Plan
and the 2003 Stock Option Plan, each of which has been approved by our shareholders.

(@) (b) ©
Number of securities Waeighted-average Number of securities
to be issued upon exercise price of remaining available for
exercise outstanding future issuance under
of outstanding options, equity compensation
options, warrants warrants and plans (excluding securities
Plan category and rights rights reflected in column (a))

Equity compensation plans approved by

security holders ...c..covcvvvccencieneiceenecnes 293975 § 7.55 228,060
Equity compensation plans not approved by

security holders ........ccococvvvnvnicniinecnne - - -

TOAL ceeeeeeeeeeeeee et e s s s e ees e eseeees 293975  § 7.55 228,060
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ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

Our selected consolidated financial data presented below as of and for the years ended December 31, 2001
through 2005 is derived from our audited consolidated financial statements. Our audited consolidated financial
statements as of December 31, 2004 and 2005 and for each of the years in the three year period ended December 31,
2005 are included elsewhere in this report. All per share data has been adjusted to reflect a 10% common stock
dividend on July 1, 2003.

At and for the Years Ended December 31,
2005 2004 2003 2002 2001
(In thousands, except per share data and ratios)

Selected Balance Sheet Data:

ASSELS 1ottt $ 592,606 § 472811 § 409,617 $ 384,024 § 319,679
Investment SECUTIties ....ovevvviivcreiieiirecreecee e, 71,570 64,655 55,363 40,375 49,394
LOANS ctettriitieteer et reera e esn st 457,418 377,352 332,307 298,063 250,569
Allowance for loan 10SseS......cccooevivieiiiiviecnn, 6,059 4,349 3,610 3,238 2,995
DEPOSIES 1.eoteiieceirciteiaer ettt e n e 473,310 381,498 332,919 316,283 264,028
Short-term borToOWINgS......ccecvvvvrever e, 24,892 15,470 12,086 5,929 3,665
Accrued INTETESt. ... ivvicceecec et 728 540 671 976 1,267
Long-term debt......c.ccoeevieiiieeein e, 24,950 31,950 25,693 34,736 29,654
Subordinated long-term capital notes................. 6,186 6,186 6,186 — —
Other 1iabilities .....cooooirrieriieieie e 2,715 1,084 981 482 475
Shareholders’ equity........c.ccoovveiveeieevieriencne, 59,825 36,083 31,082 25,619 20,591
Selected Resuits of Operations Data:

INtETest INCOMIE .o.vvveieeieeeeeveere e eas e, $ 34750 § 25,736 $ 23,090 $ 22,892 § 23,890
INtErest EXPEnSe ......cccevrvevrerrcerinererencnceneenne, 11.880 7.558 8.257 11,425 13.675
Net interest INCOME.........ccveveeverieenrreereereeneernnn, 22,870 18,178 14,833 11,467 10,215
Provision for 10an 10SS€s.........c.ccovvvicvicvvennrnnn. 2,211 1,235 1,465 1.028 1,294
Net interest income after provision for

provision for loan 10Sses.......cccoceevvvvrecnirenncnn, 20,659 16,943 13,368 10,439 8,921
Noninterest INCOME..........oooeevrreviieevreeveirereeesnesn 3,303 2,829 2,703 2,937 2,411
NONINterest EXPENSe. ... ...vevvvvrrrerveereesrivrreeeeennnes 16,338 13.840 11,732 9,702 7.831
Income before taXes..........cooceevvvevereiieicncerinenn, 7,624 5,932 4,339 3,674 3,501
Income tax eXpense ........occoveevvcererivicvercarernaenns 2,502 1,885 1,253 1.006 963
NEt INCOME ...vvevvreereeeririierreercer e s esbeereee e § 5122 § 4047 § 308 § 2668 $ 2538

Per Share Data

Net income — basiC ..o.ovvccvieieecveceie e, $ 124 § 1.09 § 086 % 081 § 0.81
Net income — diluted ...........ooovevvvevinieiirecrenen, 1.21 1.04 0.81 0.76 0.75
BoOoK valle.....ooiiiiicieicce e, 11.62 9.58 8.49 7.45 6.50
Cash dividends declared per common. share 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Weighted average number of shares

outstanding: -

BasiC .o 4,123,403 3,724,095 3,609,728 3,277,787 3,145,651
Diluted ..o 4,247,334 3,885490 3,809,625 3,508,019 3,389,404
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At and for the Years Ended December 31,

2005

2004

2001

(In thousands, except per share data and ratios)

Performance Ratios:

Return on average assets .......ccccecevvevnninencn, 0.99%
Return on average equity ...cceoevvereerencrreenencn. 12.18
Net interest margin ..., 477
Efficiency ratio @ .......oooooooeeeeeeereeee e, 62.42
Loan to deposit 1ati0......cceeverseereerniesire e 96.64
Asset Quality Ratios:

Nonperforming loans to total loans .................. 0.24%
Nonperforming assets to total assets.................. 0.21
Net charge-offs to average total loans................ 0.12
Allowance for loan losses to

nonperforming 10ans .......c.ccovceeviicninnnenns 555.36%
Allowance for loan losses to

t0tal 08NS ..o 1.32%

Capital Ratios:

Average equity to average assetS.......coceenueen. 8.11%
Leverage ratio......cocecevveereciercrneeseccneseenenene 11.35
Tier 1 risk-based capital 1atio ........c.cooeeveecnne. 13.27
Total risk-based capital ratio .......cocccceevvvvrnnne 14.52

Growth Ratios and Other Data:

Percentage change in net income.................... 26.56%
Percentage change in diluted net

income per Share .........ococvvevevcveiircniennenn, 16.35
Percentage change in assets........cccoeovereennnen, 25.34
Percentage change in'1oans..........cccecoeecveenee. 21.22
Percentage change in deposits...........c.ccoeuenn. 24.07
Percentage change in equity .......occoevevveeninnn, 65.80

(1) Taxable Equivalent,

(2) Computed by dividing noninterest expense by the sum of net interest income and noninterest income, excluding gains and losses on the sale of assets.

19

0.91%
12.23

443
65.81
98.91

0.41%
0.44
0.14

279.14%

1.15%

7.42%

8.53
10.32
11.45

31.14%

28.40
15.43
13.56
14.59
16.09

2003 2002
0.78% 0.75%
10.85 11.88
4.15 3.58
66.83 68.72
99.82 94.24
0.50% 1.73%
0.58 1.60
0.35 0.28
219.05% 62.99%
1.09% 1.09%
7.23% 6.34%
8.58 ©6.07
10.46 7.54
11.55 8.59
15.67% 5.12%
6.58 1.33
6.66 20.13
11.49 18.95
5.26 19.79
21.32 24.42

0.85%
12.80

4.07
62.75
94.90

0.66%
0.56
0.22

181.08%

1.20%

6.63%
5.87
7.16
8.32

55.80%

50.00
17.99
17.02
23.28
16.54




ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following discussion reviews our results of operations and assesses our financial condition. You should
read the following discussion and analysis in conjunction with our “Selected Consolidated Financial Data” and our
consolidated financial statements and the related notes included elsewhere in this Report.

Overview
We were incorporated in 1996 to serve as the holding company for Gilmer County Bank (now Appalachian
Community Bank). Since that time, we have experienced consistent growth in net income, total assets, total loans,

total deposits and shareholders’ equity.

The following table sets forth selected measures of our financial performance for the periods indicated.

Years Ended December 31,
2005 2004 2003
(Dollars in thousands)
INEL ITICOME ... oottt ete et e e eaae s beeesseesesssseessen stseesseessaaenseeaneesnesene $ 5,122 § 4047 $ 3,086
TOLAL ASSELS ....eoveiiiire ettt ettt ettt r ettt ren e et enes 592,606 472,811 409,617
Total L0ans ) ........oo.ooo oo 457,418 377352 332,307
TOtAl EPOSILS 1.oviiiiiits ettt sttt ea et e e et ara e 473,310 381,498 332,919
Shareholders” EQUILY ......ccvvveiriiiiitite ettt ettt s enan 59,825 36,083 31,082

(1) Loans are net of unearned income.

Like most community banks, we derive the majority of our income from interest and fees received on our
loans. Qur primary sources of funds for making these loans and investments are our deposits and advances from the
Federal Home Loan Bank of Atlanta (FHLB). Consequently, one of the key measures of our success is our amount
of net interest income, or the difference between the income earned on our interest-earning assets, such as loans and
investments, and the interest paid on our interest-bearing liabilities, such as deposits and advances from the FHLB.
Another key measure is the spread between the yield we earn on these interest-earning assets and the rate we pay on
our interest-bearing liabilities, which 1s called our net interest spread.

We have included a number of tables to assist in our description of these measures. For example, the
“Average Balances, Income and Expense and Rates” tables show for the periods indicated the average balance for
each category of our assets and liabilities, as well as the yield we earned or the rate we paid with respect to each
category. A review of these tables show that our loans typically provide higher interest yields than do other types of
interest-earning assets, which is why we intend to channel a substantial percentage of our earning assets into our
loan portfolio. Similarly, the “Analysis of Changes in Net Interest Income” table helps demonstrate the impact of
changing interest rates and changing volume of assets and liabilities during the periods shown. We also track the
sensitivity of our various categories of assets and liabilities to changes in interest rates, and we have included an
“Interest Sensitivity Analysis” table to help explain this. Finally, we have included a number of tables that provide
detail about our investment securities, our loans, our deposits and other borrowings.

There are risks inherent in all loans, so we maintain an allowance for loan losses to absorb probable losses on
existing loans that may become uncollectible. We maintain this allowance by charging a provision for loan losses
against our operating earnings for each period. We have included a detailed discussion of this process, as well as
several tables describing our allowance for loan losses.

In addition to eaming interest on our loans and investments, we earn income through fees and other charges
to our customers. We have also included a discussion of the various components of this noninterest income, as well

as of our noninterest expense, included in the “Noninterest Income and Expense” section.

The following discussion and analysis also identifies significant factors that have affected our financial
position and operating results during the periods included in the accompanying financial statements. We encourage
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you to read this discussion and analysis in conjunction with our financial statements and the other statistical
information included in this Report.

Critical Accounting Policies

In the preparation of our consolidated financial statements, we have adopted various accounting policies that
govern the application of accounting principles generally accepted in the United States as well as the general
practices within the banking industry. Our significant accounting policies are described in the footnotes to our
audited consolidated financial statements included in this Report.

Certain accounting policies involve significant judgments and assumptions by management that may have a
material impact on the carrying value of certain assets and liabilities. We consider such accounting policies to be
critical accounting policies. The judgments and assumptions we use are based on historical experience and other
factors, which are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Because of the nature of the judgments and
assumptions we make, actual results could differ from these judgments and estimates. These differences could have
a material impact on our carrying values of assets and liabilities and our results of operations.

We believe the determination of the allowance for loan losses is the critical accounting policy that requires
the most significant judgments and estimates when preparing our consolidated financial statements. Some of the
more critical judgments supporting the amount of our allowance for loan losses include judgments about the credit
worthiness of borrowers, the estimated value of the underlying collateral, cash flow assumptions, the determination
of loss factors for estimating credit losses, the impact of current events and other factors impacting the level of
probable inherent losses. Under different conditions or using different assumptions, the actual amount of credit
losses incurred by us may be different from management’s estimates provided in our consolidated financial
statements. Refer to the section entitled “Allowance for Loan Losses” for a more complete discussion of our
processes and methodology for determining our allowance for loan losses.

Results of Operations
Income Statement Review
Overview
Years Ended December 31, 2005, 2004, and 2003

For the year ended December 31, 2005, our net income was $3.1 million, or $1.24 basic net income per
common share, as compared to $4.0 million, or $1.09 basic net income per common share, for the year ended
December 31, 2004, and $3.1 million, or $0.86 basic net income per common share, for the year ended December
31, 2003. Per share data for all periods has been adjusted to reflect a 10% stock dividend that we paid in 2003. The
increase in net income for these periods relates to loan growth and although our deposits have increased, the increase
in the cost of deposits has been less than the increase in the yield on our loans. Return on average assets was 0.99%
in 2005, compared with 0.91% in 2004, and 0.78% in 2003. Return on average shareholders’ equity for 2005 was
12.18%, versus 12.23% in 2004 and 10.85% in 2003. The decline in return on average shareholders’ equity from
2004 to 2005 was due primarily to the sale of 1,265,000 shares of common stock for net proceeds of approximately
$18.4 million during the fourth quarter of 2005. The additional funds will be used for general corporate purposes as
well as to provide additional capital to our subsidiary, Appalachian Community Bank, to support asset growth. Qur
average equity to average assets ratio was 8.11% in 2005, 7.42% in 2004, and 7.23% in 2003.

Net Interest Income
Years Ended December 31, 2005, 2004, and 2003

Our primary source of revenue is net interest income, which represents the difference between the income on
interest-earning assets and expense on interest-bearing liabilities. Net interest income increased $4.7 million, or
25.8%, to $22.9 million for 2003, compared to $18.2 million for 2004. Net interest income increased $3.4 million,
or 22.5%, for 2004, compared to $14.8 million for 2003. Generally, the overall increase in net interest income was
primarily the result of the growth in our loan portfolio. Our average total loans increased 14.9% from 2004 to 2005,
and 14.2% from 2003 to 2004. To maintain the net interest margin, we actively manage loan rates and yields and
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monitor the cost of funds locally and in other markets. Management has focused on loan yields keeping pace with
increases in the prime rate. Although our cost of funds has increased due to market pressure, we continue.to grow
our core deposits and monitor our deposit rates and pricing. The continued strong demand for loans also provides us
with the opportunity to develop business as the communities we serve continue to grow.

The trend in net interest income is also evaluated in terms of average rates using the net interest margin and
the interest rate spread. The net interest margin, or the net yield on earning assets, is computed by dividing fully
taxable equivalent net interest income by average earning assets. This ratio represents the difference between the
average yield returned on average earning assets and the average rate paid for funds used to support those earning
assets, including both interest-bearing and noninterest-bearing sources. The net interest margin for 2005 was 4.77%
compared to a net interest margin of 4.43% in 2004 and 4.15% in 2003. Net interest spread, the difference between
the average yield on earning assets and the average rate paid on interest-bearing sources of funds, was 4.46% in
2005, compared to 4.25% in 2004 and 3.98% in 2003.
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Average Balances, Income and Expenses, and Rates. The following table shows, for years ended December
31, 2005, 2004 and 2003, the average daily balances outstanding for the major categories of interest-earning assets
and interest-bearing liabilities, and the average interest rate earned or paid. Such yields are calculated by dividing
income or expense by the average daily balance of the corresponding assets or liabilities.

Average Balances, Income and Expenses, and Rates.

Years Ended December 31,

2005 2004 2003
Average Income/ Yields/ Average Income/ Yields Average Income/ Yields/
Balance  Expense Rates  Balance  Expense Rates  Balance  Expense Rates
(Dollars in thousands)
Earning assets:
Loans, net of unearned
income " .o $412,307 $ 32,019  7.77% $358,925 $ 23,667  6.59% $314,182 § 21,321 6.79%
Investment securities:
Taxable.....ocvevveiriieiiins 52,887 1,843  3.48 42,224 1,402 332 34,467 1,058 3.07
Tax exempt.....ccocovvevenrennns 13,766 949  6.89 14,191 952  6.71 15,013 1,073  7.15
Total investment
securities™ ................ 66,653 2,792 4.19 56,415 2,354 417 49,480 2,131 431
Interest-bearing deposits ........ 677 20 295 350 5 143 784 30 383
Federal funds sold.................. 5,986 218  3.64 1.994 26 130 3314 37 112
Total interest-earning
assets o, 485,623 § 35049 7.22 $417,684 § 26,052 624 367,76 23,51 6.40
Interest-bearing liabilities:
Demand deposits $ 75,670 $ 1,057 1.40% $ 82,617 $ 952  1.15% $ 83,040 $ 1,178 1.42%
Savings deposits....... 84,653 1,745  2.06 61,281 713 1.16 45,318 418 092
Time deposits........... e _222.561 7.330 3.29 187,578 4544 242 170.419 5363 3.15
Total deposits .....c.coevennnee. 382,884 10,132 2.65 331,476 6,209 1.87 298,777 6,959 233
Other short-term borrowings...... 11,658 174 149 17,953 123 0.69 9,964 83 0.83
Long-term debt .......coooevicreninnnen 35.803 1,574 440 30.946 1226 396 32,240 1.214  3.77
Total interest-bearing
liabilitieS......oovvvvnvvivrnins $430,345 11,880 2.76 380,375 7558 199 3340981 8256 242
Net interest income/net
interest spread ..........cocceeeenn. 23,169  4.46% 18494 4.25% 15263 3.98%
Net yield on eaming assets 4.77% 4.43% 4.15%
Taxable equivalent adjustment:
Loans 5 15 63
Investment securities.............. 294 301 367
Total taxable equivalent
adjustment ... 299 316 430
Net interest income ............o....... $ 22.870 18,17 $ 14,833

M

respectively. All loans and deposits are domestic.

@
3
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Average securities exclude unrealized gains/(losses) of $(249,000), $567,000, and $471,000.
Tax equivalent adjustments have been based on an assumed tax rate of 34%.

Average loans exclude nonaccrual loans of $1.3, $1.4 and $2.2 million for years ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003,



Analysis of Changes in Net Interest Income. The following table sets forth a summary of the changes in interest
income and interest expense resulting from changes in interest rates and in changes in the volume of earning assets
and interest-bearing liabilities, segregated by category. The change due to volume is calculated by multiplying the
change in volume by the prior year’s rate. The change due to rate is calculated by multiplying the change in the
applicable rate by the prior year’s volume. Figures are presented on a taxable equivalent basis.

Analysis of Changes in Net Interest Income

For the Years Ended For the Years Ended
December 31, 2005 vs, 2004 December 31, 2004 vs. 2003
Increase (Decrease) Due to: Increase (Decrease) Due to:

Volume!” Rate'" Net Change _Volume'” RatetV Net Change

(In thousands)
Earning assets:
Loans, net of uneared

INCOMIE 1ncovevveceeirveneeveaeeear e $ 3,790 $ 4562 $ 8352 § 2965 § (619) § 2,346
Total investment securities......... 427 11 438 195 27 222
Interest-bearing deposits ............ 7 8 15 (12) (13) 25
Federal funds sold ...........c......... 101 91 192 (16) 5 (11)

Total earning assets................. 4.325 4.672 8.997 3,132 _(600) 2,532

Interest-bearing liabilities:
Demand deposits ......cocoevenieei. (85) 190 105 (6) (220) (226)
Savings deposits........ccocecvercnes 341 691 1,032 169 126 295
Time deposits ..oooeviierier e 952 1.834 2,786 502 (1.321) (819)
Total deposits.......covvvevireennn. 1,208 2,715 3,923 665 (1,4135) (750)
Other short-term borrowings ......... (55) 106 51 57 a7n 40
Long-term debt ..c.ccoovoinriiiinnnnnn. 205 143 348 (50) 62 12
Total interest-bearing '
liabilities .......ooricrrirrniiercas 1,358 2,964 4322 672 (1.370) _{698)
Net interest iNCOME...........covcvennnin. $ 2,967 $ 1,708 $ 4675 § 2460 $ 770 §_ 3230

(1) The change in interest due to both rate and volume has been allocated to volume and rate changes in proportion to the
relationship of the absolute dollar amounts of the change in each.

Provision for Loan Losses

The provision for loan losses is based on the growth of the loan portfolio, the amount of net loan losses
incwrred and management’s estimation of potential future losses based on an evaluation of the risk in the loan
- portfolio. The provision for loan losses was $2.2 million for 2005, $1.2 million for 2004 and $1.5 million for 2003.
Please see the discussion below under “Allowance for Loan Losses” for a description of the factors we consider in
determining the amount of the provision we expense each period to maintain this allowance, including our provision
for a loan asset, which we concluded, in the fourth quarter, had become impaired.

Noninterest Income

Years Ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003

Noninterest income for 2005, 2004 and 2003 totaled $3.3 million, $2.8 million and $2.7 million, respectively.
These amounts are primarily from customer service fees, mortgage origination commissions, insurance
commissions, as well as other fees charged to customers such as safe deposit rental and ATM fees. Customer service
fees increased from $845,000 in 2003 to $1.2 million in 2004, and grew to $1.4 million in 2005. The increase in
customer service fees from 2004 to 2005 is primarily related to our increased efforts to collect deposit account
charges, non-sufficient funds (NSF), and returned check charges during the second half of 2005. Demand deposits
(not including money market accounts) also increased by approximately 18.4% from December 31, 2004 to
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December 31, 2005. The increase in customer service fees during 2004 was partially related to some of the new
products introduced during the year, such as our consumer overdraft protection service. Mortgage origination
commissions increased to $959,000 in 2005, after decreasing from $1.3 million in 2003 to $801,000 in 2004. The
increase from 2004 to 2005 relates to increasing land and real estate development and the continued strong loan
demand in our market area. The fluctuations in mortgage origination commissions from 2003 to 2004 were
primarily due to a high volume of mortgage refinancing in 2003 due to the historically low interest rates. The
subsequent rise in rates during 2004 contributed to a decrease in mortgage refinancing during that year.

Noninterest Expenses
Years Ended December 31, 20035, 2004 and 2003

Noninterest expenses totaled $16.3 million in 2005, up from $13.8 million in 2004, and $11.7 million in
2003. As a percentage of total assets, our total noninterest expenses decreased from 2.9% in both 2003 and 2004, to
2.8% in 2005. Salaries and employee benefits increased $1.9 million, or 27.0%, to $8.7 million in 2005, and $1.2
million, or 21.9%, to $6.9 million from 2003 to 2004. This increase in salaries and employee benefits was due to the
addition of several management-level employees necessary to provide the infrastructure to support our continued
growth. Since December 31, 2004, we have added 30 full-time equivalent employees. In addition, in the third
quarter of 2004, we implemented a new salary continuation plan for our directors and executive officers.

Occupancy, furniture and equipment expenses totaled $2.0 million in 2005, $2.0 million in 2004, and $1.6
million in 2003. The 21.3% increase from 2003 to 2004 was due to the completion of construction of the new Blue
Ridge branch. Other operating expenses increased from $4.5 million in 2003 to $5.0 million in 2004, and to $5.6
million in 2005. These annual increases are primarily the result of increased professiona! fees, marketing expenses,
and funding obligations for our director retirement plan, which was implemented in the third quarter of 2004, as well
as increases in data processing expenses. Professional fees increased $287,000 to $1.3 million for 2005, compared
to $987,000 in 2004 and $948,000 in 2003. This increase is due to the increasing cost of accounting, auditing and
legal services associated with the requirements of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, as well as consulting fees
incurred in 2005 related to our revenue enhancement initiatives.

Total marketing expenses increased $263,000, or 33.7%, from 2004 to 2005 due to our increased marketing
of our new deposits products. Marketing expenses increased $266,000, or 51.6%, to $782,000 from 2003 to 2004.
The marketing expense increase for 2004 is related to the marketing of the new Blue Ridge location as well as new
products that were rolled out during 2004. Noninterest expenses also increased by $354,000 from 2003 to 2004 due
to losses on disposal of repossessed property. These increases were partially offset by some decreases in other
expenses, such as decrease in loss on sale of other real estate. The expenses related to the director retirement plan
are offset by earnings on the cash surrender value of life insurance.

Balance Sheet Review
General

At December 31, 2005, we had total assets of $592.6 million, consisting principally of $451.4 million in net
loans (net of allowance of $6.1 million), $71.6 million in investments, $35.3 million in cash and cash equivalents,
and $16.8 millien in net premises and equipment (net of accumulated depreciation of $4.7 million). Our liabilities at
December 31, 2005 totaled $532.8 million, consisting principally of $473.3 million in deposits, $25.0 million in
FHLB advances, $24.9 million of short-term borrowings and $6.2 million of subordinated long-term capital notes.
At December 31, 2005, our shareholders’ equity was $59.8 million.

At December 31, 2004, we had total assets of $472.8 million, consisting principally of $373.0 million in net
loans (net of allowance of $4.3 million), $64.7 million in investments, $7.5 million in cash and cash equivalents, and
$13.0 million in net premises and equipment (net of accumulated depreciation of $3.9 million). Qur liabilities at
December 31, 2004 totaled $436.7 million, consisting principally of $381.5 million in deposits, $32.0 million in
FHLB advances, $15.5 million of short-term borrowings and $6.2 million of subordinated long-term capital notes.
At December 31, 2004, our shareholders’ equity was $36.1 million.
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Federal Funds Sold

Management maintains federal funds sold as a tool in managing daily cash needs. Federal funds sold at
December 31, 2005 and December 31, 2004 were $799,000 and $2.2 million respectively. The 63.0% decrease in year-
end federal funds sold resulted from the timing of funding loan demand. Average federal funds sold for the twelve
months ended December 31, 2005 and 2004 were approximately $6.0 million, or 1.23% of average earning assets, and
approximately $2.0 million, or 0.48% of average earning assets, respectively. We continue to try to minimize federal
funds sold in this low rate environment to maximize our use of earning assets.

Securities Portfolio

The primary objectives of our investment strategy are to maintain an appropriate level of liquidity, and to provide a
tool with which to control our interest rate position while, at the same time, producing adequate levels of interest income.

The following table presents the carrying amounts of the securities portfolio at December 31 in each of the last
three years.

December 31,

2005 2004 2003
Securities Available-for-Sale:
U.S. government and agency SECUIItIES .......ovvvevieerivcrioviieriseieeeseeerenseseanrenn e, $ 37357% 31,7448 20,074
State and MUNICIPAl SECUTITIES ... .oooeviviviiieieire vt ea e e rae e 14,806 14,277 19,205
Mortgage-backed SECUTITIES .. ....vvvieiieirirreevesi ettt se e e eeva e eres 15,803 14,927 14,355
EQUILY SECUITHIES ....vveieiricieircierens eteieneseessieteaenesteresesaa s saasesesessasesanrssassens 3,604 3.707 1,729
TOtAL 1.ttt ettt b st esesbannens § 715708 64,655 % 55363

Gross unrealized gains in the portfolio amounted to $574,000 at year-end 2005 and unrealized losses amounted to
$1,284,000. Gross unrealized gains in the portfolio amounted to $909,000 at year-end 2004 and unrealized losses amounted
to $337,000. For 2003, gross unrealized gains in the portfolio amounted to $967,000 and unrealized losses amounted to
$316,000.

At December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003 the percentage of the total carrying value of the securities portfolio to total
assets was 12.1%, 13.7% and 13.5%, respectively.

The maturities and weighfed average yields of our investments in securities (all available for sale) at December 31,
2005 are presented below. Taxable equivalent adjustments (using a 34% tax rate) have been made in calculating yields on
tax-exempt obligations.

Maturing
Within After One But After Five But After
One Year Within Five Years Within Ten Years Ten Years
Amount Yield Amount Yield Amount Yield Amount Yield

(Dollars in thousands)

Securities Available-for-Sale

U.S. Government and agency

SECUTIHIES .oovvrvveieiieni e e $ 6,441 342% $ 30,916 342% $ —_ 0.00% § — 0.00%
State and municipal securities.... 105 4.00 334 482 3,185 497 11,182 471
Mortgage-backed securities ....... — 0.00 111 - 491 1,997 4.13 13,695 4.19
Equity securities.............c..oo.n.... — 0.00 — 0.00 — 0.00 3.604 5.30
Total Securities.......ccversrerenaens $ _6.546 3.42% § 31,361 344% 8 _ 5,182 4.64% $_ 28,481 4.53%

There were no securities held by us of which the aggregate value by issuer on December 31, 2005 exceeded 10% of
shareholders’ equity at that date. Securities which are payable from and secured by the same source of revenue or taxing
authority are considered to be securities of a single issuer. Securities of the U.S. Government and U.S. Government
agencies and corporations are not included.
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Loan Portfolio

Loans make up the largest component of our earning assets. In 2005, average loans (excluding nonaccrual
loans of $1.3 million) represented 84.9% of average earning assets, while in 2004 average loans (excluding
nonaccrual loans of $1.4 million) represented 85.9% of average earning assets. Average loans increased from
$358.9 million (excluding nonaccrual loans of $1.4 million) with a yield of 6.6% in 2004, to $412.3 million
(excluding nonaccrual loans of $1.3 million) with a yield of 7.8% in 2005. Loan demand in our market area remains
strong due to the current interest rate environment, the amount of development occurring in our market, and the
strong customer relationships that our employees have developed. The ratio of total loans to total deposits was
96.6% in 2005 and 98.9% in 2004.

The following table shows the classification of loans by major category at December 31, 2003, and for each
of the preceding four years.

December 31,
2005 2004 2003 2002 2001
Percent Percent Percent Percent Percent
Amount  _of Total Amount _of Total Amount of Total Amount of Total Amount_ _of Total

(Dollars in thousands)
Commercial,
financial and

agricultural ............ $ 33,778 74% $ 31,920 85% § 34613  104% $ 33449  112% $ 29,092 11.6%
Real estate —

Construction ... 203,538 445 145,588  38.6 104,619  31.5 73,242 246 54,255 217
Real estate —other @ 193,704 423 173,955  46.1 166,598  50.1 165,526  55.5 147,852 59.0
Consumer................. 21,051 4.6 20,957 5.6 20,535 6.2 20,296 6.8 19,370 77

5,347 1.2 4.932 1.2 5.942 1.8 5.550 1.9 0.0

Other {oans . — .
457418 _100.0% 377,352 _100.0% 332,307 _100.0% 298,063 _100.0% 250,569 _100.0%

Allowance for loan

1OSSES .vmverercarienne (6.059) (4,349) (3.610) (3.238) (2.995)
Net loans........c..oco... $ 451,359 $ 373,003 $ 328,697 294,82 24 4

(1) The “real estate - construction” category includes residential construction loans and commercial construction loans.
(2) The “real estate - other” category includes one- to- four family residential, home equity, multi-family (more than five)
residential, commercial real estate and undeveloped agricultural real estate loans.

The following table shows the maturity distribution of selected loan classifications at December 31, 2005, and
an analysis of these loan maturities. For the purposes of this schedule, loans that have reached the contractual floor
rate are treated as having a pre-determined interest rate.

Rate Structure for Loans

Maturity Maturing Over One Year
Over One
One Year Over Predetermined  Floating or
Year or Through Five Interest Adjustable
Less Five Years Years Total Rate Rate

{Dollars in thousands)

Commercial, financial

and agricultural.................. $ 214648 11,483 § 831 % 33,778 § 5,409 $ 6,905
Real estate — construction...... 169,701 32,291 1,546 203,538 22,580 11,257
Real estate — other.................. 99,336 82.427 11,941 193,704 59,104 35,264

Total oo $ 290,501 § 126201 § 14318 § 431020 § 87,093 $ 53,426
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Allowance for Loan Losses

We have established an allowance for loan losses through a provision for loan losses charged as an expense
on our income statement. The allowance for loan losses represents an amount which we believe will be adequate to
absorb probable losses on existing loans that may become uncollectible. Our judgment as to the adequacy of the
allowance for loan losses is based on a number of assumptions about future events, which we believe to be
reasonable, but which may or may not prove to be accurate. In assessing adequacy, management relies
predominantly on its ongoing review of the loan portfolio, which is undertaken both to determine whether there are
probable losses that must be charged off and to assess the risk characteristics of the aggregate portfolio. This review
takes into consideration the judgments of the responsible lending officers and senior management, and also those of
bank regulatory agencies that review the loan portfolio as part of the regular bank examination process. In
evaluating the allowance, management also considers our loan loss experience, the amount of past due and
nonperforming loans, current and anticipated economic conditions, lender requirements and other appropriate
information. Certain nonperforming loans are individually assessed for impairment under Statement of Accounting
Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS”) No. 114 and assigned specific allocations. Other identified high-risk
loans or credit relationships based on internal risk ratings are also individually assessed and assigned specific
allocations.

Periodically, we adjust the amount of the allowance based on changing circumstances, including changes in
general economic conditions, changes in the interest-rate environment, changes in loan concentrations in various
areas of our banking activities, changes in identified troubled credits, and economic changes in our market area. We
charge recognized losses to the allowance and add subsequent recoveries back to the allowance for loan losses.
There can be no assurance that charge-offs of loans in future periods will not exceed the allowance for loan losses as
estimated at any point in time or that provisions for loan losses will not be significant to a particular accounting
period.

The allocation of the allowance to the respective loan segments is an approximation and not necessarily
indicative of future losses or future allocations. The entire allowance is available to absorb losses occurring in the
overall loan portfolio. In addition, the allowance is subject to examination and adequacy testing by regulatory
agencies, which may consider such factors as the methodology used to determine adequacy and the size of the
allowance relative to that of peer institutions, and other adequacy tests. Such regulatory agencies could require us to
adjust the allowance based on information available to them at the time of their examination.

At December 31, 2005, our allowance for loan losses was $6.1 million, or 1.32% of total outstanding loans,
compared to an allowance for loan losses of $4.3 million, or 1.15% of outstanding loans, at December 31, 2004, and
$3.6 million, or 1.09% of outstanding loans, at December 31, 2003. Further, during the fourth quarter, in connection
with our preparation of the year-end financial statements to be included in this Report, we concluded that one of our
loan assets, which we had previously identified as a possible problem asset, had become impaired under generalty
accepted accounting principles. The amount of this loan asset is $2,524,000.

Our allowance for loan losses at December 31, 2005, reflects a specific allocation for the impairment of this
loan asset, in the amount of $850,000. Without this specific allocation, our loan loss reserves at December 31, 2005,
are $35.2 million, or 1.14%, of our outstanding loans. We anticipate that the amount of this loan specifically reserved
for will be charged off in the first quarter of 2006.
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The following table sets forth certain information with respect to our loans, net of unearned income, and the
allowance for loan losses for the years ended December 31, 2001 to 2005.

Years ended December 31,
2005 2004 2003 2002 2001
(Dollars in thousands)

Allowance for loan losses at beginning of year... $ 4349 § 3,610 § 3,238 § 2995 § 2,211

Loans charged off:
Commercial, financial, and agricultural .......... 359 30 277 89 240
Real estate — construction.......c.cecevevevcenneenenees 10 240 28 50 —
Real estate — other .........cccocvivevicrnie v, 41 158 638 427 134
CONSUIMET .....oceveevierreeienrectareanraeereeaeaeesereneseens 150 127 265 250 170
Total loans charged off ..........coeerrerrnnenen, 560 555 1,208 816 544
Recoveries on loans previously charged off:
Commercial, financial, and agricultural ........... 24 35 25 5 8
Real estate — conStruction.........ccovevvvercvecnenens — — 3 — —
Real estate — other ........covvevvevcervernnin e — 2 50 — 6
CONSUIMIET ....eviirieniceieie e eerscreeneareeseesesasaanns 35 22 37 26 20
Total recoveries on loans previously
charged off........cccovvcriiiiice e, 59 59 115 3t 34
Net loans charged off........ccoovvniinnciernnns 501 496 1,093 785 510
Provision for loan 10SSes..........ccecvevvveveivienveenns 2,211 1,235 1.465 1.028 1,294

Allowance for loan losses, at end of period......... $ 6,059 § 4349 § 3610 § 3238 § 2,995

Loans, net of unearned income, at end of period. $ 457418 § 377,352 § 332,307 § 298,063 § 250.569

Average loans, net of unearned income,

outstanding at the end of the period ................ $ 413561 § 360261 § 316605 § 276,733 § 234,031
Ratios:
Allowance at end of period to loans, net of

unearmned iNCOME ..........eorrerremrrorrirnreerecesennns 1.32% 1.15% 1.09% 1.09% 1.20%
Allowance at end of period to average loans,

net of unearned INCOME .......ocovverevevrcrecriennne. 1.47 1.21 1.14 .17 1.28
Net charge-offs to average loans, net of

UNearned IMCOME ......veeevevereeeeenierieeiereereenaens 0.12 0.14 0.35 0.28 0.22
Net charge-offs to allowance at end of period..... 8.27 11.40 30.28 24.24 17.03
Recoveries to prior year charge-offs................... 10.63 4.88 14.09 5.70 5.75
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The following table sets forth the breakdown of the allowance for loan losses by loan category and the
percentage of loans in each category tc total loans for the years ended December 31, 2001 to 2005.

Allocation of Allowance for Loan Losses

At December 31,
2005 2004 2003 2002 2001
Domestic Loans @ (Dollars in thousands)
Commercial,
financial, and
agricultural ....... $ 3,209 7% $ 548 8% § 1,257 10% $ 1,615 11% $ 807 12%
Real estate —

construction...... 271 45 421 39 184 32 85 25 193 22
Real estate —

other V... 1,962 42 2,138 46 1,277 350 1,044 55 1,760 59
Consumer............. 202 5 425 6 267 6 168 7 235 7
Other loans........... 415 1 817 | 625 2 326 2 — —

Total....ccocn..... $ 6,059 __100% $_4349 _100% $ 3,610 _100% $ 3,238 _ 100% $_ 2,995 __100%

@ There are no foreign loans.
Nonperforming Assets

Nonperforming assets include nonperforming loans and foreclosed assets held for sale. Nonperforming loans
include loans classified as nonaccrual or renegotiated and loans past due 90 days or more. Our policy is to place a
loan on nonaccrual status when it is confractually past due 90 days or more as to payment of principal or interest,
unless the collateral value is greater than both the principal due and the accrued interest. At the time a loan is placed
on nonaccrual status, interest previously accrued but not collected is reversed and charged against current earnings.
Recognition of any interest after a loan has been placed on nonaccrual status is accounted for on a cash basis.
Nonperforming loans were .24% of total loans at December 31, 2005 and 0.41% of total loans at December 31,
2004, compared to 0.50% at December 31, 2003.

It is our general policy to stop accruing interest income and place the recognition of interest on a cash basis
when any commercial, industrial or real estate loan is past due as to principal or interest and the ultimate collection
of either is in doubt. Accrual of interest income on consumer installment loans is suspended when any payment of
principal or interest, or both, is more than 90 days delinquent. When a loan is placed on a nonaccrual basis, any
interest previously accrued but not collected is reversed against current income unless the collateral for the loan is
sufficient to cover the accrued interest or a guarantor assures payment of interest. For each of the five years in the
period ended December 31, 2003, the difference between gross interest income that would have been recorded in
such period, if the nonaccruing loans had been current in accordance with their original terms, and the amount of
interest income on those loans, that was included in such period’s net income, was immaterial.

30




The following table shows our nonperforming assets as well as the ratio of the allowance for loan losses to
total nonperforming assets, the total nonperforming loans to total loans, and the total nonperforming assets to total
assets, for the years ended December 31, 2001 to 2005.

December 31,

2005 2004 2003 2002 2001
(Doliars in thousands)
Nonaccruing loans ........ocoveveeecvirnorernnnneennnes $ 1,020 § 1,524 § 1,127 § 4823 § 1,642
Loans past due 90 days or more ..........cccocecevnennn 71 34 521 334 12
Restructured 10ans ........c.cooveevrveernire e — — — — —
Total nonperforming loans.........cooccccnvnnencnn. 1,001 1,558 1,648 5,157 1,654
NONaccruing SECUrItEs .....covvvveeireierieirieaenrenine — — — — —_
Other real estate........c.occoovemiceivrenie e 147 516 737 986 133
Total nonperforming assets..........covvevercerennnn h) 1238 § 2074 § 2385 § 6,143 % 1,787
Ratios:
Loan loss allowance to total
nonperforming assets .......ccocvvvvrioeeeecccrennnns 489.42%  209.69%  151.36% 52711%  167.60%
Total nonperforming loans to total loans
{net of unearned interest) ............cooevvreverenen. 0.24% 0.41% 0.50% 1.73% 0.66%
Total nonperforming assets to total assets........ 0.21% 0.44% 0.58% 1.60% 0.56%

Deposits and Other Interest-Bearing Liabilities

Deposits are the primary source of funds to support our earning assets. Average deposits increased 17.8%, from
approximately $362.3 million in 2004 to approximately $426.8 million in 2005. Average deposits increased 12.9%,
from approximately $320.8 million in 2003 to approximately $362.3 million in 2004. At December 31, 2005, total
deposits were $473.3 million, of which $426.7 million or 90.2%, were interest bearing, at December 31, 2004, total
deposits were $381.5 million, of which $348.6 million, or 91.4%, were interest bearing, and at December 31, 2003, total
deposits were $332.9 million, of which $309.1 million, or 92.9%, were interest bearing. Alternative funding sources
such as national CDs and brokered deposits were used 1o supplement funding sources. Brokered deposits were $52.6 at
December 31, 2005. At December 31, 2004, brokered deposits were $23.4 million. The increase in our brokered
deposits is due to the fact that in 2005 we began using the Certificate of Deposit Account Registry Service, which
accounted for 19.7 of total brokered deposits at December 31, 2005. Brokered deposits are a secondary source of
deposits utilized to fund loan growth. In many instances, the cost of these deposits is comparable to our local deposits.
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The average amounts of, and the average rate paid on, each of the following categories of deposits, for the years
ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003, are as follows:

Years ended December 31,
2005 2004 2003
Amount Rate Amount Rate Amount Rate
(Dollars in thousands)

Noninterest-bearing demand

dePOSItS...cviererirrreirie e $ 43,878 0.00% § 30,840 0.00% § 22,056 0.00%
Interest-bearing demand deposits ... 75,670 1.40 82,617 1.15 83,040 1.42
Savings deposits .....ccccoeecenicineen 84,653 2.06 61,281 1.16 45,318 0.92
Time deposits......ccovecvrenieeinennnnen, _ 222561 3.29 187,578 242 170,419 3.15

Total interest-bearing deposits ....____382.884 2.65 331.476 1.87 298.777 2.33

Total average deposits.........c....... $ 426,762 237 3362316 171§ 320,833 2.17

Our core deposits, which exclude brokered and national certificates of deposits, were $397.3 million at December
31, 20085, an increase of 19.2% compared to $333.4 million at December 31, 2004. Core deposits as a percentage of
total deposits were approximately 83.9% and 87.4% at December 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively. In 2005, we began
using the Certificate of Deposit Account Registry Service (CDARS) in order to obtain FDIC insurance on some of our
larger customers. Although CDARS are required to be categorized as brokered deposits, these deposits represent
deposits greater than $100,000 originated in our local markets that are placed with other institutions that are members in
the CDARS network. By placing these deposits in these other institutions, the deposits of our customers are fully
insured by the FDIC. In return for the deposits that we place with network institutions, we receive from network
institutions, deposits that are approximately equal in amount of what was originated from our customers. In addition,
the CDARS are priced at local rates, which generally have lower rates than rates being offered for brokered deposits.
At December 31, 2005, CDARS represented $19.7 million of our deposits, or 4.2%. We continue to focus on increasing
our core deposit base. The two categories of lowest cost deposits comprised the following percentages of average total
deposits during 2005: average noninterest-bearing demand deposits, 10.3%; and average savings deposits, 19.8%. Of
average time deposits, approximately 55.6% were large denomination cettificates of deposit.

Noninterest-bearing deposits increased $13.7 million, or 41.5%, from year-end 2004 to $46.6 million at
December 31, 2005, and interest-bearing deposits increased $78.1 million, or 22.4%, during the same period to $426.7
million. The increase in noninterest-bearing deposits has been the result of our focus on providing excellent customer
service to our small business customers and also by the development of relationships with new businesses that have
moved into our communities. The increase in our interest-bearing deposits has been the result of offering competitive
products to serve our customers as well as the development of relationships with individuals who have relocated to our
communities.

The following table sets forth the maturities of our time deposits of $100,000 or more by category at December
31, 2008.

(Dollars in

thousands)
T REEE TONEIS OF LSS ottt ettt ettt ettt e e e e e e ae e e e e eeas et e eeaeenateeaesasbe s $ 28,618
Over three through SiX MOMENS ........ocviiiiiiii ettt 24,386
Over six through tWelve MOMENS ..ottt s 44,484
OVer tWelve MONNS. .....ooii et e 27,534
TOUAY ettt a et a et d bR et a £kt h e ae sk e e e b et et es et e R e ne et et ereen e ns h) 125,022
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Borrowings
Short-Term Borrowings

Securities sold under agreements to repurchase amounted to $3.7 million at December 31, 2005, compared to
$6.3 million at December 31, 2004, and $4.1 million at December 31, 2003. The weighted average rates were
1.24%, 1.36%, and 1.23% for 2005, 2004 and 2003, respectively. The total amount of securities sold under
agreements to repurchase are associated with the cash flow needs of our corporate customers who participate in
repurchase agreements. We also had a short-term line of credit with the Federal Home Loan Bank with balances of
$14.0 million, $9.2 million, and $5.0 million at December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003, respectively. The short-term
line of credit with the Federal Home Loan Bank is in the form of a daily rate credit. It floats daily based on the
overnight funds market. The line of credit has a one year term and matures in May of each year. We have available
a $30.0 million in lines of credit to purchase Federal Funds, on an unsecured basis, from commercial banks, of
which $22.8 million was available at December 31, 2005. We had federal funds purchased that amounted to $7.2
million at year-end 2005, and $-0- at year-end 2004, compared to $3,000,000 at year-end 2003.

Short-term borrowings at December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003 consisted of the following:

As of December 31,
2005 2004 2003
(Dollars in thousands)
Federal funds purchased..........oovvovvrrirnnnneriirisescnnnens 3 7,217 $ — § 3,000
Securities sold under agreements to repurchase .........ccococvivene. 3,675 6,264 4,086
FHLB 1ine of Credit cv..cvvveeerieceetceeeeeeeeev ettt 14.000 9,206 5,000
S 24,892 $ 15470 $ 12,086
FHLB Advances

Our total borrowed funds consist primarily of long-term debt with maturities from one to ten years. At
December 31, 2005 we were approved to borrow up to approximately $81.9 million under various short-term and
long-term programs offered by the Federal Home Loan Bank of Atlanta. These borrowings are secured under a
blanket lien agreement on certain qualifying mortgage instruments in the loan and securities portfolios. At
December 31, 2003, the outstanding balance of our credit line was $38.9 million, of which $14 million was
accounted for as a short-term line of credit.

Subordinated Long-term Capital Notes

On August 28, 2003, Appalachian Capital Trust [ (“the Trust”), a Delaware statutory trust established by us,
received $6.0 million principal amount of the Trust’s floating rate cumulative trust preferred securities in a trust
preferred private placement. The proceeds of that transaction were used by the Trust to purchase an equal amount of
our floating rate-subordinated debentures. We have fully and unconditionally guaranteed all obligations of the Trust
on a subordinated basis with respect to the trust preferred securities. We account for the trust preferred securities as
a minority interest of $186,000 and as a long-term debt liability in the amount of $6.2 million. Interest only is
payable quarterly at a variable per annum rate of interest, reset quarterly, equal to LIBOR pius 3.00 % percent until
the debt becomes due on August 8, 2033. The interest rate on the Trust Preferred liability at December 31, 2005 and
2004 was 7.25% and 5.16%, respectively. Subject to certain limitations, the trust preferred securities qualify as Tier
1 capital and are presented in the consolidated financial statements included elsewhere in this Form 10-K as
“subordinated long-term capital notes”.

The sole assets of the Trust are the subordinated debentures issued by us. Both the trust preferred securities
and the subordinated debentures have approximately 30-year lives. However, both we and the Trust have options to
call our respective securities after five years, subject to regulatory capital requirements.
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Capital Resources

Total shareholders’ equity was $59.8 million at December 31, 2005, an increase of $23.7 million from $36.1
million at December 31, 2004. This increase resulted primarily from net proceeds of $18.4 million stemming from
the sale of approximately 1.3 million shares of our common stock in the fourth quarter of 2005. The increase was
also due in part to net earnings of $5.1 million during 2005. We issued 33,000 shares of stock to our 401(k) Plan
during 2005 for proceeds of $495,000. We had an additional $847,000 increase in the accumulated other
comprehensive loss on our available-for-sale securities. In addition, the effects of the stock-based compensation
expense as well as the exercise of 86,525 options during 2005 increased equity by $602,000, including the tax
benefit.

The Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation Improvement Act establishes risk-based capital guidelines that
take into consideration risk factors, as defined by regulators, associated with various categories of assets, both on
and off the balance sheet. Under the guidelines, capital strength is measured in two tiers, which are used in
conjunction with risk-adjusted assets to determine the risk-based capital ratios. Our Tier 1 capital, which consists of
common equity, paid-in capital, retained earnings and qualifying trust preferred securities (less intangible assets and
treasury stock), amounted to $64.3 million at December 31, 2005. Tier 2 capital components include supplemental
capital components such as qualifying allowance for loan losses and trust preferred securities not qualified for Tier 1
capital. Tier 1 capital, plus the Tier 2 capital components, are referred to as Total Capital and was $70.4 million at
year-end 2005. The percentage ratios as calculated under regulatory guidelines were 13.3% and 14.5% for Tier 1
and Total Capital, respectively, at year-end 2005. Our Tier 1 Capital and Total Capital exceeded the minimum ratios
of 4.0% and 8.0%, respectively.

Another important indicator of capital adequacy in the banking industry is the leverage ratio. The leverage
ratio is defined as the ratio which shareholders’ equity, minus intangibles, bears to total assets minus intangibles. At
December 31, 2005, our leverage ratio was 11.35%, exceeding the regulatory minimum requirement of 4.0%.

The table following illustrates our regulatory capital ratios under federal guidelines at December 31, 2005,
2004 and 2003:

Statutory Years ended December 31,
Minimum 2005 2004 2003
{(Dollars in thousands)
Tier 1 Capital...c..ocooocvvierieniocecceercee, $ 64,301 3 39,713 34,681
Tier 2 Capital ..., 6.057 4,349 3.610
Total Qualifying Capital ............ccooovevirnencnn $ 70,358 $ 44062 $ 38,291
Risk Adjusted Total Assets (including
off-balance sheet exposures) ............o...... s 484,577 $ 384847 § 331,638

Tier 1 Risk-Based Capital Ratio.................. 4.0% 13.27% 10.32% 10.46%
Total Risk-Based Capital Ratio ................... 8.0 14.52 11.45 11.55
Leverage Ratio......cccoceveeievvvnvnnieecieannns 4.0 11.35 8.53 8.58
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Return on Equity and Assets

The following table summarizes certain of our financial ratios for the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004
and 2003.

2005 2004 2003
Return on average assets 0.99% 0.91% 0.78%
Return on average equity 12.18 12.23 10.85
Dividend payout ratio ......c.ccocceiererrcenine — — —
Average equity to average assets ratio 8.11 7.42 7.23

Interest Rate Sensitivity Management

Interest rate sensitivity is a function of the repricing characteristics of our portfolios of assets and habilities.
These repricing characteristics are the time frames within which the interest-bearing assets and liabilities are subject
to changes in interest rates, either at replacement or maturity during the life of the instruments. Sensitivity is
measured as the difference between the volume of assets and liabilities in our current portfolio that is subject to
repricing in future time periods. The differences are known as interest rate sensitivity gaps and are usually calculated
separately for segments of time, ranging from zero to 30 days, 31 to 90 days, 91 days to one year, one to five years,
over five years and on a cumulative basis.

The following table indicates that, in a rising interest rate environment, our earnings may be adversely
affected in the 0-365 day periods where liabilities will reprice faster than assets, if rates move simultaneously. As
seen in the following table, for the first 30 days of repricing opportunity, there is an excess of eaming assets over
interest-bearing liabilities of approximately $490,000. For the first 365 days, interest-bearing liabilities exceed
earning assets by approximately $59.9 million. During this one-year time frame, 86.1% of all interest-bearing
liabilities will reprice compared to 65.5% of all interest-earning assets. Changes in the mix of earning assets or
supporting liabilities can either increase or decrease the net interest margin without affecting interest rate sensitivity.
In addition, the interest rate spread between an asset and its supporting liability can vary significantly while the
timing of repricing for both the asset and the liability remain the same, thus impacting net interest income. It should
be noted, therefore, that a matched interest-sensitive position by itself would not ensure maximum net interest
income.
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The following table sets forth information regarding our rate sensitivity as of December 31, 2005 for each
of the intervals indicated.

0-30 31-90 90-365 “1-5 Over 5
Days Days Days Years Years Total
(Dollars in thousands)

Interest-carning assets

L0ANS ... $ 222850 8 23,191 § 88,501 § 117,267 § 4,589 $§ 456,398
Securities
Taxable oo, — 49 6,496 35,886 15,598 58,029
Tax-exempt........c.cccoevecneencan. 105 — — 330 13,816 14,251
Time deposits in other banks........ 13,765 — — — — 13,765
Federal funds sold ...........c............ 799 — — — — 795

237,519 23.240 94,997 153.483 34.003 543,242

Interest-bearing liabilities

Demand deposits ™ ...................... 88,071 — — — — 88,071
Savings deposits @ ........c.ocoovnn.an.. 95,022 — — — — 95,022
Time deposits ......ccovceeeerncrereennn. 28,944 54,621 115,002 45,089 — 243,656
Other short-term borrowings........ 24,892 — — — — 24,892
Long-term debt.........cccceveverennn. 100 150 2,650 10,050 12,000 24,950
Subordinated long-term capital
0107 <1 SRR — 6,186 — — — 6,186
237,029 60,957 117,652 55,139 12,000 482,777
Interest sensitivity gap ..........cecvevenee. b 490 § (37,7178 (22,655)F 98344 § 22,003 §_ 60,465
Cumulative interest
SENSIEIVILY ZAP evvveceriveeerrerieereieans 3 490 §_ (372278 (59,882)F 38462 3 60,465
Ratio of interest-earning assets
to interest-bearing liabilities......... 1.00 0.38 _0.81 2.78 2.83
Cumulative ratio .......cooveevecrireerennn, 1.00 0.88 0.86 1.08 1.13
Ratio of cumulative gap to total
interest-earning assets..........c.co.e. 0.00 0.07) 0.11) 0.07 0.11
¢} Excludes nonaccrual loans. Excludes unrealized gains/losses on securities.
(2) Excludes matured certificates which have not been redeemed by the customer and on which no interest is accruing.
3) Demand and savings deposits are assumed to be core deposits and not likely to be affected by changing interest rates.

These deposits typically reprice simultaneously with market changes.

Management continually evaluates the condition of the economy, the pattern of market interest rates and other
economic data to determine the types of investments that should be made and at what maturities. Using this analysis,
management from time to time assumes calculated interest rate sensitivity gap positions to maximize net interest
income based upon anticipated movements in the general level of interest rates.

We also use simulation analysis to monitor and manage our interest rate sensitivity. Simulation analysis is
the primary method of estimating earnings at risk and capital at risk under varying interest rate conditions.
Simulation analysis is used to test the sensitivity of our net interest income and shareholders’ equity to both the level
of interest rates and the slope of the yield curve. Simulation analysis accounts for the expected timing and magnitude
of assets and liability cash flows, as well as the expected timing and magnitude of deposits that do not reprice on a
contractual basis. In addition, simulation analysis includes adjustments for the lag between movements in market
interest rates on loans and interest-bearing deposits. These adjustments are made to reflect more accurately possible
future cash flows, repricing behavior and ultimately net interest income.
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The estimated impact on our net interest income before provision for loan loss sensitivity over a one-year
time horizon is shown below. Such analysis assumes a sustained parallel shift in interest rates and our estimate of
how interest-bearing transaction accounts will reprice in each scenario. Actual results will differ from simulated
results due to timing, magnitude and frequency of interest rate changes and changes in market conditions and
management’s strategies, among other factors.

Percentage Increase
(Decrease) in Interest
Income/Expense Given

Interest Rate Shifts
Down 200 Up 200
Basis Points Basis Points
For the Twelve Months After December 31, 2005
Projected change in:
INEETEST INCOIME ....cvvviceetieie ettt e ettt st ebe bbb esbe st s evesbeete e (16.72)% 14.09%
Interest expense......... (34.43) 3295
Net interest income ... (2.56) 14.51

Market Risk

Market risk is the risk arising from adverse changes in the fair value of financial instruments due to a change
in interest rates, exchange rates and equity prices. Our primary market risk is interest rate risk.

The primary objective of asset/liability management is to manage interest rate risk and achieve reasonable
stability in net interest income throughout interest rate cycles. This is achieved by maintaining the proper balance of
rate sensitive earning assets and rate sensitive liabilities. The relationship of rate sensitive earning assets to rate
sensitive liabilities is the principal factor in projecting the effect that fluctuating interest rates will have on future net
interest income. Rate sensitive earning assets and interest-bearing liabilities are those that can be repriced to current
market rates within a relatively short time period. Management monitors the rate sensitivity of earning assets and
interest-bearing liabilities over the entire life of these instruments, but places particular emphasis on the first year
and through three years.

We have not experienced a high level of volatility in net interest income primarily because of our
asset/liability management. Management continues to monitor the proper matching of asset/liability repricing to
keep our volatility at a low level.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

In the normal course of business, we offer a variety of financial products to our customers to aid them in
meeting their requirements for liquidity, credit enhancement and interest rate protection. Generally accepted
accounting principles recognize these transactions as contingent liabilities and, accordingly, they are not reflected in
the Consolidated Financial Statements. Commitments to extend credit, credit card arrangements, commercial letters
of credit and standby letters of credit all include exposure to some credit loss in the event of nonperformance of the
customer. We use the same credit policies and underwriting procedures for making off-balance sheet credit
commitments and financial guarantees as it does for on-balance sheet extensions of credit. Because these
instruments have fixed maturity dates, and because many of them expire without being drawn upon, they do not
generally present any significant liquidity risk to us. Management conducts regular reviews of these instruments on
an individual customer basis, and the results are considered in assessing the adequacy of our allowance for loan
losses. Management does not anticipate any material losses as a result of these commitments. The following is a
discussion of these commitments:

Standby Letters of Credit. These agreements are used by our customers as a means of improving their credit
standings in their dealings with others. Under these agreements, we agree to honor certain financial commitments in
the event that its customers are unable to do so. The amount of credit risk involved in issuing letters of credit in the
event of nonperformance by the other party is the contract amount. As of December 31, 2005 and 2004, we had
issued standby letters of credit of approximately $3.5 million and $1.4 million, respectively. When significant, we
record a liability for the estimated fair value of standby letters of credit based on the fees charged.
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Loan Commitments. As of December 31, 2005 and 2004, the bank had commitments outstanding to extend
credit totaling approximately $73.4 million and $59.0 million, respectively.

Contractual Obligations
We have various contractual obligations that we must fund as part of our normal operations. The following
table shows aggregate information about our contractual obligations, including interest, and the periods in which

payments are due. The amounts and time periods are measured from December 31, 2005.

Payments due by period (in thousands)

Less than More than

Total 1 year [-3 years 3-5 years S years
Long-Term Debt........c..ccooveeeeiiniiieeiriiereceenene, $ 31,136 $ 1,900 $ 4,050 $ 7,000 § 18,186
Operating Lease Obligations ..........c.coccvveveccrenens 962 36 71 72 783
Time Deposits.....ccccvcvrvrerirciieiireeerereere e 243,656 198,558 38,557 6,540 1
Construction cCOMMItMENtS...........coevveeevennreeeennnnn. 901 901 — — —

$ 276655 % 201395 42678 § 13612 § 18970

Impact of Inflation

The effect of relative purchasing power over time due to inflation has not been taken into account in our
consolidated financial statements. Rather, our financial statements have been prepared on an historical cost basis in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.

Unlike most industrial companies, our assets and liabilities are primarily monetary in nature. Therefore, the
effect of changes in interest rates will have a more significant impact on our performance than will the effect of
changing prices and inflation in general. In addition, interest rates may generally increase as the rate of inflation
increases, although not necessarily in the same magnitude. As discussed previously, we seek to manage the
relationships between interest sensitive assets and liabilities in order to protect against wide rate fluctuations,
including those resulting from inflation.

Recently Issued Accounting Standards

In December 2004, the FASB issued SFAS No. 123 (revised 2004), entitled Share-Based Payment {“SFAS
No. 123(R)”) that will require compensation costs related to share-based payment transactions to be recognized in
the financial statements. SFAS No. 123(R) eliminates the alternative to use Accounting Principles Board (“APB”)
Opinion No. 25’s Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees intrinsic value method of accounting that was provided
in Statement 123 as originally issued. Under APB Opinion No. 25, issuing stock options to employees generally
resulted in recognition of no compensation cost. SFAS No. 123(R) requires entities to recognize the cost of
employee services received in exchange for awards of equity instruments based on the grant-date fair value of those
awards (with limited exceptions). Recognition of that compensation cost helps users of financial statements to better
understand the economic transactions affecting an entity and to make better resource allocation decisions. Effective
January 1, 2003, the Company adopted the fair value recognition provisions of SFAS No. 123, Accounting for
Stock-Based Compensation, as provided by SFAS No. 148, Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation - Transition
and Disclosure. SFAS No. 148 allows for a prospective method of adoption of SFAS No. 123, whereby the
Company can prospectively account for the current expense of options granted during 2003 and thereafter. On April
21, 2005, the SEC amended Rule 4-01(a) of Regulation S-X regarding the compliance date for SFAS No. 123(R) so
the effective date is delayed to January 1, 2006. The Company is currently evaluating the provisions of SFAS No.
123(R) and will adopt it on January 1, 2006.
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ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

Information in response to this Item 7A is incorporated by reference from the following sections of Item 7
of this report: “Interest Rate Sensitivity Management” and “Market Risk.”

ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

The consolidated financial statements and supplementary data required by Regulation S-X and by Item 302
of Regulation S-K are set forth in the pages below.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders
Appalachian Bancshares, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Ellijay, Georgia

We have audited the consolidated statement of financial condition of Appalachian Bancshares, Inc. and subsidiaries
as of December 31, 2005, and the related consolidated statements of income, shareholders’ equity and cash flows for
the year then ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. The consolidated financial
statements of Appalachian Bancshares, Inc. and subsidiaries for the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003 were
audited by other auditors whose report, dated March 17, 2005, expressed an unqualified opinion on those statements.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overail
financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the 2005 consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of Appalachian Bancshares, Inc. and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2005, and the results of

their operations and their cash flows for the year then ended, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting
principles.

/s/ Mauldin & Jenkins, LLC

Atlanta, Georgia
February 10, 2006
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Schauer Taylor Cox Vise & Morgan, P.C.

Certified Public Accountants and Consultants

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders
Appalachian Bancshares, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Ellijjay, Georgia

We have audited the accompanying consolidated statements of financial condition of Appalachian Bancshares, Inc.
(a Georgia corporation) and subsidiaries (the Company) as of December 31, 2004 and 2003, and the related
consolidated statements of income, shareholders’ equity and cash flows for each of the three years in the period
ended December 31, 2004. These consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s
management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our
audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a
test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. An audit also
includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall consolidated financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable
basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
consolidated financial position of Appzlachian Bancshares, Inc. and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2004 and 2003,
and the consolidated results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended
December 31, 2004, in conformity with United States generally accepted accounting principles.

Birmingham, Alabama
March 17, 2005
{s/ Schauer Taylor Cox Vise & Morgan, P.C.
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APPALACHIAN BANCSHARES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION

December 31, 2005 and 2004

Assets

Cash and due from banks ...
Interest-bearing deposits with other banks ........c.oooeiviinciini
Federal funds SOIA.........cooovoiiiiieecec e vt

Cash and Cash Equivalents ................occooovommninenininncc e

Securities available-TOr-Sale .........covvveiiioeee et e

Loans, net of UNearmed IICOIMIE .......ovueiviiviriceereeeeceerete e tee st re s
Allowance for 10an J0SSES ..ottt
INEELOAMS ..o ettt et ettt e e ae st ereeaas

Premises and eqUIPMENt, NEL.......cciveveiierciiieecieerce e et
ACCTUEA INEETEST ...vvceivee ettt ee e ers ettt e e aesae e e st seneasenasenmn s
Cash surrender value on life INSUFANCE .........cceieeiviiieiciiecseeeee e e e
INtANGIBIES, ML ...oveiviciriceieee ettt et
OMRET ASSES ...ttt ettt ettt et et e s e e e e e et et eee e st sensanaeran e

Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity

Liabilities
Noninterest-bearing depOosits.......ccvveieoricciiirirrirrrereeerc et eans
Interest-bearing dEPOSIES. ......ccevovvrireeirieeceniis e b st e es et rnseas s s
Total DePOoSits ........cocoiiiiiirieie et

ShOTt-1ermM DOITOWINES ..ovveiiviiieiieriti ettt et s seetes s er vt sn v st eeas
ACCTUEH INEETESE..c..veeotrvec ettt vttt et ae b s b etesee et sassesesteseba s
FHLB AQVANCES ...ttt b sas et en e ans
Subordinated long-term capital NOES ..........cccvveirricorivirrrr e
Oher HADIIHES ...cv.vrveviieeiiisiiers ettt b b

Commitments and Contingencies

Shareholders’ Equity

Preferred stock, 20,000,000 shares authorized, none issued........c.c.cccoceiivnieninnn
Common stock, par value $0.01 per share, 20,000,000 shares authorized,

5,225,097 and 3,840,572 shares issued at December 31, 2005 and

2004, TESPECHIVELY «ooeiviiveiiiirieee et ettt et rae sttt sb s ere st eae b
Paid-In CAPILAL.......ovivreiriieiirirr ettt
Retained CaIMIILES ....oocovvveiiieiere et erecer sttt ser et es et b eve s rere st ere b s
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss): net unrealized

holding gains on securities available-for-sale, net of deferred

INCOMNE EAX 1.vurte e ctetat e srateeeseesaseea e ebasesemess et sbeseaebe s e s eaesesseesasats et tsaesrananesesasna
Less cost of treasury stock, 75,973 shares at 2005 and 2004 .........c.c.cceoeveverevnee

Total Shareholders’ EQuity...........cocooiiiniininnciieec e

Total Liabilities and Shareholders’ EQUItY............ccccocooveiviimiiciiiecceece s

See notes to consolidated financial statements
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2005 2004
20,771,833 $ 4,953,563
13,765,151 403,532

798.541 2,156,000
35,335,525 7,513,095
71,570,323 64,654,722

457,418,160 377,351,501
_ (6.059,238) (4.348.618)

451,358,922 373,002,883

16,797,386 12,988,640

4,750,975 2,901,737

8,142,533 7,833,450

1,991,891 1,991,891

2,658,180 1,924,710

3 592,605,735 § 472.811,128

46,560,796 32,896,346
426,748,963 _ 348.601.825
473,309,759 381,498,171

24,891,739 15,469,540

728,217 540,217
24,950,000 31,950,000
6,186,000 6,186,000
2715421 _ 1083878
532,781,136 _ 436.727.806
52,251 38,406
43,184,053 23,731,549
17,756,750 12,635,174
(468,659) 377,989
(699.796) _(699.796)
59.824.599 36,083,322

$ 592605735 § 472,811,128



APPALACHIAN BANCSHARES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME
Years Ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003

Interest Income

Interest and fees 0n 10aAnS .......cccccovvviiiiiiieiiieeeeee e

Interest on securities:

Taxable SECUTIIES ....vvviiiiriecrieeeceee e
Nontaxable Securities......cooovvvivivvee i
Interest on deposits with other banks ...........cccoceeiines
Interest on federal funds sold .............ccovevieeiiicvicein,

Total Interest Income..

...........

Interest Expense

Interest 0n deposits.. ..ot snene

Interest on federal funds purchased and securities sold

under agreements to repurchase.........c.cecvvveneeericenenn
Interest on FHLB advances.........c.ccccooivnnniicnnenne
Interest on subordinated long-term capital notes...........
Total Interest EXpense .......ceicimininisiniereiiiiines

Net Interest INCOME ...covvvevvrveeeirerersvnserereirarsssreseresssnseerase
Provision for 10an 108Ses .......c..ccovviiviiviniieee

Net Interest Income After Provision Jor Loan Losses

Noninterest Income

Customer Service fees .......ococvvieriiinieriineenieceene
Mortgage origination COMMISSIONS ...vovevrrerirerernien
Securtties LOSSES ....c.evrieriniiriciriiice et
Other operating iNCOME ..........cccervrrieveererenirieieeeeeeeas

Total Noninterest Income

--------

Noninterest Expenses

Salaries and employee benefits ..........ccoeoeeiireiiienncnin.
Occupancy, furniture and equipment expense...............
Other operating eXpenses .........cocovcevvverervrinreceniensiene

Total Noninterest Expenses

-------

Income before INCOME tAXES ...oovvviveeviireicieeeeieeeeiee e
INCOME taxX EXPEMNSE ....coviiiiieiiieriiiicre et

Net Income ......

See notes to consolidated financial statements
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2005 2004 2003

$ 32,013,553 § 23,652,087 $§ 21,257,660
1,842,975 1,401,522 1,058,688
655,170 650,486 706,115

20,017 5,488 30,224

218,469 26.369 37.362
34,750,184 25.735.952 23,090,049
10,131,669 6,209,262 6,959,433
173,861 123,282 82,722
1,169,518 941,835 1,129,209
404,450 283.600 85.200
11.879.498 7.557.979 8.256.564
22,870,686 18,177,973 14,833,485
2,210,900 1,235,107 1.465.000
20,659,786 16.942.866 13.368.485
1,433,835 1,233,655 844,669
959,289 800,981 1,276,787
— (22,633) (16,978)

908,502 817.485 598.917
3,301,626 2.829.488 2.703.395
8,740,788 6,884,579 5,645,790
2,014,372 1,955,683 1,611,939
5,582,503 4,999,746 4474256
16,337,663 13,840,008 11.731.985
7,623,749 5,932,346 4,339,895
2,502,173 1,885.332 1,253,315

$§  5121,576 S 4047.014 S 3086580
$ 1.24 1.09 0.86
1.21 1.04 0.81

0.00 0.00 0.00

4,123,403 3,724,095 3,609,728
4,247,334 3,885,490 3,809,625




APPALACHIAN BANCSHARES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Years Ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003

Accumulated
Other
Compre-
hensive
Common Paid-in Retained Income Treasury
Stock Capital Earnings (Loss) Total

Balance at December 31, 2002......... $ 36,398 $21,115,556 $ 5,805,986 $§ 449,050 $ (1,787,701) $25,619,289
Retroactive effect of 10%

stock dividend ..........cccooovivviieeninns 202 302,273 (304,406) — — (1,931)
Net income 2003 .......ccooveeriienreeenen. — — 3,086,580 — — 3,086,580
Unrealized losses on available-

for-sale securities, net of

reclassification adjustment,

net of tax of $(10,107).....ccocvvvene. — — — (19,616) — (19,616)
Comprehensive income ...........o.c..... — — — — — _ 3.066.964
Effect of exercise and issuance of

StOCK OPtiONS ..oveveeviieceivieereene, 747 528,583 — — — 529,330
Proceeds from issuance of

treasury Stock ..ooevvvveriiiviiinniennenne, — 780,796 — — 1,142 805 1,923,601
Acquisition of treasury stock............ — — — — (54,900) (54.900)
Balance at December 31, 2003 ......... 37,347 22,727,208 8,588,160 429,434 (699,796) 31,082,353
Net income 2004........coovvevveevnereennn. — — 4,047,014 — — 4,047,014
Unrealized losses on available-

for-sale securities, net of

reclassification adjustment,

net of tax of $(26,501).....ccccccenne. — — — (51,445) — (51.443)
Comprehensive income .................... — — — — — __3.995.569
Proceeds from sale of common

stock to 401(k) plan...........ccooeenn. 336 502,855 — — — 503,191
Effect of exercise and issuance of

StOCK OPHONS ..oevveverieicereceeen 723 501.486 — — — 502,209
Balance at December 31, 2004 ......... 38,406 23,731,549 12,635,174 377,989 (699,796) 36,083,322
Net income 2005.......ccccevririrenrereenes — — 5,121,576 — —_— 5,121,576
Unrealized losses on available- ‘

for-sale securities, net of

tax of $436,151 ...ccvvvvrerveeevrecrercrenne — — —  (846,648) — (846.648)
Comprehensive income ........covvvurnee — — — — — __ 4274928
Proceeds from sale of common

stock to 401(K) plan......enisenns 330 494,670 — — — 495,000
Effect of exercise and issuance of

stock options 865 600,843 — — — 601,708
Proceeds from sale of common .

stock through stock offering 12,650 _18.356.991 — — — _18.369.641

Balance at December 31, 2005....... § 52,251 $43,184,053 $17,756,750 $ (468.659)S (699.796) $59,824,599

See notes to consolidated financial statements
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APPALACHIAN BANCSHARES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
Years Ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003

2005 2004 2003
Operating Activities
NELINCOIMIE ..ottt ettt et v ses $ 5,121,576 $ 4,047,014 % 3,086,580
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash
provided by operating activities:
Depreciation, amortization, and accretion, net ................ 926,159 1,039,402 1,312,067
Provision for 10an 10SSeS .......covovvriiieoeeie e, 2,210,900 1,235,107 1,465,000
Deferred tax benefit .. ... (70,827) (22,000) (20,000}
Realized security losses, net..............ocoovevieciicceeene e — 22,633 16,978
Loss on disposal of premises and equipment..................... 59,158 24,205 8,630
Loss on disposition of other real estate..............coovoevenine 80,191 195,181 42,143
Increase in cash surrender value on life insurance............. (309,083) (241,034) (109,173)
Increase in accrued interest receivable...............ccoovveen. (1,849,238) (611,743) (49,074)
(Increase) decrease in accrued interest payable.................. 188,000 (130,397) (303,542)
OMREL, DL ..ot 1,290,228 280.116 685.954
Net Cash Provided By Operating Activities............... 7.647,064 5,838,484 6.133.563
Investing Activities
Proceeds from sales of securities available-for-sale.............. 1,427,235 4,261,201 5,368,830
Proceeds from maturity, calls and paydown of
securities available-for-sale ............cccooooviveiiiiiiee 6,008,703 12,472,586 23,121,518
Purchase of securities available-for-sale.....................ocoo.. (15,690,130) (26,260,504) (43,960,542)
Net increase N LOANS ......ccoevieiivieieieiiiciieeercee e (80,818,958) (46,311,074) (36,321,605)
Capital expenditures, Net........ccocoviieveerievireiirre s (4,899,152) (4,959,258) (1,211,594
Proceeds from sales of premises and equipment.................. 160,909 241,917 27,746
Purchase of inSurance CONtracts .......c..oovvevvevvieveiceiieiireeinens — (5,000,000) —
Proceeds from disposition of foreclosed real estate .............. 540.949 806,763 1,248.201
Net Cash Used In Investing Activities ....................... (93.270.444) (64.748.369) ___ (51.727.446)
Financing Activities
Net increase in demand deposits, NOW accounts,
and SaVINES aCCOUNTS. ...covriemiirreic et rtneice et 49,183,313 32,357,873 2,458,008
Net increase in certificates of deposit............ccoevveiivrvieiennnne, 42,628,275 16,221,350 14,178,184
Net increase in federal funds purchased, securities sold
under agreements to repurchase, and FHLB line of
CTEAIL oottt ettt ettt be s 9,422,199 3,383,548 1,157,368
Issuance of FHLB advances.............c.ooocceeeviieivniccineeeen 4,000,000 13,500,000 33,736,000
Repayment of FHLB advances .......... et (11,000,000) (7,242,858) (31,592,858)
Compensation associated with issuance of stock options ..... 18,746 42,301 21,739
Issuance of cOMMON StOCK ...o.vvvvuveeiiiiieiieiiecreciee e 19,193,277 769,941 302,800
Sale of treasury StOCK ..o ivvviiieei e e — — 1,923,601
Purchase of treasury stocK.......c.cccoevviieiiivnivnccneien, — — (54,900)
Cash in lieu of fractional shares on stock dividend............... — — (1.931)
Net Cash Provided By Financing Activities ............... 113,445,810 59.032.155 22,128,011
Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents....... 27,822,430 122,270 (23,465,872)
Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Year.................... 7,513,095 7,390,825 30.856.697
Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Year ....................... $ 35335525 § 7,513,095 3 7,390,825

See riotes to consolidated financial statements
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APPALACHIAN BANCSHARES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Appalachian Bancshares, Inc. (the
“Company”) (a Georgia corporation) and its wholly-owned subsidiary: Appalachian Community Bank (the “Bank™).
Another corporation still in existence, Appalachian Information Management, Inc. (“AIM”) was formed as a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Bank, but ceased operations in August, 2002. These consolidated financial statements do
not include any activities of AIM. The Company continues to keep AIM in existence, however, in order to retain the
name for potential future use. All significant intercompany transactions and balances have been eliminated in
consolidation. Unless otherwise indicated herein, the financial results of the Company refer to the Company and the
Bank on a consolidated basis. The Bank provides a full range of banking services to individual and corporate
customers in North Georgia and the surrounding areas.

The Company operates predominantly in the domestic commercial banking industry. The accounting and reporting
policies of the Company conform to generally accepted accounting principles in the United States and to general
practice within the banking industry. The following summarizes the most significant of these policies.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles in the United
States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and lhabilities at the date of the financial statements and the
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those
estimates.

The determination of the adequacy of the allowance for loan losses is based on estimates that are particularly
susceptible to significant changes in the economic environment and market conditions. In connection with the
determination of the estimated losses on loans, management obtains independent appraisals for significant collateral.
While management uses available information to recognize losses on loans, further reductions in the carrying amounts
of loans may be necessary based on changes in local economic conditions. In addition, regulatory agencies, as an
integral part of their examination process, periodically review the estimated losses on loans. Such agencies may require
the Bank to recognize additional losses based on their judgments about information available to them at the time of
their examination. Because of these factors, it is reasonably possible that the estimated losses on loans may change
materially in the near term. However, the amount of the change that is reasonably possible cannot be estimated.

Securities
Securities are classified as either held-to-maturity, available-for-sale or trading.

Held-to-maturity securities are securities for which management has the ability and intent to hold until maturity.
These securities are carried at amortized cost, adjusted for amortization of premiums and accretion of discount, to
the earlier of the maturity or call date.

Securities available-for-sale represent those securities intended to be held for an indefinite period of time, including
securities that management intends fo use as part of its asset/liability strategy, or that may be sold in response to
changes in interest rates, changes in prepayment risk, the need to increase regulatory capital, or other similar factors.
Securities available-for-sale are recorded at market value with unrealized gains and losses net of any tax effect,
added or deducted directly from shareholders’ equity.

Securities carried in trading accounts are carried at market value with unrealized gains and losses reflected in
income.

Realized and unrealized gains and losses are based on the specific identification method.
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APPALACHIAN BANCSHARES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies - Continued

The amortization of premiums and accretion of discounts are recognized in interest income using the interest method
over the life of the securities.

Declines in the fair value of individual held-to maturity and available-for-sale securities below their cost that are
other than temporary result in write-downs of the individual securities to their fair value. The related write-downs
are included in earnings as realized losses.

The Company had no trading or held-to-maturity securities as of December 31, 2005 and 2004.

Loans

Loans are stated at unpaid principal balances, less the allowance for loan losses.

Loan origination and commitment fees, net of certain origination costs, are considered insignificant and ar€
recognized immediately. Any significant net fees would be deferred and amortized as a yield adjustment over the

lives of the related loans using the interest method.

Allowance for Loan Losses

A loan is considered impaired, based on current information and events, if it is probable that the Bank will be unable
to collect the scheduled payments of principal or interest when due according to the contractual terms of the loan
agreement. Uncollateralized loans are measured for impairment based on the present value of expected future cash
flows discounted at the historical effective interest rate, while all collateral-dependent loans are measured for
impairment based on the fair value of the collateral. Smaller balance homogeneous loans, which consist of
residential mortgages and consumer loans, are evaluated collectively and reserves are established based on historical
loss experience.

The allowance for loan losses is established through charges to earnings in the form of a provision for loan losses.
Increases and decreases in the allowance due to changes in the measurement of the impaired loans are included in
the provision for loan losses. Loans continue to be classified as impaired unless they are brought fully current and
the collection of scheduled interest and principal is considered probable. When a loan or portion of a loan is
determined to be uncollectible, the portion deemed uncollectible is charged against the allowance and subsequent
recoveries, if any, are credited to the allowance.

Management determines the Bank’s loan loss allowance by first dividing the loan portfolio into two major categories:
(1)satisfactory and past due loans and (2)problem loans. Loan loss reserves are caiculated primarily based upon the
historical loss experience by segment for the satisfactory and past due portion of the portfolio. The Bank uses the prior
three year net loan charge off/recovery experience rate (net charge off percentage of total loans) to calculate the various
segments in the loan portfolio. This experience rate is applied to the satisfactory and past due loans by segment, in order
to determine the reserve amount for satisfactory and past due loans. Problem loans are considered individually for loans
over $100,000. For problem loans $100,000 and under, a specific reserve will be calculated based on classification on
the Bank’s watch list as follows: Grade 5 — Special Mention, 5% reserve; Grade 6 — Substandard, 15% reserve; Grade 7
— Doubtful, 50% reserve; and Grade 8 — Loss, 100% reserve. In management’s opinion, the Bank’s loan loss allowance
is considered adequate at December 31, 2005 and 2004.

Management’s periodic evaluation of the acequacy of the allowance is based on the Bank’s past loan loss experience,
known and inherent risks in the portfolio, adverse situations that may affect the borrowers’ ability to repay, estimated
value of any underlying collateral, and an analysis of current economic conditions. While management believes that it
has established the allowance in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and has taken into account the
views of its regulators and the current economic environment, there can be no assurance that in the future the Bank’s..
regulators or its economic environment will ot require further increases in the allowance.
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Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies - Continued

Income Recognition on Impaired and Nonaccrual Loans

Loans, including impaired loans, are generally classified as nonaccrual if they are past due as to maturity or payment
of principal or interest for a period of more than 90 days, unless such loans are well collateralized and in the process
of collection. If a loan or a portion of a loan is classified as doubtful or is partially charged off, the loan is generally
classified as nonaccrual. Loans that are on a current payment status or past due less than 90 days may also be
classified as nonaccrual if repayment in full of principal and/or interest is in doubt.

Loans may be returned to accrual status when all principal and interest amounts contractually due are reasonably
assured of repayment within an acceptable period of time, and there is a sustained period of repayment performance
by the borrower, in accordance with the contractual terms of interest and principal.

While a loan is classified as nonaccrual and the future collectibility of the recorded loan balance is doubtful,
collections of interest and principal are generally applied as a reduction to principal outstanding, except in the case
of loans with scheduled amortizations where the payment is generally applied to the oldest payment due. When the
future collectibility of the recorded loan balance is expected, interest income may be recognized on a cash basis. In
the case where a nonaccrual loan has been partially charged off, recognition of interest on a cash basis 1s limited to
that which would have been recognized on the recorded loan balance at the contractual interest rate. Receipts in
excess of that amount are recorded as recoveries to the allowance for loan losses until prior charge offs have been
fully recovered. Interest income recognized on a cash basis was immaterial for the years ended December 31, 2003,
2004 and 2003.

Premises and Equipment

Land is carried at cost. Other premises and equipment are carried at cost, net of accumulated depreciation.
Depreciation is provided generally by straight-line methods based principally on the estimated useful lives of the
respective assets. Maintenance and repairs are expensed as incurred, while major additions and improvements are
capitalized. Gains and losses on dispositions are inciuded in current operations.

Foreclosed Assets

Foreclosed assets includes both formally foreclosed property and in-substance foreclosed property. In-substance
foreclosed properties are those properties for which the Bank has taken physical possession, regardless of whether
formal foreclosure proceedings have taken place.

At the time of foreclosure, foreclosed assets are recorded at the lower of the carrying amount or fair value less cost
to sell, which becomes the property’s new basis. Any write-downs based on the asset’s fair value at date of
acquisition are charged to the allowance for loan losses. After foreclosure, these assets are carried at the lower of
their new cost basis or fair value less cost to sell.

Costs incurred in maintaining foreclosed assets and subsequent adjustments to the carrying amount of the property
are included in income (loss) on foreclosed assets. The carrying amount of foreclosed assets of December 31, 2005
and 2004 was $147,019 and $516,140, respectively.

Advertising Costs

The Company’s policy is to expense advertising costs as incurred. Advertising expense for the years ended
December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003 amounted to approximately $1,045,396, $782,000, and $516,000, respectively.
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Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies - Continued
Income Taxes

Income taxes are provided for the tax effects of the transactions reported in the consolidated financial statements and
consist of taxes currently due plus deferred taxes related primarily to differences between the basis of available-for-
sale securities, allowance for loan losses, estimated losses on foreclosed real estate, and accumulated depreciation
for financial and income tax reporting. The deferred tax assets and liabilities represent the future tax return
consequences of those differences, which will either be taxable or deductible when the assets and habilities are
recovered or settled. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are reflected at income tax rates applicable to the period in
which the deferred tax assets or liabilities are expected to be realized or settled. As changes in tax laws or rates are
enacted, deferred tax assets and liabilities are adjusted through the provision for income taxes. The Company files
consolidated income tax returns with its subsidiaries.

Stock-Based Compensation

At December 31, 2005, the Company had two stock-based employee compensation plans, which are more fully
described in Note 15. Prior to 2003, the Company accounted for these plans under the recognition and measurement
provisions of APB No. 25, Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees, and the related Interpretations. Accordingly,
no stock-based compensation cost was included in net earnings, as all options granted under the plans had an
exercise price equal to the market value of the underlying common stock on the date of grant. Effective January 1,
2003, the Company adopted the fair value recognition provisions of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards
(“SFAS™) No. 123, Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation, as provided by SFAS No. 148, Accounting for
Stock-Based Compensation — Transition and Disclosure. SFAS No. 148 allows for a prospective method of adoption
of SFAS No. 123, whereby the Company can prospectively account for the current expense of options granted
during 2003 and thereafter. The following table illustrates the effects on net income and earnings per share if the fair
value based method had been applied to all outstanding awards in each period.

Years Ended December 31,
2005 2004 2003

Net Income, As Reported ....ooevevevvivicviiiicieeirceie e $ 5,121,576 $ 4,047,014 § 3,086,580

Add: Stock-based compensation expense included

in net income, net of related taXxes........cccoevevvevecceni e, 18,745 42,301 21,739
Deduct: Total stock-based employee compensation

expense determined under the fair value method

for all awards, net of related taxes......cc.ccooevvieeeveiiiivecieeee. (52,714) (60,293) (63,350)

Pro Forma Net INCOME ... $___ 5,087,607 $ 4,029,022 § 3,044,969
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Years Ended December 31..

2005 2004 2003

Basic Earnings per Common Share

AS TEPOTEEd ..ttt $ 124§ 1.09 § 0.86

Pro FOIMA.......cccoooiiiiieiiiieeie e 1.23 1.08 0.84
Diluted Earnings per Common Share

AS TEPOTTEA ..iveitiiciiiie ettt et s a s 1.21 1.04 0.81

Pro FOrmMa. ..ot 1.20 1.04 0.80
Weighted average fair value of options granted

dUring the Year .....ccoovv i 4.89 3.79 4.20
Assumptions:

Average risk free iNterest rate ......ocoovverereeiereneecneenenne 4.15% 4.07% 4.95%

Average expected volatility ......cc..ocoeviiicrerrie e 15.80 21.30 22.53

Expected dividend yield......c.ocoocvevviiiiiinini i, 0.00 1.90 .90

Expected life oo 7.5 years 7.5 years 7.5 years

The effects of applying SFAS No. 123 as amended by SFAS No. 148 for providing pro forma disclosures are not
likely to be representative of the effects on reported earnings for future years, nor are the dividend estimates
representative of commitments on the part of the Company’s Board.

Emplovee Benefit Plan

The Company has a 401(k) profit-sharing plan covering substantially all of its employees. Eligible participating
employees may elect to contribute tax-deferred contributions, Company contributions to the plan are determined by
the board of directors, not to exceed the amount that can be deducted for federal income tax purposes. The
Company is presently matching up to 3% of the employee’s salary if the employee contributes at least 10%. The
match is prorated if the employee contributes less than 10%.

Intangibles

Intangibles consist of goodwill. The goodwill represents a premium paid on the purchase of assets and deposit
liabilities. The asset is stated at cost, net of accumulated amortization, which was provided using the straight-line
method over the estimated useful life of 20 years, until the Financial Accounting Standards Board (the “FASB™)
issued SFAS No. 142, Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets, in June 2001, The carrying amount of goodwill at
December 31, 2005 and 2004 is $1,991,891.

Goodwill is required to be tested annually for impairment, or whenever events occur that may indicate that the
recoverability of the carrying amount is not probable. In the event of an impairment, the amount by which the
carrying amount ¢xceeds the fair value would be charged to earnings. The Company performed its annual test of
impairment as of December 31, 2005 and determined that there was no impairment of the carrying value.
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Off-Balance Sheet Financial Instruments

In the ordinary course of business the Company has entered into off-balance sheet financial instruments consisting
of commitments to extend credit, commitments under credit card arrangements, commercial letters of credit and
standby letters of credit. Such financial instruments are recorded in the consolidated financial statements when they
are funded. See Note 19 for a further discussion of these financial instruments.

The Company also has available as a source of short-term financing the purchase of federal funds from other
commercial banks from an availabie line of up to $30 million, of which $22.8 million was available. In addition, the
Company has a line of credit with the Federal Home Loan Bank (the “FHLB”), of up to approximately $81,870,000,
of which approximately $43,000,000 is available and unused, subject to proper collateralization.

Recently Issued Accounting Standards

In December 2004, the FASB issued SFAS No. 123 (revised 2004), entitled Share-Based Payment (“SFAS No.
123R”) that will require compensation costs related to share-based payment transactions to be recognized in the
financial statements. This Statement eliminates the alternative to use Accounting Principles Board (“APB”) Opinion
No. 25’s Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees intrinsic value method of accounting that was provided in
Statement 123 as originally issued. Under APB Opinion No. 25, issuing stock options to employees generally
resulted in recognition of no compensation cost. This statement requires entities to recognize the cost of employee
services received in exchange for awards of equity instruments based on the grant-date fair value of those awards
(with limited exceptions). Recognition of that compensation cost helps users of financial statements to better
understand the economic transactions affecting an entity and to make better resource allocation decisions. Effective
January 1, 2003, the Company adopted the fair value recognition provisions of SFAS No. 123, Accounting for Stock-
Based Compensation, as provided by SFAS No. 148, Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation - Transition and
Disclosure. SFAS No. 148 allows for a modified prospective method of adoption of SFAS No. 123, whereby the
Company will be required to expense any unvested option. On April 21, 2005 the SEC amended Rule 4-01(a) of
Regulation S-X regarding the compliance date for SFAS 123(R) so the effective date is delayed to January 1, 2006.
The Company is currently evaluating the provisions of SFAS No. 123(R) and will adopt it on January 1, 2006.

Eamings per Common Share

Basic eamings per common share are computed by dividing earnings available to shareholders by the weighted
average number of common shares outstanding during the period. Diluted earnings per share reflect per share
amounts that would have resulted if dilutive potential common stock had been converted to common stock, as
prescribed by SFAS No. 128, Earnings per Share.

Years Ended December 31,

2005 2004 2003
Weighted average of common shares outstanding................. 4,123,403 3,724,095 3,609,728
Effect of dilutive Options .........ccooiiriveeiveinirieceis e 123,931 161,395 199.897
Weighted average of common shares outstanding
effected for dilution.............cooiii e 4,247,334 3,885,490 3.809.625

Comprehensive Income

Accounting principles generally require that recognized revenue, expenses, gains and losses be included in net
income. Although certain changes in assets and liabilities, such as unrealized gains and losses on available-for-sale
securities, are reported as a separate component of the equity sections of the statement of financial condition, such
items, along with net income, are components of comprehensive income.
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In the calculation of comprehensive income, certain reclassification adjustments are made to avoid double counting
items that are displayed as part of net income for a period that also had been displayed as part of other
comprehensive income in that period or earlier periods. The disclosure of the reclassification amounts and other
details of other comprehensive income (loss) are as follows:

Years Ended December 31,

2005 2004 2003

Unrealized gains (losses) on securities
Unrealized holding losses arising during period.............cov.... $  (1,282,799) § (100,579) $ (46,701)
Reclassification adjustments for losses

included in Nt INCOME ....c.covvieriieiiririeiiceer et — 22,633 16,978
Net unrealize€d [0SSES «.veivviiiiiiieeeieereecere et (1,282,799) (77,946) (29,723)
Income tax related to items of other

COMPreneNSiVe INCOME.....cvverririerereereciie et eens 436,151 26,501 10,107
Other comprehensive 10SS.....o.ecvervieiceiinneeecee s h) (846,648) $ (51.445) $ (19,616)

Statements of Cash Flows

The Company includes cash, due from banks, and short-term investments as cash equivalents in preparing the
consolidated statements of cash flows. The following is supplemental disclosure to the statements of cash flows for
the three years ended December 31, 2005.

Years Ended December 31,

2005 2004 2003

Cash paid during the year for interest.............coovvvrveveererninns, $ 10,030,260 $ 7,688,376 $ 8,562,106
Cash paid during the year for income taxes...........ccocvoeerrrnrene. 2,291,528 1,690,000 836,039
Non-cash Disclosures:
Loans transferred to foreclosed assets .....o.coovevverieveivioneinninn. 252,019 1,563,178 1,517,302
Net decrease in unrealized gains and

losses on securities available-for-sale ...........cccccooiienini. (1,282,799) (77,946) (29,723)
Proceeds from sales of foreclosed assets

financed through 10ans ..........cccoovvivrecrnrrrieciecs e, — 793,442 532,192
Tax benefit of the exercise of non-qualified options ................ 254,326 193,158 204,791
Increase in cash surrender value on life insurance.................... 309,083 241,034 109,173
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Note 2 - Restrictions On Cash and Due From Bank Accounts
The Company is required to maintain average reserve balances either in vault cash or on deposit with the Federal

Reserve Bank. At December 31, 2005 and 2004, the average amount of the required reserves was $626,000 and
$623,000, respectively.

Note 3 - Securities

The carrying amounts of securities as shown in the consolidated statements of financial condition of the Company
and their approximate fair values at December 31, 2005 and 2004 are presented below.

Gross Gross Estimated
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Fair
Cost Gains Losses Value
Securities Available-for-Sale
December 31, 2005:
U.S. Government and agency securities ........... $ 38,175,337 § — $ 817,790 $§ 37,357,547
State and municipal securities..........ccocovvrrneeee. 14,250,685 572,319 16,758 14,806,246
Mortgage-backed securities.......ccocersnrervesvasenses 16,120,789 1,656 319,518 15,802,930
Equity securities ..... 3,733,600 — 130,000 3.603.600
$ 72280411 § 573975 § 1,284,063 § 71,570,323
December 31, 2004:
U.S. Government and agency securitics............... $ 31,982,618 $ 45,348 § 283,784 $ 31,744,182
State and municipal securities..........c..ccoevriienne, 13,458,279 819,037 — 14,277,316
Mortgage-backed SECULItIES.......ovveeverrerreeririenans 14,934,714 45,047 52,937 14,926,824
Equity SECUTTHES ...c.eovviieniiicriiese e 3.706,400 — — 3,706,400

$ 64082011 § 909432 § 336,721 $ 64,654,722

At December 31, 2005, the Company’s available-for-sale securities reflected net unrealized losses of $710,088 that
resulted in a decrease in stockholders’ equity of $468,659 net of deferred taxes. At December 31, 2004, the Company’s
available-for-sale securities reflected net unrealized gains of $572,711, which resulted in an increase in stockholders’
equity of $377,989, net of deferred taxes.

54



Note 3 — Securities — Continued

The following tables show the Company’s securities’ gross unrealized losses and fair value, aggregated by security
category and length of time that individual securities have been in a continuous unrealized loss position, at
December 31, 2005 and 2004.

December 31, 2003
Less Than 12 Months 12 Months or More Total
Gross Gross Gross
Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized
Value Losses: Value Losses Value Losses -

Securities Available-for-Sale

U.S. Government and

agency securities........ $16,620,277 § 260,453 $20,737,270 $§ 557,337 $37,357,547 $ 817,790
State and municipal _

securities....ccccierererane 1,143,100 16,758 — — 1,143,100 16,758
Mortgage-backed A

securities........ wesrernenins 10,095,729 121,178 . 5,519,968 198,337 15,615,697 319,515

Equity securities ........... 720,000 130.000 _ — — - 720.000 130.000

December 31, 2004
Less Than 12 Months 12 Months or More Total
Gross Gross Gross
Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized
Value Losses Value Losses Value Losses

Securities Available-for-Sale

U.S. Government and

agency securities ......... $15,217,628 § 133,822 § 5,797,158 $§ 149,962 $21,014,786 § 283,784
Mortgage-backed
SCCULIHeS ...ovoviveranns 10.496.622 52.937 — — 10,496,622 52,937

$25714250 § 186,759 $ 5.797,158 § 149’962 $31,511.408 § 336,721

Management evaluates securities for other-than-temporary impairment at least on a quarterly basis, and more
frequently when economic or market concerns warrant such evaluation. Consideration is given to (1) the length of
time and the extent to which the fair value has been less than cost, (2) the financial condition and near-term
prospects of the issuer, and (3) the intent and ability of the Company to retain its investment in the issuer for a
period of time sufficient to allow for any anticipated recovery in fair value. The securities at a loss for 12 months or
more at December 31, 2005 and 2004 are in 20 and four securities, respectively, that are insured agencies of the
United States Government and the losses can be attributable to changes in interest rates. Because the declines in
value are not attributed to credit quality and the Company has the ability and intent to hold the securities until a
market price recovery or maturity, these investments are not considered other-than-temporarily impaired.
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Note 3 — Securities — Continued

The contractual maturities of securities available-for-sale at December 31, 2005 are shown as follows. Expected
maturities will differ from contractual maturities because borrowers may have the right to call or prepay obligations
with or without call or prepayment penalties.

Amortized Estimated
Cost Fair Value
Securities Available-for-Sale '
DUE 1N ONE VAT OT L88S....ui oo iieeieieeiir ittt sre e st $ 6,600,645 § 6,546,175
Due after one year through five years.............cocoveevivieecicccee e, 32,120,691 31,361,598
Due after five years through ten YEars ..........ccccoeeeeinininiiniiinece e 5,161,369 5,182,397
DUE I 1811 YEATS «..vivieticierii ettt st ese s ba e 24,664,106 24,876,553
EQUIEY SECUTITIES ..ottt ettt ere sttt ettt e e een e 3,733,600 3,603,600

3 72,280,411 $ 71,570,323

Mortgage-backed securities have been included in the maturity table based upon the guaranteed payoff date of each
security. '

Gross realized gains and losses on the sale of securities available-for-sale for each of the three years in the period
ended December 31, 2005, were as follows: '

2005 2004 2003
Gross realized gains................... et $ — 35 — 5 24,243
Gross realized 10SSES......oovivuiiiei et — 22,633 41,221

Equity securities include a restricted investment in Federal Home Loan Bank stock, which must be maintained to
secure the available line of credit. The amount of investment in this stock amounted to $2,697,600 and $2,670,400 at
December 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively. In addition to the restricted investment in Federal Home Loan Bank, the
Company also had an investment in Federal Home Loan Bank preferred stock with a carrying value of $720,000 and
$850,000 at December 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively. Equity securities also include an investment in Appalachian
Capital Trust I. The amount of investment in the trust amounted to $186,000 at December 31, 2005 and 2004.

The carrying value of investment securities pledged to secure public funds on deposit, securities sold under
agreements to repurchase, and for other purposes as required by law amounted to $50,687,921 and $44,354,611 at
December 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively.
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Note 4 - Loans

The Company grants loans to customers primarily in the North Georgia area. The major classifications of loans as of

December 31, 2005 and 2004 were as follows:

December 31,

2005 2004
Commercial, financial and agricultural.........cc.occoonnivccncneinnc 33,778,091 § 31,919,880
Real 51218 — CONSIUCHION ....ovviviivreie et aes e ete e et e srs s e sreeneeens 203,538,127 145,587,858
Real estate — MOTTZALZE ......oo.cerireiceiet ittt 193,704,321 173,954,978
COMBUINIET ......tvrsiectee vt cesneerreeetaeeebe e srbesessasserassssaeataessresssrassnesssaesassansesansaessns 21,051,214 20,956,568
OHRET L0AMS ...t st sre et e e nre e s e e bneass s s stbesaeaerbanesens 5,346,407 4932217

457,418,160 377,351,501
Allowance for 10an LOSSES ........covvvivcvveieiccce ettt (6,059,238) (4,348.618)
NEELOAMS .ottt ettt e ee e st b et e rtent st et se et aranseeaseatearesteetenssanen $ 451,358,922 § = 373,002,883

Total loans which the Company considered to be impaired at December 31, 2005 and 2004 were $3,543,578 and
$1,524,541, respectively. Of these loans, $1,020,030 and 31,524,541 were on nonaccrual status at December 31, 2005 and
2004, respectively. Allowances on the impaired loans at December 31, 2005 and 2004 were $1,422,509 and $546,016,
respectively. Impaired loans consisted primarily of commercial loans and real estate - mortgage loans as of December 31,
2005 and real estate — mortgage loans as of December 31, 2004. The average recorded investment in impaired loans for
the years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004 was approximately $3,811,169 and $1,353,000, respectively. No material
amount of interest income was recognized on nonaccrual loans for the years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004. For
other impaired loans we collected approximately $184,000 in interest. For the year ended December 31, 2005, the
difference between gross interest income that would have been recorded in such period if the nonaccruing loans had been
current in accordance with their original terms and the amount of interest income on those loans that was included in such
period’s net income was approximately $70,000. In the year ended December 31, 2004, the amount was approximately
$89,000.

The Company has no commitments to loan additional funds to the borrowers of nonaccrual loans.

At December 31, 2005 and 2004, the Company had loans past due 90 days or more and still aceruing interest of
$70,974 and $34,263, respectively.

Commercial and residential real estate loans pledged to secure Federal Home Loan Bank advances and letters of
credit amounted to $56,989,366 and $64,349,607 at December 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively.
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Note 5 - Allowance for Loan Losses

Changes in the allowance for loan losses for each of the three years ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003 are as
follows:

2005 2004 2003
Balance at beginning of Year ..........cococeveinvvencieneinniennnenns $ 4,348,618 $ 3,609,794 $ 3,237,898
Char@e-01T8 .....oovieriicre et e (559,795) (555,779) (1,207,788)
RECOVETIES ..ottt ettt 59,515 59.496 114,684
Net charge-offs........occooveiiiiiiii e (500,280) (496,283) (1,093,104)
Provision for 10an 10SSES........cocvecvrenvicnvervinne e 2.210.900 1,235,107 1.465.000
Balance at end 0f YEAr .......ccccoviiiirvie it S 6059238 § 4348618 § 3,609,794

Note 6 - Premises and Equipment

Premises and Equipment
Premises and equipment were as follows:

December 31,

2005 2004

LANA it bt r bttt ea et esa bt ereaen $ 3,873,396 $ 3,853,534
Buildings and improvVements .......o..ecoveirieniinree et et et sresae e 6,877,816 7,060,222
Furniture and eqUiPmIEnt.....c.oooveiiiie e ettt 4,130,007 4,083,395
Computer equipment and sOfWare ... 1,612,414 1,429,038
AUTOMIODIIES ..ot e e s 247,167 175,971
CONSUCTION N PIOZTESS -.ouveneveireenieteeririerreseseetestesnescnreseeseasressesesstossnenaseseins 4,772,531 272,637

21,513,331 16,874,797
Allowance for depreciation..........cccccviiriiinireic e (4,715.945) {3.886.157)

$ 16797386 $ 12,988,640

The provision for depreciation charged to occupancy and furniture and equipment expense for the years ended
December 31, 2003, 2004 and 2003 was $870,339, $866,108 and $784,918, respectively.

In 2004, we purchased approximately 6.3 acres of land in Ellijay directly across the street from the main office upon
which we are constructing a 39,000 square foot operations center. We have also constructed a maintenance building
and a community building at this location to use as a meeting area, as well as for our customers to use for various
community functions. The entire project is expected to cost approximately $6.3 million. Completion of this building
is expected in March 2006.

Leases

The Company has a number of operating lease agreements, involving land, buildings and equipment. These leases
are noncancellable and expire on various dates through the year 2028. The leases provide for renewal options and
generally require the Company to pay maintenance, insurance and property taxes. For the years ended December 31,
2005, 2004 and 2003, rental expense for operating leases was approximately $69,684, $90,248 and $81,500,
respectively.
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Note 6 - Premises and Equipment — Continued

Future minimum lease payments under noncancellable operating leases at December 31, 2005, are as follows: .

Years Ending December 31,

200G <. ettt bt h Rt et Re et et es e ka2 eb e Rt areers e e nseraeeasbant et 3 36,385

2007 ettt ettt et R bR e b et ekt beeaan e st areeba e 35,998

2008 e et ettt et ab e eh e £ s bt et s et et es e s e teeaeeresreene s 35,074

2009 <t h et s ettt st an et e e st et an e s eebe e beebeerens e ra 35,763

20T0 etttk e bt a e e et et abe ettt e s et eneabeebeseea 35,917

TRETEATET ...t bbbttt e ea et embese e an bbb e b $ 783.346
Total MINIMUM J8ASE PAYIMENTS .....corriririirieereereetraotascaieaeevaeaateesseaesamseascaasnsensaansesssessessasssssnssesaes 3 962,483
Note 7 - Deposits

The aggregate amounts of time deposits of $100,000 or more, including certificates of deposit of $100,000 or more
at December 31, 2005 and 2004 were $125,022,322 and $108,687,921, respectively. The Company had brokered
time deposits at December 31, 2005 and 2004 of $52,587,602 and $23,371,264, respectively. Demand deposits
reclassified as loan balances as of December 31, 2005 and 2004 amounted to $172,599 and $143,076, respectively.
The maturities of time certificates of deposit and other time deposits issued by the Company at December 31, 2005,
are as follows:

Years ending December 31,

2000 ..o e bbbt et $ 198,557,561
2007 e et et 36,202,647
2008 o e e et b e 2,353,790
2000 < et etk sk bbb 4,937,476
2OT0 et bt er s 1,603,756
ATET 2010 . et 969

S 243,656,199

Note 8 - Short-term Borrowings

Short-term borrowings at December 31, 2005 and 2004 consist of the following:

2005 2004
Federal funds purchased .........co..cooevvieeiiricisieeieee et $ 7,217,000 $ —
Securities sold under repurchase agreements........ovvvveeiveorvrecnenrenneneennnns 3,674,739 6,263,790
FHLB line of credit ......................................................................................... 14,000,000 9,205.750

$ 24891739 § 15,469,540

Securities sold under repurchase agreements, which are secured borrowings, generally mature within one to ninety
days from the transaction date. Securities sold under repurchase agreements are reflected at the amount of cash
received in connection with the transaction. The Company may be required to provide additional collateral based on
the fair value of the underlying securities. The Company monitors the falr value of the underlying securities on a
daily basis
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Note 9 — Federal Home Loan Bank Advances
At December 31, 2005 and 2004, the Company had advances from the Federal Home Loan Bank (FHLB) totaliﬁg
$24,950,000 and $31,950,000, respectively. These advances do not include the FHLB Daily Rate Credit included

in short-term borrowings in the previous note.

FHLB advances consist of the following at December 31:

2005 2004
Notes payable on line of credit at FHLB, with varying maturities from
September 2006 through December 20135, interest rate vary from .
3.26 % 10 6.77%, secured by resideritial mortgages ..o, $_ 24950,000 $ 31,950,000
Fixed Variable
Years ending December 31,
2006 ... ettt ettt $ 400,000 % 1,500,000
2007 oo O OO OSSOSO PRSPPSO 2,900,000 —
2008 oo e e eren e : 1,150,000 —
2009 <o et et e e — 5,000,000
2000 et e ea e — 2,000,000
TREICATIEI . ...ccoiviiieerce e — 12,000,000

3 4.450,000 3 20,500,000

Note 10 - Subordinated Long-term Capital Notes

On August 28, 2003, Appalachian Capital Trust I (“the Trust”), a Delaware statutory trust established by the
Company, received $6,000,000 principal amount of the Trust’s floating rate cumulative trust preferred securities (the
“Trust Preferred Securities”) in a trust preferred private placement. The proceeds of that transaction were then used
by the Trust to purchase an equal amount of floating rate-subordinated debentures (the “Subordinated Debentures”)
of the Company. The Company has fully and unconditionally guaranteed all obligations of the Trust on a
subordinated basis with respect to the Trust Preferred Securities. The Company accounts for the Trust Preferred
Securities as a long-term debt liability to the Trust in the amount of $6,186;000. Interest only is payable quarterly at
a variable per annum rate of interest, reset quarterly, equal to LIBOR plus 3.00% until the debt becomes due on
August §, 2033. The interest rate on the Trust Preferred liability at December 31, 2005 and 2004 was 7.25% and
5.16%, respectively. Subject to certain limitations, the Trust Preferred Securities qualify as Tier 1 capital.

The sole asset of the Trust is the Subordinated Debentures issued by the Company. Both the Trust Preferred

Securities and the Subordinated Debentures have approximately 30-year lives. However, both the Company and the
Trust have options to call their respective securities after five years, subject to regulatory capital requirements.
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Note 11 - Other Operating Expenses

* Other operating expenses consist of the following:

2005 2004 2003

Professional fEES .. ...ovvviiiiciiiiee et $ 1,274,662 $ 987,499 % 948,335
Advertising and marketing .........c.ccocvvenicvencennincicrneee 1,045,396 782,072 516,036
DAata PrOCESSINE «.ccveverreueeenreaereereieeeriererennareiaeneseeembesessenesieesones 653,283 536,713 569,915
Director and committee fees.......ccooovvverviiiiiierei e 531,686 426,505 314,500
Stationery and SUPPLES......cccccveircrerrenirrireccrecinreeeiens 321,283 367,507 337,712
OHRET .o ceie ettt e e e 1,756,193 1,899.450 1,787,758

Total other operating eXpPenSseS..........ccvvevevirrveerernseeseenneceree § 5582503 § 4999746 $§ 4,474,256

Note 12 - Income Taxes

The components of income tax expense for the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003 are as follows:

2005 2004 2003
Current
FeAeral. ..ot eer e e $ 2,906,000 $ 1,717,676 % 1,150,739
AL ..ttt et ettt e r e b e eret e e e sreaens e 401,000 189,656 122,576
Deferred
Federal.. ..ottt n et (737,827) (18,000) (19,000)
AL ettt ettt v ae et e (67.000) (4,000) (1,000)

§ 2502173 $ 1885332 § 1253315

The principal reasons for the difference in the effective tax rate and the federal statutory rate are as follows for the
years ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003.

2008 2004 2003

Statutory federal InCOME taX Tate.....ccceoeevirericiiieereeecesereennene 34.0% 34.0% 34.0%
Effect on rate of:

Tax-exempt SECUTTHES ....oevveereeire e 2.9 3.7) (5.4)

Tax-exempt IOANS .......ceveriieiiiire et eve s 0.1) (0.2) (1.0)

Interest expense disallowance ..........c.ccocvvinninencneinenen 0.3 0.3 0.5

State income tax, net of federal tax..........coooeriiiiiievenne. 29 2.1 1.9

OLNET ..ottt st b eaas (1.4) 0.7 (1.1)
Effective INCOME taX TALC......ccoveeireii e e ecae e srescnnie e 32.8% 31.8% 28.9%
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Note 12 - Income Taxes — Continued

The tax effects of each type of income and expense item that gave rise to deferred taxes are:

2005 2004
Net unrealized (gains) losses on securities available-for-sale $ 241,430 $ (194,722)
Depreciation.........cccoveereveencernnennn, . (520,566) (595,580)
Allowance for loan losses 1,846,613 1,223,341
Deferred cOMpPenSation ..........c.coeerveirireenieneiersrecenenreaneas 207,276 103,947
OHET .ottt ettt bttt bttt es ettt ere et anas 504 (2,708)
Net deferred taX ASSELS ....vvviuicviiiee i et eter et eenns 3 1,775,257 § 534,278

Note 13 - Commitments and Contingencies

In the normal course of business, the Bank offers a variety of financial products to its customers to aid them in
meeting their requirements for liquidity, credit enhancement, and interest rate protection. Generally accepted
accounting principles recognize these transactions as contingent liabilities and, accordingly, they are not reflected in
the Consolidated Financial Statements. Commitments to extend credit, credit card arrangements, commercial letters
of credit, and standby letters of credit all include exposure to some credit loss in the event of nonperformance of the
customer. The Bank uses the same credit policies and underwriting procedures for making off-balance sheet credit
commitments and financial guarantees as it does for on-balance sheet extensions of credit. Because these
instruments have fixed maturity dates, and because many of them expire without being drawn upon, they do not
generally present any significant liquidity risk to the Bank. Management conducts regular reviews of these
instruments on an individual customer basis, and the results are considered in assessing the adequacy of the Bank’s
allowance for loan losses. Management does not anticipate any material losses as a result of these commitments.

Following is a discussion of these commitments:

Standby Letters of Credit: These agreernents are used by the Bank’s customers as a means of improving their credit
standings in their dealings with others. Under these agreements, the Bank agrees to honor certain financial
commitments in the event that its customers are unable to do so. The amount of credit risk involved in issuing letters
of credit in the event of nonperformance by the other party is the contract amount. As of December 31, 2005 and
2004, the Bank has issued standby letters of credit of approximately $3,491,000 and $1,403,000. When significant,
we record a liability for the estimated fair value of standby letters of credit based on the fees charged.

Loan Commitments: As of December 31, 2005 and 2004, the Bank had commitments outstanding to extend credit
totaling approximately $73,363,000 and $59,005,000, respectively. These commitments generally require the
customers to maintain certain credit standards. Management does not anticipate any material losses as a result of
these commitments.

Litigation: The Bank is party to litigation and claims arising in the normal course of business. Management believes
that the liabilities, if any, arising from such litigation and claims are not material to the consolidated financial
statements.

Note 14 - Concentrations of Credit

Substantially all of the Bank’s loans, commitments and standby letters of credit have been granted to customers in
the Bank’s market area. The concentrations of credit by type of loan are set forth in Note 4 and includes a
concentration on loans secured by real estate. The commitments to extend credit relate primarily to unused real
estate draw lines. Commercial and standby letters of credit were granted primarily to commercial borrowers.
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Note 15 - Stock Option Plans

The Company has adopted a 1997 Employee Stock Incentive Plan and a 1997 Directors’ Non-qualified Stock
Option Plan and a 2003 Stock Option Plan under which it has granted statutory and nonstatutory stock options to
certain directors and employees. The options granted provide for these directors and employees the opportunity to
purchase shares of the Company’s $0.01 par value common stock at the market value at the dates of grant. The
options granted may be exercised within ten years from the date of grant subject to vesting requirements.

The following sets forth certain information regarding stock options for the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004
and 2003.

2005 2004 2003

Weighted Weighted Weighted

Average Average Average

Exercise Exercise Exercise

Shares Price Shares Price Shares Price
Outstanding at beginning of year...........c.cce.oee. 360,300 § 6.07 433,140 § 565 502810 $§ 511
GIanted .......ocoovvveieecciiereie e 52,000 16.16 5,000 15.00 18,000 13.92
EXErCisSed ..vocvovvimnieriieiriiiee it e (86,525) 3.80 (72,340) 3.68  (82,170) 3.69
Forfeited .....ccooovvveoiiiiiec e (31.800) 15.10 (5,500) 12.73 (5.500) 13.64
Outstanding at end-of year..........ccocevceinnnnnnn. 293,975 7.55 _360,30 6.07 _433,140 5.65
Exercisable at end of year.........coocvenieiieccnneeee 243,675 594 325,660 529 _362.780 4.57
Weighted average fair value
of options granted..........ccocoviviiiiiniicicn § 489 S 379 S 420

Information pertaining to options outstanding at December 31, 2003 is as follows:

Options Qutstanding Options Exercisable
Weighted Weighted Weighted
Number of  Average Average Number of  Average
Options Remaining  Exercise Options Exercise
Outstanding Life Price Exercisable Price
Options with an Exercise Price Range
of $3.6410 85.45 v 199,075 222§ 4.35 199,075 § 4.35
Options with an Exercise Price \
of $12.7310 $16.55 .o 94,900 7.30 14.25 44.600 13.03
Total Options Outstanding.........ccoecevreveeene 293,975 3.86 7.55 243,675 5.94
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Note 16 - Regulatory Matters

The board of directors of any state-chartered bank in Georgia may declare and pay cash dividends on its outstanding
capital stock without any request for approval of the Bank’s regulatory agency if the following conditions are met:

1. Total classified assets at the most recent examination of the Bank do not exceed 80% of equity capital.

2. The aggregate amount of dividends declared in the calendar year does not exceed 50% of the prior year’s net
income.

3. The ratio of equity capital to adjusted assets shall not be less than 6%.

As of December 31, 2003, the Bank could declare dividends of approximately $3,013,000 without regulatory
consent, subject to the Bank’s compliance with regulatory capital restrictions. It is anticipated that any such
dividends would be used for the payment of long-term debt service.

The Company and the Bank are subiect to various regulatory capital requirements administered by the federal
banking agencies. Failure to meet minimum capital requirements can initiate certain mandatory, and possibly
additional discretionary, actions by regulators that, if undertaken, could have a direct material effect on the
Company and the Bank and the consolidated financial statements. Under capital adequacy guidelines and the
regulatory framework from prompt corrective action, the Company and the Bank must meet specific capital
guidelines that involve quantitative measures of their assets, liabilities, and certain off-balance sheet items as
calculated under regulatory accounting practices. The Bank’s capital amounts and classification are also subject to
qualitative judgments by the regulators about components, risk weightings, and other factors.

Quantitative measures established by regulation to ensure capital adequacy require the Company and the Bank to
maintain minimum amounts and ratios (set forth in the table below) of total and Tier 1 Capital (as defined in the
regulations) to risk weighted assets (as defined), and of Tier 1 Capital (as defined) to average assets (as defined).
Management believes, as of December 31, 2005, that the Company and the Bank met all capital adequacy
requirements to which they are subject.

As of December 31, 2005, the most recent notification from the applicable regulatory agencies categorized the Bank
as well capitalized under the regulatory framework for prompt corrective action. To become well capitalized the
Company the Bank must maintain minimum Total Capital, Tier 1 Capital and Tier 1 Leverage ratios as set forth in
the following table.
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Note 16 - Regulatory Matters — Continued

The Company’s and Bank’s actual capital amounts and ratios are also presented in the table.

To Be Well Capitalized
Under Prompt
Corrective Action
Actual Adequacy Purposes Provisions
Amount Ratio Amount Ratio Amount Ratio
(Dollars in thousands)
As of December 31, 2005:
Total Capital
Consolidated .............cccccooevrvvivnenne $ 70358 14.52% $ 38,766 8.00% 3 N/A N/A
Appalachian Community Bank........ 52,819 1091 38,744 8.00 48,430 10.00%
Tier 1 Capital
Consolidated ...................ccooeeii . 64,301 13.27 19,383 4.00 N/A N/A
Appalachian Community Bank........ 46,765 9.66 19,372 4.00 29,058 6.00
Tier 1 Leverage
Consolidated .................cccoovvvnien 64,301 11.35 22,652 4.00 N/A N/A
Appalachian Community Bank........ 46,765 8.26 22,637 4.00 28,296 5.00
As of December 31, 2004:
Total Capital
Consolidated..........cooeevevievvveieiieerenne. $ 44,062 11.45% $ 30,788 8.00% $ N/A N/A
Appalachian Community Bank ........... 41,586  10.82 30,752 8.00 38,440  10.00%
Tier 1 Capital
Consolidated........cccoooceviinenvniiieee 39,713 10.32 15,394 4.00 N/A N/A
Appalachian Community Bank ........... 37,237 9.69 15,376 4.00 23,064 6.00
Tier 1 Leverage
Consolidated......c..ccoovvevvmrirceieeenn. 39,713 8.53 18,618 4.00 N/A N/A
Appalachian Community Bank ........... 37,237 8.01 18,597 4.00 23,246 5.00

Note 17 - Employee Benefit Plan

The Company adopted a defined contribution plan covering substantially all employees; that is qualified under
Section 401(k) of the Internal Revenue Code. Under the provisions of the plan, eligible participating employees may
elect to contribute up to the maximum amount of tax deferred contribution allowed by the Internal Revenue Code.
Employer and employee contributions may be made in the form of cash or Company stock. The Company’s
contribution to the plan is determined by its board of directors. The Company made discretionary cash contributions
to the plan of approximately $472,200 in 2005, $313,200 in 2004 and $300,200 in 2003.

The Company has various deferred compensation plans providing for death and retirement benefits for certain
officers and directors. Expenses recognized for the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004, and 2003 related to these
plans were $277,426, $97,653 and $33,331, respectively. The estimated amounts to be paid under the compensation
plan have been partially provided for through the purchase of life insurance policies on certain officers and directors.
Accrued deferred compensation of $575,667, and $288,741 is included in other liabilities as of December 31, 2005
and 2004, respectively. Cash surrender values of $8,142,533 and $7,833,450 on the insurance policies is included in
other assets at December 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively.
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Note 18 - Related Party Transactions

Loans: Certain directors, executive officers and principal shareholders, including their immediate families and
associates were loan customers of the Bank during 2005 and 2004. Such loans are made in the ordinary course of
business at normal credit terms, including interest rates and collateral and do not represent more than a normal risk
of collection. A summary of activity and amounts outstanding are as follows:

2005 2004
Balance at beginning of YEar .....c.ccoceoviiviiii i 11,237,734 $ 7,988,488
INEW JOANS L...eoiieieii ittt ettt r ettt e s et e e e e se e tteeaaaeenens 9,738,361 11,237,794
REPAYIMENLS ...ttt ettt e e ta s e s aneste e sbeateesaeertaaanes (6,595,460) (5,754,205)
Participations SOId........ooeciiiiiiiic s 1,103,176 (2,234,343)
Change in related Parties ..........cocoviiveieirinrieee et ane (4,267.156) —
Balance at end 0f YEar ........ocooi it e $ 11,216,655 §  11,237.734

Deposits: Deposits held from related parties were $2,075,324 and $3,117,444 at December 31, 2005 and 2004,
respectively.

Construction contracts: During 2005 and 2004, the Bank used as a construction contractor, a company owned by
one of the directors of the Company. Amounts paid to this construction contractor in 2005 amounted to $469,780,
and amounts paid in 2004 amounted to $309,791.

Purchases: The Bank purchases telecommunication, internet, cable and advertising services from a local
telecommunications company. One of the directors of the Company and the Bank, serves as executive vice
president and chief operations officer of this telecommunications company. Amounts paid to the Company in 2005
and 2004 amounted to $231,728 and $196,000, respectively.

Note 19 - Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair value of each class of financial instruments
for which it is practicable to estimate that value:

Cash and Short-term Investments: For those short-term instruments, the carrying amount is a reasonable estimate of
fair value.

Securities: For securities and marketable equity securities held for investment purposes, fair values are based on
quoted market prices or dealer quotes. If a quoted market price is not available, fair value is estimated using quoted
market prices for similar securities.

Loans: For certain homogeneous categories of loans, such as some residential mortgages, credit card receivables,
and other consumer loans, fair value is estimated using the quoted market prices for securities backed by similar
loans, adjusted for differences in loan characteristics. The fair value of other types of loans is estimated by
discounting the future cash flows using the current rates at which similar loans would be made to borrowers with
similar credit ratings and for the same remaining maturities.

Accrued Interest Receivable: The carrying amount of accrued interest receivable approximates its fair value.

Deposits: The fair value of demand deposits, savings accounts, and certain money market deposits is the amount
payable on demand at the reporting date. The fair value of fixed-maturity certificates of deposit is estimated using
the rates currently offered for deposits of similar remaining maturities.

66




Note 19 - Fair Value of Financial Instruments — Continued

Accrued Interest Payable: The carrying amount of accrued interest payable approximates its fair value.

Short-term Borrowings: The fair value of short-term borrowings, including securities sold under agreements to
repurchase, is estimated to be approximately the same as the carrying amount.

FHLB Advances and Subordinated Debt: Rates currently available to the Company for debt with similar terms and
remaining maturities are used to estimate fair value of existing debt.

Commitments to Extend Credit, Letters of Credit, and Financial Guarantees Written: The fair value of commitments
and letters of credit is estimated to be approximately the fees charged for these arrangements.

The estimated fair values of the Company’s financial instruments as of December 31, 2005 and 2004 are as follows:

2005 2004
Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
Amount Value Amount Value
(In thousands)
Financial Assets
Cash and short-term investments .........cccococevevviieceaviernaeenns $ 35336 $ 35336 % 7513 8 . 7,513
SECUTIEIES . vevveveeteiee et sre et ere et e st saa e sras e eneeneas 71,570 71,570 64,655 64,655
LLOAMIS 1ottt e et eans 451,359 449,416 373,003 372,767
Accrued interest receivable ..o 4.751 4.751 2.902 2,902
Total Financial Assets 563,016 § 561,073 § 448073 § 447837
Financial Liabilities
DEPOSIES....veevereere ettt ettt et $473,310 $ 473,276 § 381,498 § 367,583
Short-term DOTTOWINES ...cvevvereriieircecce e 24,892 24,892 15,470 15,470
Accrued interest payable ..o, 728 728 540 540
FHLB Qdvances.......cccooeeveiiiini et sne s 31.136 31,157 38,136 38.048
Tetal Financial Liabilities $ 530,066 § 530,053 § 435644 § 421,641
Unrecognized financial instruments
Commitments to extend credit .........ocoveeiviiniecccin e, $ 73,363 $ 448 § 39,005 $ 236
Standby letters of credit ......oooooveeeiii i, 3491 21 1.403 6
Total Unrecognized Financial
INSErUments ..........ococoviviereeniercrieiiecn e R S 76854 § 469 § 60,408 § 242

Note 20 — Stock Offering

On September 23, 2005, the Company filed a Registration Statement on Form S-2 to register up to 1,265,000 shares
of its common stock for sale in a public offering. In November 2005, the Company completed the sale of 1,265,000
shares of its common stock receiving net proceeds of approximately $18.4 million. The Company intends to use the
proceeds of the offering for general corporate purposes.
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Note 21 - Condensed Parent Information
Statements of Financial Condition

December 31,

2005 2004
Assets
Cash and due from banks........... ettt ettt b ettt b b et e e ateen et etee $ 17,291,201 § 2,150,693
Investment in SUDSIAIATIES ........coocvivivieie ettt etr e see s 48,287,718 39,607,384
Securities available-for-sale ..........coccoiovviiiiiiiiiiieer e 186,000 186,000
LB ASSELS «uoviiieiieiinrietieertear et e carreateeetaetereersaesaarateses eaasbasesaansensseessaesnnnnaasssannsnn 623.641 498.721
TOAL ASSELS ..ooviiiviiiiiieiei et bbbt aea et ea aes § 66,388,560 § 42442798
Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity '
Subordinated {ong-term capital NOES . ....coooovieiireiiier e S 6,186,000 $ 6,186,000
Other HabiliTleS.....cviiircecee e ettt e 377,961 173,476
Total Liabilities ...............ccoocoiiriini e, 6.563.961 6,359,476
Total Shareholders’ EQUIty...........ccooooiiniiiiici e 59,824,599 36,083,322

Total Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity ...............ccoccoeioiiniiinnn $_ 66388560 § 42.442,798

Statements of Income

Years ended December 31,

2005 2004 2003
Income
TIEETESE .. .oovovre e eeee e s eiese et e et es et s es s aas st enesenr s et esasenasans $ — — 3 —
Dividends from subsidianies...........cccoccorveciiiiniininiiecieens — — —
Other INCOME ...ttt et 11,227 9,638 —
11,227 9,638 —
Expenses
INTETESE .ottt enea 404,450 283,600 201,454
OUhEr EXPEISES c..veiiirieiiieicreitieeie e st saeeetresstreseiesnreanraenereases 1,016,182 755,571 729,245
1.420.632 1,039.171 930.699
Loss before income taxes and equity in undistributed
earnings of SUBSIAIATIES ...oovcviveriiiiiiicererc e, (1,409,405) (1,029,533) {(930,699)
Income tax benefits........ccovvrviiiiiiiricie e 504,000 365.835 378.685
Loss before equity in undistributed earnings
Of SUBSIAIAIIES ... .cvvvcieiccieec et et (905,405) {663,698) (552,014)
Equity in undistributed earnings of subsidiaries...................... 6,026,981 4,710,712 3.638,594
Net INCOME ...t et e §_ 5121,576 § 4,047,014 § 3,086,580
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Note 22 - Condensed Parent Information - Continued

Statements of Cash Flow

Years ended December 31,

2005 2004 2003
Operating Activities
NEt INCOME ..ottt e $ 5,121,576 § 4,047,014 § 3,086,580
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash
provided by (used in) operating activities............coooceevrnn.
Equity in undistributed income of subsidiaries................... (6,026,981) (4,710,712) (3,638,594)
Increase (decrease) in accrued interest payable ................. 31,075 (36,938) 85,200
OLRET ..ottt ettt b 302,815 892.869 (483.620)
Net Cash Used In Operating Activities..................... (5§71.515) 192,233 (950.434)
Investing Activities
Investment in preferred securities trust .......c.ocoveevvevevercecnn — — (186,000}
Capital injection in subsidiaries...........cccoeeiviveivrrerecvenrennne. (3.500,000) — (1,500.000)
Net Cash Used In Investing Activities......................... (3.500.000) — (1.686,000)
Financing Activities
Proceeds from issuance of subordinated long-term
CAPIAl NOLES ....eoviiiiiecieee ettt —_ — 6,186,000
Repayment of long-term debt...........cccoeveiivecninivniiie e, — — (4,600,000)
Proceeds from issuance of common StocK..........cceeevvvveenernnee 19,193,277 769,941 302,800
Purchases of treasury stock .......occoirivieiinnn — — (54,900)
Compensation associated with issuance of options............... 18,746 42,301 21,739
Proceeds from issuance of treasury stock.........ccoevvrrinenrann. — — 1,923,601
Cash paid in lieu of fractional shares on stock dividend ....... — — (1.93D)
Net Cash Provided By Financing Activities ............... 19.212.023 812,242 3.777.309
Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents...... 15,140,508 1,004,475 1,140,875
Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Year .............. 2,150,693 1,146,218 5.343
Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Year ......................... $ 17,291,201 § 2,150,693 $ 1,146,218
Cash paid during the year for:
| § 1) (T OO PV USTOPPU h 373,375 § 320,538 $ 116,254
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Note 23 - Quarterly Results of Operations (Unaudited)

Selected quarterly results of operations for the four quarters of each of the years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004
are as follows:

First Second Third Fourth
Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter

2005:
Total interest income......................cooovvviieeeveneninnn, h 7,233 $ 8,114 § 9,267 § 10,135
Total interest expense . 2,332 2,684 3,209 3,653
Provision for loan losses. . rereresveeesanerane 437 492 617 665
Net interest income after - rereesnsrenesanes

provision for loan losses.... 4,464 4,938 5,441 5,817
Total noninterest iINCOME. ... .cnrerneccasnessrnacacsassssencs 746 783 834 937
Total noninferest eXPense......ceiescrirsecsinemnissnesens 3,833 3.870 4,191 4,442
Income tax expense... . reresrseseresessesanans 412 591 694 806
Net income..... eevertrerenesesstevane verersssenereres $ 965 $ 1,260 1,390 § 1,506
Per Common Share:

Basicearnings.................coooiiiiiiien $ 0.26 $ 033 8§ 0.36 3 0.30

Diluted earnings ............coeeeivveeioiviceninaenieee s 0.25 0.32 0.35 0.30
2004: ‘
Total interest INCOME .......c..ovevecveieieceeeeeereeeeese e $ 6,026 $ 6,260 $ 6,536 $ 6,914
Total INtErest EXPENSE ...vvvvvevireeririerreeiiensirtriere e 1,739 1,793 1,927 2,099
Provision for 10an loSSES.........coocvvreveieeiiieieirieveeenn 360 291 274 310
Net interest income after

provision for 10an 10SSes........c.cceciviniiirnnieincee 3,927 4,176 4,335 4,505
Securities gains (10SSE8).......civoveveeiriies i eveeieereeecveeeanas — (23) — —
Total NONINtErest INCOME ...cc..ovivvririiriiieiiiee e seee e 675 706 726 745
Total NONINIErest EXPENSE ...ooovvrviererienreriireneeie e eene s 3,279 3,437 3,508 3,616
INCOME taX EXPENSE ...oovvvenireir e eere e sicn e eae s 427 442 485 531
INEE INCOMIE .o et et e e eeer et s e enenreren $ 896 $ 980 $ 1,068 $ 1,103
Per Common Share:

Basic SATMINES «...cvvveeeeeerieieeieteieresiae s $ 0.24 % 026 $ 0.29 3 0.30

Diluted earnings ...........coeoveevvireeiiiieeseeree e ee v 0.23 0.25 0.27 0.29
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ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND
FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

None.
ITEM 9A, CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

Our Chief Executive Officer and Principal Financial Officer have evaluated our disclosure controls and
procedures as of the end of the fiscal year covered by this Report and have concluded that our disclosure controls
and procedures are effective. During the fourth quarter of 2005, there were no changes in our internal control over
financial reporting that have materially affected, or that are reasonably likely to materially affect, the our internal
control over financial reporting.

ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION

None.

PART 111

ITEM 10. DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE REGISTRANT

The information appearing under the headings “Election of Directors,” “Executive Officers,” “Section
16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance™ and “Corporate Governance and Board Matters” in the Proxy
Statement (the “2006 Proxy Statement™) relating to our 2006 Annual Meeting of Shareholders is incorporated herein
by reference. We have adopted a code of ethics that applies to our Chief Executive Officer and senior financial
officers, a copy of which is filed as Exhibit 14 to our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended
December 31, 2003.
ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The information appearing under the heading “Compensation of Executive Officers and Directors” in the
2006 Proxy Statement is incorporated herein by reference.

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND
RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

The information appearing under the heading “Ownership of Common Stock” in the 2006 Proxy Statement
is incorporated herein by reference.

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS

The information appearing under the caption “Related Party Transactions” in the 2006 Proxy Statement is
incorporated herein by reference.

ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES

The information appearing under the caption “Independent Public Accountants” in the 2006 Proxy
Statement is incorporated herein by reference.
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PART IV
ITEM 15. EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES

(a) 1. Financial Statements.

The following consolidated financial statements are located in Item 8 of this Report:

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

Consolidated Statements of Financial Condition as of December 31, 2005 and 2004

Consolidated Statements of Income for the Years Ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003

Consolidated Statements of Shareholders’ Equity for the Years Ended December 31, 2005, 2004
and 2003

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the Years Ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Quarterly Results (Unaudited)

2. Financial Statement Schedules.

Schedules to the consolidated financial statements are omitted, as the required information is not
applicable.

3. Exhibits.
The following exhibits are filed or incorporated by reference as part of this Report:

Exhibit Number Description of Exhibit

31 Articles of Incorporation of the Company, as Restated
(included as Exhibit 3.1 to the Company’s Quarterly Report
on Form 10-Q, dated August 15, 2003 and incorporated
herein by reference).

32 Bylaws of the Company, as Restated (included as Exhibit 3.2
to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, dated
August 15, 2003 and incorporated herein by reference).

4.1 See Exhibits 3.1 and 3.2 for provisions in the Company’s
Articles of Incorporation and Bylaws defining the rights of
holders of the common stock

42 Form of Certificate of Common Stock (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 4.1 of the Company’s Registration
Statement on Form S-2, File No. 333-127898).

10.1 1997 Directors’ Non-Qualified Stock Option Plan (included
as Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Annual Report on Form
10-KSB for the fiscal year ended December 31, 1996 and
incorporated herein by reference). *

10.2 1997 Employee Incentive Stock Incentive Plan (included as
Exhibit 10.2 to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-
KSB for the fiscal year ended December 31, 1996 and
incorporated herein by reference).*
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Exhibit Number

Description of Exhibit

10.3

10.4

10.5

10.6

10.7

10.8

10.9

10.10

10.11

14

Adoption Agreement for the Appalachian Bancshares, Inc.
Employees” Savings & Profit Sharing Plan Basic Plan
Document and related documents (filed as Exhibit 10.2 to the
Plan’s Annual Report on Form 11-K for the fiscal year ended
December 31, 2001 and incorporated herein by reference).

Pentegra Services, Inc. Employees’ Savings & Profit Sharing
Plan Basic Plan Document and related documents (filed as
Exhibit 10.2 to the Plan’s Annual Report on Form 11-K for
the fiscal year ended December 31, 2001 and incorporated
herein by reference).

Form of Deferred Fee Agreement between Gilmer County
Bank and certain directors and executive officers, with
addendum (filed as Exhibit 10.6 to the Company’s Quarterly
Report on Form 10-QSB for the period ended June 30, 1997
and incorporated herein by reference).

Form of Data Processing Agreement by and between
Appalachian Community Bank and Fiserv Solutions, Inc.,
effective as of July 26, 2002 (filed as Exhibit 10.3 to the
Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period
ended September 30, 2003 and incorporated herein by
reference).

2003 Stock Option Plan (included as Exhibit 10.1 to the
Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period
ended June 30, 2003 and incorporated herein by reference).*

Form of Stock Option Agreement (included as Exhibit 10.2
to the Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the
quarter ended June 30, 2003 and incorporated herein by
reference).*

Form of Change in Control Agreement for Named Executive
Officers (and description of benefits for each Named
Executive Officer) (included as Exhibit 10.1 to the
Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter
ended June 30, 2004 and incorporated herein by reference).*

Form of Salary Continuation Agreement for Named
Executive Officers (and description of benefits for each
Named Executive Officer) (included as Exhibit 10.2 to the
Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter
ended June 30, 2004 and incorporated herein by reference).*

Form of Salary Continuation Agreement for the Directors of
Appalachian Community Bank (and description of benefits
for each of the Directors) (included as Exhibit 10.3 to the
Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter
ended June 30, 2004 and incorporated herein by reference).*

Code of Ethics for CEO and Senior Financial Officers
(included as Exhibit 14 to the Company’s Annual Report on
Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2003 and
incorporated herein by reference).

73



Exhibit Number

Description of Exhibit

21

23.1

232

31.1

31.2

32

Subsidiaries of the Registrant
Consent of Mauldin & Jenkins, LLC
Consent of Schauer, Taylor, Cox, Vise & Morgan, P.C.

Certification of Chief Executive Officer Pursuant to Section
302 of Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002,

Certification of Principal Financial Officer Pursuant to
Section 302 of Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

Certifications Pursuant to Section 906 of Sarbanes-Oxley Act
of 2002.

* The referenced exhibit is a compensatory contract, plan or arrangement.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant
has duly caused this Report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized, on the 30th day
of March 2006.

APPALACHIAN BANCSHARES, INC.

By: /s/ Tracy R. Newton
Tracy R. Newton
Chief Executive Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by
the following persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

/s/ Tracy R. Newton Date: March 30, 2006
Tracy R. Newton, Chief Executive
Officer and Director (principal executive
officer)

/s/ Joseph T. Moss, Jr. Date: March 30, 2006
Joseph T. Moss, Jr., President and Chief
Operating Officer (principal accounting and
financial officer)

/s/ Alan S. Dover Date: March 30, 2006
Alan S. Dover, Director

/s/ Charles A. Edmondson Date: March 30, 2006
Charles A. Edmondson, Director

/s/ Roger E. Futch Date: March 30, 2006
Roger E. Futch, Director

/s/ Joseph C. Hensley Date: March 30, 2006
Joseph C. Hensley, Director

/s/ Frank E. Jones Date: March 30, 2006
Frank E. Jones, Director

/s/ J. Ronald Knight Date: March 30, 2006
J. Ronald Knight, Chairman and Director

/s/ Kenneth D. Warren Date: March 30, 2006
Kenneth D. Warren, Director
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EXHIBIT INDEX

The following exhibits are filed as part of this report (in addition to those exhibits listed in Item 15 which
are filed as a part of this report and incorporated by reference):

Exhibit Number Description of Exhibit
21 Subsidiaries of the Registrant
231 Consent of Mauldin & Jenkins, L1L.C
23.2 Consent of Schaver, Taylor, Cox, Vise & Morgan, P.C.
311 Certification of Chief Executive Officer Pursuant to Section

302 of Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

31.2 Certification of Principal Financial Officer Pursuant to
Section 302 of Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

32 Certifications Pursuant to Section 906 of Sarbanes-Oxley Act
of 2002.
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EXHIBIT 21 - SUBSIDIARIES OF THE REGISTRANT

Subsidiaries — Direct/Wholly-owned

State of In¢orporation

Appalachian Capital Trust 1

Appalachian Community Bank
Also doing business under the registered trade name “Gilmer County Bank”

Subsidiaries — Indirect/wholly-owned by Appalachian Community Bank

Appalachian Information Management, Inc.
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EXHIBIT 23.1 - CONSENT OF MAULDIN & JENKINS, LLC

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
We consent to the use in Registration Statements (File Numbers 333-111706 and 333-27127) on Form S-8 of
Appalachian Bancshares, Inc. of our report dated February 10, 2006 relating to our audit of the consolidated

financial statements, which appears in this Annual Report on Form 10-K of Appalachian Bancshares, Inc. for the
year ended December 31, 2005.

/s/ Mauldin & Jenkins, LLC

Atlanta, Georgia
March 30, 2006
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EXHIBIT 23.1 - CONSENT OF SCHAUER TAYLOR COX VISE & MORGAN, P.C.
CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTING FIRM

We hereby consent to the incorporation of our report, dated March 17, 2005, relating to the consolidated
financial statements of Appalachian Bancshares, Inc. and subsidiaries for the three years ended December 31, 2004,
included in this Annual Report on Form 10-K and incorporated herein by reference in the previously filed
Registration Statements of Appalachian Bancshares, Inc. on Form S-8. .

/s/ Schauer Taylor Cox Vise & Morgan, P.C.

Birmingham, Alabama
March 30, 2006
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EXHIBIT 31.1

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

I, Tracy R. Newton, certify that:

1.

I have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 10-K of Appalachian Bancshares, Inc.;

Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a
material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements
were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly
present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as
of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

The registrant’s other certifying officers and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure
controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) for the registrant and we
have: .

a) designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be
designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its
consolidated subsidiaries, is rnade known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the
period in which this report is being prepared;

b) evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this
report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the
period covered by this report based on-such evaluation; and

¢) disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal contro! over financial reporting that occurred
during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an
annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s
internal control over financial reporting.

The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our-most recent evaluation of internal
controls over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of registrant’s board of
directors (or persons performing the equivalent function):.

a) all significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over
financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process,
summarize and report financial information; and ’

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant
role in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

Date: March 30, 2006

/s/ Tracy R. Newton

Tracy R. Newton
Chief Executive Officer
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EXHIBIT 31.2

CERTIFICATION OF PRINCIPAL FINANCIAL OFFICER

1, Joseph T. Moss, Jr., certify that:

1.

[ have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 10-K of Appalachian Bancshares, Inc.;

Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a
material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements
were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly
present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as
of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

The registrant’s other certifying officers and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure
controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(¢) and 15d-15(e)) for the registrant and we
have:

a) designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be
designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its
consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the
period in which this report is being prepared,;

b) evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this
report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the
period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

¢) disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred
during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an
annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s
internal control over financial reporting.

The registrant’s other certifying officer(s} and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal
controls over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of registrant’s board of
directors (or persons performing the equivalent function):

a) all significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over
financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process,
summarize and report financial information; and

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant
role in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

Date: March 30, 2006

/s/ Joseph T. Moss, Jr.
Joseph T. Moss, Jr.
Principal Financial Officer
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EXHIBIT 32

CERTIFICATIONS PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of Appalachian Bancshares, Inc. (the “Company™) on Form 10-K for
the year ended December 31, 2005 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the
“Report”), the undersigned, Tracy R. Newton, Chief Executive Officer of the Company, and Joseph T. Moss, Jr.,
Principal Financial Officer, do hereby certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section
906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that to the best of our knowledge:

€3] The Report fully complies with the requirements of section 13(a) of the Securities Exchange Act
of 1934; and
2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial

condition and results of operations of the Company.

By:
s/ Tracy R. Newton
Tracy R. Newton
Chief Executive Officer
March 30, 2006

/s/ Joseph T. Moss, Jr.
Joseph T. Moss, Jr.
Principal Financial Officer
March 30, 2006
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Appalachian

Bancshares, Inc.

Corporate Headquarters
Appalachian Bancshares, Inc.
822 Industrial Blvd.

Ellijay, GA 30540
706-276-8000

Annual Meeting

Tuesday, May 23, 2006 at 10 a.m.
Gilmer County Bank

Conference Center
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Stock Information
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National Market under the symbol APAB.

Transfer Agent and Registrar of Stock
Registrar & Transfer Company
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information may also be obtained without
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Cathy Hillebert
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Bank Locations
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Ellijay, GA 30540
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